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AWARDS OF GUODIAN TECH 2014
Bl & RHR20145F FrEiEig

In mid-June, United Power subordinated to Guodian Technology &
Environment Group Corporation Limited (hereinafter GUODIAN TECH) won
“Bluesky Award 2014 - Global Top Investment Scenarios to Apply New
Technologies for Renewable Energy Utilization™ for its project titled “R&D of
1.5 MW ultra-low wind speed wind turbine generator (UP1500-97)" issued
by the United Nations Industrial Development Organization. The said WTG
series is a kind of ace WTG with ultra-low wind speed as researched and
developed by United Power, which is also a kind of WTG with the longest
vane wheel in diameter among 1.5MW wind turbines. The award-wining
marked that the techniques applied to ultra-low wind speed WTG of United
Power have received full recognition at home and abroad.

On Oct. 17, the result of “2014 Global Top 500 New Energy Companies”
was jointly announced by China Energy News and China Institute of Energy
Economics Research, where GUODIAN TECH was listed the 15th of the
Global Top 500 New Energy Companies and the first among Chinese
enterprises due to its distinguished performance in new energy equipment
manufacturing and other fields. This is the third successive year that
GUODIAN TECH has become an award winner with its rank rising every
session.

From Oct-Dec, GUODIAN TECH 2013 Annual Report won the “Best New
Entry” award issued by Hong Kong Management Association, won 2 ARC
honor awards and 1 Galaxy bronze award.

On Nov. 4, GUODIAN TECH was granted the “Best Corporate Governance
of Listed Companies” of China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards by
its excellent operating and management quality and good corporate
governance structure.

On Dec. 5, the results of “2014 Deloitte China Clean Technologies Top
20" jointly held by Deloitte & Touche and Tsing Capital were released.
GUODIAN TECH enters the top 20 successfully by its outstanding
achievements and prominent contribution in fields of energy conservation,
environmental protection and new energy.

On Dec. 5, multiple enterprise management innovation achievements
of GUODIAN TECH were commended by 2014 China Power Enterprise
Management Annual Meeting held by China Electricity Council, among
which the “Case Analysis of Wind Power Cloud Platform Technology
Management Application” of United Power won the second prize of 2014
Power Industry Enterprise Management Innovation Achievement Award;
“Practicing Energy Saving and Emission Reduction Policies, and Boosting
Enterprise Transformation Development” of Longyuan Environment and
“Improvement of Wind Power Enterprise Research and Development
Management” of United Power won the first prize of 2010-2013 Five-year
Classic Cases of Power Industry Enterprise Management Innovation, and
“Promoting Enterprise Innovation by GUODIAN TECH Lectures” of head
office of GUODIAN TECH won the third prize of Five-year Classic Cases.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. YANG Guang (Chairman) ¢
Mr. FEI Zhi @

Ms. WANG Hongyan

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Zhongqu @

Mr. ZHANG Wenjian 4

Mr. FENG Shuchen

Mr. YAN Andrew Y.

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu ©

Mr. QU Jiuhui ©

Mr. XIE Qiuye @

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony

Supervisors

Mr. SHAO Guoyong ®
Mr. XU Xingzhou ©

Mr. CHEN Jingdong (19
Ms. HE Lili am

Mr. LI Wei

Legal Advisors

International
Cadwalader, Wickersham & Taft LLP in association
with Joseph P.C. Lee & Associates as to Hong Kong law
27th Floor, 100QRC
100 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRC
Beijing Dacheng Law Office as to PRC law

7/F, Building D, Parkview Green Fangcaodi, No.9, Dongdagiao Road,

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC, 100020
Auditors

International

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road, Central
Hong Kong
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PRC

Union Power Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)

15/F, Building No.7
Block No.16 Xi Si Huan Zhong Road
Haidian District, Beijing, PRC

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. TANG Dejun
Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen (CPA, FCCA)

Authorized Representatives

Mr. YANG Guang (12
Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen

Legal Address
Suite 1101, 11/F, Building No.1

Block No.16 Xi Si Huan Zhong Road
Haidian District, Beijing, PRC

Head Office in PRC
Building No.1

Block No.16 Xi Si Huan Zhong Road
Haidian District, Beijing, PRC

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong 131

Flat L 15/F, Hong Kong Mansion, 1 Yee Wo Street Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Nomination Committee (14

Mr. XIE Qiuye (Chairman)
Mr. QU Jiuhui
Ms. WANG Hong Yan

Audit Committee (14

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony (Chairman)
Mr. QU Jiuhui
Mr. ZHANG Wenjian

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee (14

Mr. QU Jiuhui (Chairman)
Mr. XIE Qiuye
Mr. WANG Zhongqu
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Strategic Committee (14
Mr. YANG Guang (Chairman)
Mr. XIE Qiuye

Mr. FENG Shuchen

Mr. YAN Andrew Y.
Mr. FEI Zhi

H Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Website Address

www.01296.hk

Principal Banks

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

(Beijing Wukesong Olympic Branch)
China Construction Bank Corporation Limited (Hong Kong Branch)
Bank of Communications Corporation Limited (Hong Kong Branch)
Wing Lung Bank Limited (Hong Kong Branch)

Notes:

(1) Mr. Yang Guang was appointed as the chairman of the board (the
“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Guodian Technology &

Environment Group Corporation Limited (the “Company”,

Company” or “Guodian Tech’) and was re-designated from a non-
executive Director to an executive Director on March 18, 2014. Mr. YANG
Guang was appointed as the chairman of the Strategic Committee on
the Board meeting dated May 16, 2014. Please refer to the Company’s

announcement dated March 18,2014 and May 16, 2014 for details.

(2) Mr. FEI Zhi was appointed as an executive Director on the 2013 annual
general meeting of the Company held on May 16, 2014 (the “2013
AGM"), and was appointed as the president and a member of the
Strategic Committee of the Company on the Board meeting dated May
16, 2014. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated May 16,

2014 for details.

(3) Mr. WANG Zhongqu was appointed as a non-executive Director on the
2013 AGM, and was appointed as a member of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee of the Company on the Board meeting dated May
16, 2014. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated May 16,

2014 for details.
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Mr. ZHANG Wenjian was appointed as a non-executive Director on the
2013 AGM, and was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee of
the Company on the Board meeting dated May 16, 2014. Please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated May 16, 2014 for details.

Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on the 2013 AGM. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated May 16, 2014 for datails.

Mr. QU Jiuhui was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on the 2013 AGM, and was appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, a member of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company on
the Board meeting dated May 16, 2014. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated May 16, 2014 for details.

Mr. XIE Qiuye was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on the 2013 AGM, and was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
and a member of the Strategic Committee of the Company on the
Board meeting dated May 16, 2014. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated May 16, 2014 for details.

Mr. SHAO Guoyong was appointed as a supervisor of the Company
(the “Supervisor”) on the 2013 AGM. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated May 16, 2014 for details.

Mr. XU Xingzhou was appointed as a Supervisor on the 2013 AGM.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated May 16, 2014 for
details.

Mr. CHEN Jingdong was appointed as a Supervisor on the 2013 AGM.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated May 16, 2014 for
details.

Ms. HE Lili was elected as an employee representative supervisor of the
Company with effect from May 16, 2014. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated May 16, 2014 for details.

Mr. YE Weifang ceased to an authorized representative of the Company
and Mr. YANG Guang was appointed as an authorized representative of
the Company with effect from March 18, 2014.

The principle place of business in Hong Kong was changed with effect
from August 1, 2014. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
August 1, 2014 for details.

The chairmen and members of the second session of the Nomination
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee, and the Strategic Committee of the Board were appointed on
the Board meeting held on May 16, 2014. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated May 16, 2014 for details.
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Guodian Technology & Environmental Group Corporation Limited (the
“Company”, “our Company” or “GUODIAN TECH"), formerly Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Co., Ltd., was converted into a joint
stock limited liability company on May 16, 2011 and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”)
on December 30, 2011. The Company, together with its subsidiaries
(the “Group” or “our Group”), is the flagship platform for environmental
protection and energy conservation solutions and renewable energy
equipment manufacturing and solutions businesses within the China
Guodian Corporation (the “Guodian Group”) and its subsidiaries and
associates.

The principal businesses of the Company are carried out under
two segments, namely, the environmental protection and energy
conservation solutions, and the renewable energy equipment
manufacturing and services. The Company is a leading market player
in the PRC in these industries given its advanced technology and
diversified business models. In 2014, the Company was selected
again among Top 500 Global New Energy Enterprises, and moved up
3 places in the rankings to the 15th place, compared to the year of
2013 and also ranked first in the PRC. The Company also ranked 210th
among the Fortune China Top 500 Listed Company in 2014 published
by Fortune Magazine.

In its environmental protection and energy conservation solutions
business, the Group is the largest supplier of technology and integrated
systems solutions to coal-fired power plants in the PRC, providing
innovative and advanced technology designed to reduce pollutant
emissions and to maximize efficiencies in resource utilization, with
overall objectives of reducing the environmental impact of coal-fired
power generation and maximizing cost-efficiencies and profitability
for its customers. Leveraging on its comprehensive environmental
protection and energy conservation technologies and solutions for all
aspects of coal-fired power plants (with the core business lines being
SO, and NOx emissions reductions, water treatment, plasma ignition
and combustion stabilization, and energy management contracts),
the Group is capable of providing “One-stop Shop” solutions to its
customers tailored for their specific needs. The Group is also one of the
leading manufacturers of wind and solar power generation equipment in
the PRC in its renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services
business, with well-established brands and is well known for its product
quality and performance. In line with its strategic focus on providing
integrated solutions and services, the Group also provides renewable-
energy related services such as the maintenance and repair of wind
turbine generators and solar power station engineering, procurement
and construction business.
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Focusing on technology innovations and industrial applications, the
Group has achieved significant technology and product innovations
through original ideas, resources consolidation and technology
renovation. Among its leading technologies in the PRC or globally,
the Group’s plasma ignition technology is ranked first in the world.
In the domestic market, the Group keeps a leading position in
many technologies, including wet flue gas desulfurization, seawater
desulfurization, furnace combustion De-Nox and flue gas denitrification.
The Group’s brand names, such as Longyuan Environment, Longyuan
Technology, United Power, and Guodian Zhishen have gained
significant brand recognitions in the PRC. As of December 31, 2014,
the Group had established five national scientific research platforms,
two provincial-level key laboratories, 12 provincial-level enterprise
technology (engineering technology) research centers, and two post-
doctoral research centers. The Group is undertaking 89 on-going
scientific research and development (“R&D") projects, among which
there are two projects and two sub-projects under the 863 Program,
one sub-project under 973 Program, one project and one sub-
project under Science and Technology Support Program, one project
under international science cooperation, two projects for the National
Development and Reform Commission, and one project for the Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology; five projects for the National
Energy Administration, one project for the State Oceanic Administration
and other nine provincial projects. The Group has been granted 1,412
intellectual properties, including 21 international invention patents
and 223 national invention patents. In 2014, the Group was granted
327 intellectual properties, including 66 invention patents (including 3
international invention patents).

The Company believes that its strategic focus on investing in and
promoting technological R&D as a core activity to support the
development of its various businesses has yielded substantial returns,
allowing it to maintain its established position at the forefront of
technological advancements in the environmental protection, energy
conservation and renewable energy industries, and to develop
innovative, practical and cost-efficient solutions and applications and
high-quality products in these industries. The Company also believes
that these industries are expected to play a key role in the sustainable
growth and development of the PRC energy and power sector, which
is integral to the sustainable economic growth and development in
the PRC. Going forward, the Company expects to leverage on its
operations in the PRC to expand internationally, with the objective of
becoming a top tier supplier of integrated clean technology solutions
and services.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
5 ERUE

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, | am honored
to present to you the 2014 annual report of the Group (the “Annual Report”).

In 2014, the world economic environment is complicated. The economic
development of China has entered into a 'new normal" phase resulting from
"shift of growth phase, structure adjustment, and digestion of the stimulus
policies at the earlier stage". A sustainable development goal to build a beautiful
China was put forward on the Eighteenth National Congress of the Communist
Party of China, and the construction of ecological civilization was set in a
prominent position. Under the multiple pressure of strengthened constraints of
domestic resources and environment and the adjustment of economic structure
in China, more attention is paid to the development of clean, efficient and
sustainable energy. Guodian Tech will follow the energy structure adjustment
and technological enhancement of electric power, and stick to the industry
development direction to cleaner and more efficient energy use, and contribute
to the construction of the beautiful and ecological China.

Over the years, Guodian Tech has been committed to developing and promoting
environmental protection and energy conservation solutions and renewable
energy technologies while focusing on research and development in core
technologies, forming a strategic emerging industry cluster with comparative
advances, enhancing its corporate social responsibility (CSR) capability and
promoting the clean electricity production. Guodian Tech is now a leading
force in environmental protection, energy conservation and renewable energy in
China’s electric power sector.

Looking forward, the Company will continue to leverage on the platform
and resources provided by its controlling Shareholder, the China Guodian
Corporation. and further develop into a globally recognized supplier of products
and services in environmental protection and energy conservation solutions and
renewable energy equipment and solutions. The Company will strive to become
a global leader in the provision of integrated clean technology solutions, to
maximize returns to its Shareholders as well as to contribute further to the society
with its extraordinary performance.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | hereby would like to extend our sincere gratitude
to all the Shareholders, clients, business partners for their trust and support and
to all the management and employees for their efforts and contributions.

Mr. YANG Guang
Chairman of the Board
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PRESIDENT'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders:

During the last year, the Company has adhered to the development
strategy of transformation and has performed well in five aspects with
solid steps: strengthening core business and updating transformation,
deepening reform and improving mechanism, reinforcing management
and developing quality, optimizing assets and preventing risks,
enhancing party building and establishing harmony. The Company
has made great progress in various aspects. The Company aimed at
creating an “efficient, green, innovative, honest and happy Guodian
Tech” and placed returning to its Shareholders and benefiting its
staff as fundamental starting point and foothold. The Company has
highlighted the priority of efficiency, optimized the industrial structure,
laid a solid foundation of management, made efforts in expanding the
market, kept its operation in good status and developed and raised
quality steadily.

The Company has overcome multiple challenges on many fronts in
2014: the slowdown in the growth of the macro-economy, the excess
production capacity of wind turbines and photovoltaics, the reduction
of investment scale in the coal-fired power industry, the intensified
external market competition, the pressure of financing and the rising
operation costs. The Company has recorded revenues of approximately
RMB25,605.6 million, gross profits of RMB4,278.2 million and operating
cash inflow of RMB2.71 billion for 2014.

In addition, the Company also achieved significant operational growth.
For example, Beijing Guodian Longyuan Environmental Engineering
Co., Ltd. (the “Longyuan Environment”) has produced desulfurization
and denitrification projects with cumulative capacity of 211,558MW;
the total capacity of desulfurization and denitrification concession
projects was 38,010MW. These products strongly strengthened the
Company’s market position in thermal power denitration market. United
Power sold 1,480 WTGs in 2014, representing an increase of 21.8% as
compared to the last year. Additionally, 1.5MW-97, the core product of
Guodian United Power Technology Co., Ltd. (“United Power”), won the
“Blue Sky” Award granted by United Nations Industrial Development
Organization with its great electricity generation performance. Longyuan
Technology has applied its low-fuel ignition technology and low-nitrogen
products to more than 1,000 domestic and aboard coal-fired boilers.
The Group has recorded a steadily enhanced development, and has
been listed consecutively for three years at “Top 500 New Energy
Company in the World” and ranks the first among Chinese companies.
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PRESIDENT'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
IR E ()

After years of cultivation, the Company has developed a series of well-
known brands, such as Longyuan Environment, Longyuan Technology,
United Power and Guodian Zhishen. The Group has developed into an
integrated group of companies with diversified business segments and
strong synergies and built up a reputable brand name as the largest
provider of coal-fired power plant-related environmental protection and
energy conservation services and renewable energy products and
services in the PRC.

Looking ahead, the Company will continue to strengthen its enterprise
competitiveness, lead the development and upgrade of the industry
and technologies, and make contributions to the economic sustainable
development of China in the sectors of energy conservation,
environmental protection and circular economy.

-
e

Mr. FEI Zhi
President
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS
s EERE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETT AR¥TFT
Revenue A 10,998,908 18,706,980 21,776,510 25,420,355 25,605,613
Profit before taxation E RN 680,465 1,271,574 1,263,905 939,425 59,135
Income tax 5 HL (118,639) (107,161) (229,934) (80,143) (195,642)
Profit/(loss) for the year NEFE(EE) 561,826 1,164,413 1,033,971 859,282 (136,507)
Attributable to: FEBER
Equity owners/shareholders ZARNA G AEH 350,359 840,681 692,947 557,095 (393,374)
of the Company ydi's
Non-controlling interests FE1E A A 2 211,467 323,732 341,024 302,187 256,867
Profit/(loss) for the year ANEFE(EE) 561,826 1,164,413 1,033,971 859,282 (136,507)
Basic and diluted BREARESE 7.2 17.3 1.4 9.2 (6.5)
earnings/(loss) aF,/ (EE)
per share (RMB cents) ANE#5)
Total non-current assets EMEEEMLTE 13,371,840 14,730,958 20,345,067 21,051,864 20,170,875
Total current assets MEEEREEE 19,096,520 27,324,740 25,950,620 33,554,731 36,758,174
Total assets BELTE 32,468,360 42,055,698 46,295,687 54,606,595 56,929,049
Total current liabilities mEN A EEE (21,219,909) (29,118,663) (26,763,084) (33,817,587) (37,841,594)
Total non-current liabilites  FEREH & &5 (3,148,420)  (1,940,956) (7,391,477) (7,906,766) (6,347,071)
Net assets BEFH 8,100,031 10,996,079 12,141,126 12,882,242 12,740,384
Total equity attributable to Rz EFEF BN 6,157,176 8,771,546 9,281,884 9,740,266 9,243,905
equity owners/shareholders 2N &) # &%
of the Company e )
Non-controlling interests FE1E A A 2 1,942,855 2,224,533 2,859,242 3,141,976 3,496,479
Total equity i 4R RE 8,100,031 10,996,079 12,141,126 12,882,242 12,740,384




2014 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS (CONTINUED)
M EEME (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group’s revenue
was approximately RMB25,605.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately 0.7% over that for the last year.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group’s gross profit
was approximately RMB4,278.2 million, representing an increase
of approximately 12.8% over that for the last year.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group’s operating
profit was approximately RMB1,216.1 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 36.8% over that for the last year.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB393.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately
170.6% as compared to a profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of approximately RMB557.1 million
for the last year.

The Board recommends not to distribute the final dividend for
the year ended December 31, 2014.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Certain statistical data and other information relating to the PRC
and the industries in which the Group operates contained in, for
instance, the section entitled “Key Industry Developments” in this
annual report, have been derived from various publicly available
official publications. The Company believes that these sources
are appropriate and has taken reasonable care in extracting and
reproducing such information. The Company has no reason to
believe that such information is false or misleading or that any
material fact has been omitted that would render such information
false or misleading. The information has not been independently
verified by the Company or any other relevant party and the
Company makes no representation as to the accuracy of the
information contained in such sources, which may not be consistent
with other information compiled within or outside the PRC.
Accordingly, such information may not be accurate and should not
be unduly relied upon for your investment in the Company.

This annual report contains certain forward-looking statements and
information relating to the Group or the Company that are based on
the management’s belief and assumptions. The words “anticipate,”
“believe,” “expect,” “going forward” and similar expressions, as they
relate to the Company, the Group or the Company’s management,
are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such
statements reflect the current views of the Company’s management
with respect to future events and are subject to certain risks,
uncertainties and assumptions. Should one or more of these risks or
uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove
incorrect, the Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operations may be adversely affected and may vary materially from
those described herein as anticipated, believed or expected.

B IR R A S AT

KEFAUMETEITERRE BB EEH T
BRAEBFEETHENE THRIBERE
MEEHE TEBNES REHY - XA F
HEFHEBERBEENEBRYE & EE
HinHREREREHEN - AR AJIUEES
HEEHENBEREREMHEHHEAR
FHEERREZEENBERXREMLNE
B -FHENUARBERAREEE T HYL
BE - FARJURXERZEXFITBEER L
EEMRXEIMBEY WEZEEHTEEF
EBEAN R BEMERT —B - Bl &
EEHRULER BTREREIZAHTE
BEMKELBER -

FERBEERFRAEEEHEERBER
FEH BB ALK R ARy E T 505 MR
REH -[Eit] [HE] [EBAH] [5&]
RENFZT BEARERA FEBHEAR
ANEREEE o BIIEFTIE MR - Ul B
RBHERAEEFHRRENH BRI
WEETERE THHAERBRHZE -
f— R ZHZEmMBHTHHEAELE
KBRS ESTIER FEEE
B HBERIREERXEAES TRIRHEE
B REER AR R RY R 5f - IS ARHE A
THEE -




2014 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BB AT ()

2014 INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Key Industry Developments

In 2014, the PRC government continued to introduce new regulatory
and policy initiatives applicable to the PRC power and power-related
industries amid significant challenges to sustainable economic growth
and environmental protection. These new initiatives primarily aim at
encouraging diversification of energy structure in the PRC and reducing
environmental pollution and promoting energy conservation. The PRC
is expected to further intensify its efforts to develop clean energy. The
scale of the investment in clean and renewable energy is thus expected
to increase year by year. By 2020, non-fossil energy is expected to
account for about 15% of the primary energy, and power investment is
expected to enter the “green investment” era, which may incentivize the
development of new energy equipment manufacturing industry.

On the other hand, the competition in the market of environmental
protection for coal-fired power plants was even more fierce. By the
end of 2014, Guodian Group (the Company’s controlling shareholder)
installed capacity of desulfurization and denitrification units had
reached approximately 99.8% and 93.7%, respectively. The Group’s
desulfurization and denitrification construction and reconstruction
projects are expected to be gradually reduced since 2015 and the
Group is expected to face more intensified market competition.

For the purpose of this Annual Report, the “PRC” refers to the People’s
Republic of China, excluding Taiwan, the Macau Special Administration
Region of the PRC and the Hong Kong Special Administration Region
of the PRC.

Set forth below are the key regulations and policy initiatives issued
by the PRC government and other relevant regulatory authorities that
are expected to have a material effect on the Group’s businesses,
operations and financial condition:

In the national environment conference held in January 2014, the PRC
Ministry of Environmental Protection set the emission reduction targets
for year 2014: as compared to 2013, the emission of each of sulfur
dioxide ("$0,"), chemical oxygen demand (*COD”) and ammonia
nitrogen should be reduced by 2% and the emission of nitrogen oxides
(“NOx”) should be reduced by 5%; efforts should be made to increase
the daily capacity of urban sewage treatment to 10 million tonnes,
increase the capacity of sintering machine flue gas desulfurization to
15,000 m2 and increase the coal-fired unit denitrification capacity to
130 million KW in 2014,

In the national energy conference held in January 2014, four tasks were
proposed for year 2014, including developing the clean energy and
promoting the development of green energy. The conference set the
targets of, among others, increasing installed wind power capacity to
18 million KW and installed solar power capacity to 14 million KW, with
a 60% contribution from distributed generation systems.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

On January 20, 2014, the PRC National Energy Administration issued
the Guidance Opinions on Energy Related Work for Year 2014 ({2014
FEEFETFIEEZ H)) (the “Guidance Opinions”). The Guidance
Opinions require that the wind power industry be developed smoothly
and set the target of installing wind power generators with an
aggregate capacity of 18.0 million KW in 2014, an increase of 11.8%
as compared to the total newly-installed wind power capacity of 16.1
million KW in 2013. In addition, the National Energy Administration
has also released a plan for the fourth batch of wind power projects
during the twelfth five-year period. The plan approves the proposed
installation of wind power generators with an aggregated capacity of
27.6 million KW, which is much higher than the industry’s expectations
and implies the continuous rebound in the wind power industry. In
addition, in the first meeting of a new session of the PRC National
Energy Commission held in April 2014, Premier Li Kegiang required to
strengthen the construction of wind power and solar power stations and
the accompanying electricity transmission systems.

On March 28, 2014, the PRC National Development and Reform
Commission (the “NDRC”) and the PRC Ministry of Environmental
Protection jointly issued the Measures on Green Electricity Tariff and
Supervision of the Operation of Environmental Protection Facilities for
Coal-fired Generating Units ((#{/# % & # IR (R E B RIR IR ETTE
B %)) (the ‘Measures”). The Measures provide that coal-fired power
stations should install desulfurization, denitrification and ash removal
facilities according to relevant rules and regulations. The Measures
further provide that the operation of environmental protection facilities
should comply with the pollutants emission standards and should
be assessed based on the average hourly emission concentration of
each pollutant. If the average hourly emission concentration exceeds
the emission limit but less than one time, the relevant green electricity
tariff, which is the tariff for desulfurization, denitrification or ash removal
of coal-fired power units, should be forfeited. If the average emission
concentration exceeds the emission limit by more than one time, in
addition to the forfeiture of the green electricity tariff, fines of an amount
up to five times of the green electricity tariff for the period when the
relevant emission limit is exceeded would be imposed.

On May 16, 2014, the PRC Ministry of Environmental Protection and
the PRC General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and
Quarantine jointly released the new Emission Standard of Air Pollutants
for Boiler ({(#/EX 7 5RHEKIZE)) (the ‘Standard”), which took
effect on July 14, 2014. The Standard adds emission limits for nitric
oxide, mercury and mercury compounds. The Standard further lowers
the limit on concentration of SO, emitted by coal-fired plants in major
areas, such as Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Inner Mongolia and Shandong,
from 200mg/Nm3 to 50mg/Nm?3 or less. The desulfurization facilities for
coal-fired power plants in these areas require technical improvements,
which are expected to result in increases in investment and operational
costs, and may bring the Group risks related to the operation of its
desulfurization concession projects.
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On May 21, 2014, the NDRC released 80 projects to encourage social
investment in infrastructure, 30 projects among which are large-
scale applications of distributed photovoltaic power generation in
demonstration areas.

On May 26, 2014, the PRC General Office of the State Council issued
the Action Plan for Energy Saving, Emission Reduction and Low Carbon
Development 2014-2015 ((2014-2015%F £r BE )R PEIR i 2 /R 7T B 77
%)) (the “Action Plan”). The Action Plan provides detailed targets for
energy saving, emission reduction and carbon reduction and specifies
the tasks of air pollutants emission reduction in 2014 to 2015. The
Action Plan requires the acceleration of construction of energy saving,
emission reduction and lowering carbon emission projects. The Action
Plan further requires, among others, to upgrade denitrification facilities
for coal-fired units with a total capacity of 300 million KW and to
increase capacities for SO, and NOx emission reduction by 2.3 million
tonnes and 2.6 million tonnes, respectively, by the end of 2015.

On June 5, 2014, the NDRC issued the Notice on Offshore Wind Power
Feed-in Tariff Policies ({FIR&_L/EE LA EEKERIBH)) (the
“Feed-in Tariff Policies”), aiming at promoting the healthy development
of the offshore wind power sector and encouraging the exploitation of
high-quality resources. According to the Feed-in Tariff Policies, for non-
tender wind power projects, feed-in tariffs are divided into tariffs for
intertidal wind power and tariffs for offshore wind power. The tariff for
offshore wind power generated by facilities put into operation by the
end of 2017 is RMBO0.85 per KWh (taxes included) and the tariff for
intertidal wind power generated by facilities put into operation by the
end of 2017 is RMBO0.75 per KWh (taxes included). The Feed-in Tariff
Policies further encourages to use market competition methods such as
concession biddings to determine concessionaires and feed-in tariffs.
For offshore wind power projects whose owners are determined through
concession biddings, the feed-in tariff should be the winning bid price,
which should not be higher than the feed-in tariffs of the same kind of
wind power projects described above.

In September 2014, the NDRC, the National Energy Administration and
the Ministry of Environmental Protection jointly issued Action Plan of
Coal Power Energy Saving Upgrade and Reconstruction (2014-2020)
(CETEIBEMBEA R ETTE)ET ) (2014-2020))) (the “Action Plan
of Power Energy”). The Action Plan of Power Energy aims to promote
the revolution of energy production and consumption and further raise
the level of efficient and clean development of coal power. The Action
Plan of Power Energy requires all new coal-fired units to be equipped
with desulfurization, denitrification and ash removal devices and not to
set bypass channel for smoke. Meanwhile, it requires the current coal-
fired units to be updated in order to reach the air pollutants emission
standards.
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On September 25, 2014, the National Energy Administration issued
the Notice on Requirements of Regulating the Market of Wind Power
Equipment ((BIR4E E /A X 15 175 1 /7 B I E K 1 ##1)) (the “Notice
on the Wind Power Equipment”) to regulate the market of wind
power equipment. The Notice on the Wind Power Equipment requires
enhancing certification testing to ensure the quality of wind power
equipment, regulating the quality acceptance inspection of wind power
equipment, establishing a fair, just and open bidding and procurement
market and strengthening the disclosure and supervision of the wind
power equipment market.

On October 8, 2014, in a State Council executive meeting, Premier Li
Keqgiang emphasized on conducting environmental protection price
reform, and the need to “focus on people’s urgent needs and the weak
links that need to be strengthened sooner or later, and start a batch
of important projects in water conservancy, environmental protection
and information network within the year”. In addition, the Ministry of
Environmental Protection pointed out that compared to the target of the
twelfth Five-Year Plan, the NOx emission reduction still lags behind.
The new Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for the Cement Industry
(CKJBIL#AFZT2YHINIZE)Y) (the “Standard of Air Pollutants”)
took effect on March 1, 2014 (or will be effective from July 1, 2015 for
current cement enterprises). The Standard of Air Pollutants lowers the
limit on cement kilns’ NOx emission, from 800 mg/m?3 to 400 mg/m3 in
non-key regions and 320 mg/m?3 in key regions. Cement enterprises
have started to prepare for NOx emission reduction projects, which will
promote the denitrification industry.

On October 13, 2014, the National Energy Administration issued Notice
on Implementing the Policy on Implementing the New Distributed
Photovoltaic Power ((i# — 258 5 sk K # E B FHHFERIEL)) (the
‘Notice on Implementing the Policy”). The Notice on Implementing the
Policy provides 15 measures to implement relevant policies concerning
photovoltaic power generation, which require that all regions enhance
the application and planning of distributed photovoltaic power
generation, and to encourage various application of distributed
photovoltaic power generation, and to strengthen the planning and
coordination of the roof resource, to improve the standard and quality
control of distributed photovoltaic power generation projects, to improve
the development patterns of distributed photovoltaic power generation,
to further innovate the construction of demonstration areas of distributed
photovoltaic power generation and to enhance the construction of the
matching power grid technology and management system.
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In November 2014, the General Office of the State Council issued
Strategic Action Plan of Energy Development (2014-2020) ({55 %
JRE R 7T B 5 E] (2014-20204F))) (the ‘Strategic Action Plan”). The
Strategic Action Plan provides that the strategic policy of “economical,
clean, safe” should be adhered to and the construction of clean,
efficient, safe and sustainable modern energy system should be
accelerated. The Strategic Action Plan proposes to develop clean
energy actively, such as natural gas, nuclear power and renewable
energy, reduce the coal consumption proportion and continuously
optimize the energy structure. The Strategic Action Plan requires to
develop wind power continuously. By 2020, the feed-in tariff of wind
power and coal power are expected to be the same, with installation
of WTGs (Wind Turbine Generator) in an aggregated capacity of
200 million KW. The Strategic Action Plan also requires to develop
solar power. By 2020, the electricity price of photovoltaic power and
power sold by the grid companies are expected to be the same, with
installation of photovoltaic generators in an aggregated capacity of 100
million KW.

On December 8, 2014, the National Energy Administration issued
Notice on the Issue of National Offshore Wind Power Development and
Construction Plan (2014-2016) ({BiRE1% 5 [B% _F & & FH Z#E R 5K
(2014-2016) a9:841)) (the ‘Notice on Wind Power”), which enrolls
44 offshore wind power projects with an aggregated capacity of 10.53
million KW into the development and construction plan. The Notice on
Wind Power is expected to promote the fast and healthy development
of offshore wind power.

On December 24, 2014, the National Energy Administration issued three
documents related to photovoltaic construction, which were Notice on
Construction of the Demonstration Areas Construction of Distributed
Photovoltaic Power ({BIR## 7375 70 06 (X & EJEFH R #[B 2 LAY 41)),
Notice on the Planning and Formulation of Solar Power “13" Five-Year
Plan” (CEIRM4F X G pe &/ [+ =1 | M )4 R T (Eay#E 40)), Notice on
2014 Grid Connection of Photovoltaic Power Project ({Jr 472014
FEHRBTIELZEALELE41)). The photovoltaic industry has been
strongly supported by such government policies.

In early 2015, the NDRC issued the Notice on Appropriate Adjustment
of Benchmark Feed-in Tariff of Onshore Wind Power ({[E§R i & 54
Bt FEEIZIT FAIEEAEH)) (the ‘Notice on Feed-in Tariff of
Onshore Wind Power”), which decreased the benchmark feed-in
tariff of wind power in class |, class Il and class Il resource areas by
RMBO0.02 per KWh, and the adjusted prices were RMB0.49, RMBO0.52
and RMBO0.56 per KWh, respectively. The benchmark feed-in tariff of
wind power in class |V resources area remains RMB0.61 per KWh. The
Notice on Feed-in Tariff of Onshore Wind Power applies to onshore
wind power projects approved after January 1, 2015, or onshore wind
power projects approved before January 1, 2015 but put into operation
after January 1, 2016, and therefore stimulated demands for wind
power products in 2014 and 2015.
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Key Business Developments

Year 2014 witnessed a series of challenges the Group faced, including,
for example, the slowdown of the PRC economic growth, the glut of
manufacturing capacities in the WTG and solar power industries, the
reduction of investment in the coal-fired power industry, intensified
competitions, the pressure from securing financing and the increase in
operating costs. Notwithstanding these challenges, both the Group’s
revenue and its new contract value increased in 2014, which partially
offset the negative impacts on the performance of the Group from the
market.

Environmental Protection Business

In the SO, emission reduction business, the Group entered into new
desulfurization engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”)
contracts for an aggregate capacity of approximately 26,775.0 MW in
2014. As of December 31, 2014, for desulfurization EPC business, the
newly installed capacity of the Group was approximately 22,935.0 MW
and the cumulative installed capacity of the Group was approximately
149,435.0 MW. The cumulative installed capacity was 32,910.0 MW for
the Group’s desulfurization concession projects as of December 31,
2014. The Group conducted desulfurization concession business for six
million KW power units in several cities in Jiangsu Province including
Taizhou and Jianbi, with the goal to optimize its asset structure and
further increase the overall profitability. The Group entered into a
strategic cooperation agreement with a number of large-scale cement
groups to build a comprehensive utilization platform of desulfurized
gypsum. In 2014, the Group sold over 2,250.0 thousand tonnes of
desulfurization gypsum, and generated sales revenue of approximately
RMB56.5 million.

For the denitrification business, the Group entered into new
denitrification EPC contracts for an aggregate capacity of approximately
13,930.0 MW in 2014. As of December 31, 2014, the newly installed
capacity and the cumulative installed capacity for the Group’s
denitrification EPC business were approximately 27,173.0 MW and
62,123.0 MW, respectively; the Group’s cumulative installed capacity
for denitrification concession projects was approximately 5,100.0 MW.
As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s annual production capacity
of denitrification catalysts kept on an optimal level with a capacity of
approximately 24,000.0 m3. In 2014, the Group also entered into new
low-NOx combustion contracts with a cumulative contract value of more
than RMB838.0 million and completed the low-NOx transformation for
51 units.

As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s daily water treatment capacity
was approximately 1.5 million tonnes, and the Group remained among
the top 20 in China in terms of water treatment capacity. In 2014,
the Group processed approximately 238.6 million tonnes of sewage
water, including municipal recycled water, with an increase of 6% as
compared with 2013, and reduced the cumulative COD emission by
approximately 83,500.0 tonnes.
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Energy Conservation Solutions Business

For the Group’s energy conservation solutions business, the Group
maintained its leading positions in the plasma ignition and tiny-oil
ignition industries. For its waste heat recovery business, the Group
has completed the development of the new energy-saving condenser
and the research and development on technologies to utilize waste
heat. In 2014, the heat pump was successfully put into production by
the Group, and the Group became a general contractor conducting
waste heat recovery business with capabilities to manufacture heat
pump equipment. The Group’s boiler comprehensive utilization
and reconstruction business developed rapidly. In 2014, the Group
successfully implemented the transformation of meagre coal to
bituminous coal project in Changyuan, with all the major parameters
reaching or exceeding the targets and the gross coal consumption rate
decreasing by 9.5 g/KWh, and the Group’s work was highly recognized
by its clients. In addition, the Group completed the vortex furnace
comprehensive reconstruction project in eastern Inner Mongolia, which
resolved the problems of the boiler’s poor operational performance and
improved its efficiency in generating germanium. Boiler comprehensive
utilization and reconstruction business promises to bring new profit
growth. The contract value of boiler comprehensive utilization and
reconstruction business amounted to RMB206.0 million in 2014. The
Group entered into 15 new energy management contracts (“EMC”) in
2014, with a cumulative contract amount of approximately RMB263.7
million. The Group conducted two general contracting for power station
projects, with one in Hami, Xinjiang Province and the other in Ledong,
Hainan Province.

Wind Power Products and Services Business

The Group’s WTG sales volumes by product type for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 are set forth below:
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Investment in wind power saw a rebound in the second half of 2013
and a rapid increase in 2014. Demands for the Group’s main product
for the wind power products and services segment, the WTGs,
increased significantly in 2014. The marketing efforts of the Group
proved to be effective, which secured the leading position of the
Group in the market. According to the statistical results of China Wind
Energy Association, in 2014, United Power ranked the second in terms
of its newly installed capacity. In 2014, the Group mainly made efforts
in improving the WTG products in four aspects, i.e., improving the
quality, the performance, service and the price competitiveness of the
Group’s WTG products, and achieved satisfactory results. The average
malfunction rate per day of the WTGs manufactured by the Group
dropped to 0.074 occurrence per unit, which decreased by 56.8% as
compared with that for 2013. The performance of the WTG produced
by United Power was significantly enhanced, with variance ratio of
average utilization hours decreasing from 9.31% to 3.04%. The 1.5 MW-
97 and 2 MW-115 WTGs which were independently researched and
developed by the Group reached a leading position in the industry, with
competitiveness increasing significantly.

Solar Power Products and Services Business

In 2014, the Group’s total contract value and in-grid capacity of solar
power EPC projects decreased as a result of the impact by changes in
procedures for granting administrative permissions for construction of
photovoltaic power stations and the intensified competition of the solar
power products and services industry. The Group entered into new
contracts for photovoltaic power station projects with a total capacity
of 560.22 MW (including EPC projects of 120.22 MW and integrated
management contracts of 440.0 MW). The total capacity of EPC
projects undertaken by the Group for 2014 decreased by 483.1 MW,
or 80.1%, as compared with that for 2013. The in-grid capacity of new
projects commenced in 2014 was 265.3 MW, representing a decrease
of 265.7 MW, or 50.0%, as compared with that in 2013. In 2014, as a
result of insufficient customer orders in the thin film solar production
business, the Group adjusted downwards the estimated future cash
flows derived from the solar segment upon assessment. This resulted in
an impairment loss of approximately RMB524.9 million of these assets.
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Steadily Expanding into the Domestic Market

The Group actively cultivated new customers in the domestic power
and non-power industries and enhanced its position in the existing
domestic market.

The Group has made significant progress in expanding into the domestic
market. Total value of the contracts with customers outside of Guodian
Group accounted for over 40.0% of the total value of the contracts entered
into by the Group in the whole year. The local power enterprises and
the affiliated electric power, chemical engineering and coal enterprises
became new customers of the Group. For the Group’s environmental
protection segment, total value of the contracts entered into by the Group
in 2014 slightly increased as compared to that of 2013. For the energy
conservation solutions segment, in 2014, the Group entered into two
contracts for the Group’s general contracting for power stations business,
with a total contract value of approximately RMB2.7 billion.

Actively Expanding into Overseas Market

In 2014, the Group actively explored the overseas market and
scientifically enlarged the overseas marketing network. In 2014, the
overseas operating revenue was approximately RMB71.76 million
and the value of new contracts was approximately RMB301.0 million.
Currently, the Group owns a wholly-owned subsidiary in Hong Kong.
The Group also has equity interest in two subsidiaries in the United
States, Guodian United Power American LLC and Guodian Longyuan
Technologies USA Corporation, which contributed to the Group’s
expansion into the overseas market. In 2014, the Group signed the
following contracts:

e Phase lll 2 x 660 MW coal-fired thermal generator limestone-plaster
wet flue gas desulfurization EP project for a power plant in Turkey;

e 2 x 660 MW no-fuel power station plasma ignition project for a
power plant in Turkey;

e three 660 MW tiny-oil retrofitting projects for three power stations in
India, respectively;

e sale of thin-film components to Korean and ltalian customers and
silicon components to Japanese customers; and

e supply whole-set PGS instruments to a customer in Indonesia.
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Dedicating to Technological Innovations and Research and
Development

The Group dedicated itself to technological innovations and research

and development to enhance its core competitiveness.

lts dedication

led to a number of achievements in multiple areas of its business. The
Group:

built a comprehensive science and technology development system.
The Group’s technological research and development capability
is in a leading position in the PRC, with five national research and
development platforms such as the “National Key Wind Power
Equipment and Control Lab”, two provincial key laboratories, twelve
provincial enterprise technological (engineering technology) research
centers and two postdoctoral research and development stations.

undertook multiple science and technology projects and participates
in the setting of national and industrial standards. Beijing Guodian
Zhishen Control Technology Co., Ltd (“Guodian Zhishen”)’'s million
KW double-reheat ultra super-critical units control system research
and development project was approved by the Beijing Municipal
Science and Technology Commission as one of the transformation
and cultivation of key science and technology achievements
projects. The Group actively participated in formulating national
and industrial standards, including seven international and national
standards and sixteen industrial standards. In 2014, the Group
owned 327 intellectual properties, including 66 invention patents.

vigorously promoted new technologies and products. The Group
promoted general application and innovation of advanced products
of desulfurization, denitrification, plasma low-NOx combustion,
water treatment and automation in demonstration projects. The
Group actively promoted the research, development and application
of the super-clean management technology on smoke and gas
emissions by coal-fired power stations. The Group vigorously
promoted the research, development and application of the PM2.5
removal technology. The Group improved research, development
and application of the new composite wet power station dedusting
technology. The Group also promoted the Tianjin Beitang power
station demonstration project, with smoke emission at 2.76-2.88mg/
Nm3, which is in a leading position in the PRC. The Group completed
the “double-reheat 1,000 MW ultra super-critical units key technology”
for Taizhou power station demonstration project under the auspice
of the National Science and Technology Support Program with high
standard and quality. The Group steadily carried out the research,
development and demonstration of the regeneration and recycle
of NOx emission reduction catalyst project, which is one of the
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“863 Program” projects, supported by the Ministry of Science and
Technology. United Power completed the research, development
and application of the low wind speed 1.5 MW-97 turbine and 2 MW-
115 turbine, which operate in areas with an average wind speed of
5.5-6.5 m/s. Guodian Longyuan Electrical Co., Ltd. (the “Longyuan
Electrical”) successfully completed the research, development and
manufacture of the third generation converters. Meanwhile, the Group
actively promoted the research, development and application of
the zero emission technology for thermal power station wastewater.
The Group also improved conversion efficiency of solar cells and
achieved a breakthrough in the high-efficiency GaAs cell technology,
with the conversion efficiency triple-junction solar cell reaching
34.5%.

The Group received a number of industrial recognitions and awards in
2014 for its achievements in technology innovations and research and
development:

e The “reducing the nitrogen oxide emission by adopting pulverized
coal boiler of the internal combustion type burner” (—F& B KA
PRG0S E PR IR B AL WM /5 0%) technology of a subsidiary
of the Group, Yantai Longyuan Power Technology Co., Ltd., won
the China Patent Excellence Award granted by the State Intellectual
Property Office;

e The “design, research, development and application of 6 MW
doubly-fed offshore wind turbines” (6 MWEEiE FE H3EHAE
REtFEETIEEE) project was awarded the National Energy
Science and Technology Progress First Prize;

e The “research and application of thermal power stations flue gas
NOx emission reduction technology and localized manufacture of
catalysts” (K EBRERBETE R BEE{CHREER) project
won the first prize of the Science and Technology Progress Award
for Electric Power Construction in 2014;

e The “super-low wind speed 1.5 MW turbine research and
development (UP1500-97)" (1.5 MWK [, 3% & T #% 48 5 3% (UP1500-
97)) project was granted the 2014 “Global Top Investments to Apply
New Technologies for Renewable Energy Utilization and Blue Sky
Award” by the United Nations Industrial Development Organization,
which proved that the United Power’s technology of super-low wind
speed turbines had won both domestic and international industry-
wide recognitions;

e The Company was nominated as one of the “Deloitte China’s Top
20 Clean Technology Companies” for its achievements in and
contribution to the energy conservation, environmental protection
and new energy fields.
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ANALYSIS OF 2014 FINANCIAL RESULTS

Please read this section in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Analysis of Consolidated Results

Revenue

Consolidated revenue of the Group for 2014 was approximately
RMB25,605.6 million, representing a slight increase of approximately
0.7% from approximately RMB25,420.4 million for 2013. The Group’s
slight increase was primarily due to the increases in revenues from
energy conservation solutions and wind power products and services
businesses, which were partially offset by the decreases in revenues
from the environmental protection and solar power products and
services businesses. Revenues from energy conservation solutions
and wind power products and services businesses increased by
approximately RMB2,644.8 million and RMB2,537.6 million, respectively,
as compared to those for 2013, representing increases of approximately
253.2% and 36.7%, respectively. Revenues from environmental
protection and solar power products and services businesses
decreased by approximately RMB947.8 million and RMB4,254.1 million,
or 9.4% and 59.3%, respectively, as compared to those for 2013. The
revenue increase in the energy conservation solution business was
primarily due to the Group’s efforts in expanding its general contracting
for power stations business. The increase in revenue from the wind
power products and services business was primarily attributable to an
increase in the Group’s WTG sales volumes in 2014 as a result of the
recovery of the PRC wind power industry since the second half of 2013.
The decrease in revenue from the environmental protection business
was primarily due to a significant decrease in revenue from the Group’s
NOx emission reduction business. The decrease in revenue from the
solar power products and services business was primarily due to
the decreased revenue generated from the Group’s solar power EPC
business.
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Revenue I A

All others
Fii £ £ A

The following table sets out the Group’s revenues by segment and as TR B FEH E20145F £2013F12A31H8
a percentage of the total revenue of the Group for the years ended LEFEZIHEINAEEBRAREELRE

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively: BERKANBDLL :
2014 2013
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(ARE¥EET) (AR¥EET)

Environmental protection and BRRBERASR:

energy conservation solutions:

Environmental protection RIR 9,134.7 35.7 10,082.5 39.7

Energy conservation solutions EiES S 3,689.3 14.4 1,044.5 4.1
Sub-total ait 12,824.0 50.1 11,127.0 43.8
Renewable energy equipment ABERRRERERRY

manufacturing and services:

Wind power products and services REERRRE 9,454.0 36.9 6,916.4 27.2

Solar power products and services KIG e E m MRS 2,919.4 11.4 71735 28.2
Sub-total &t 12,373.4 48.3 14,089.9 554
All others BT EAf 408.2 1.6 203.5 0.8

@it 25,605.6 100.0 25,420.4 100.0
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the Group decreased by approximately RMB300.6
million, or 1.4%, from approximately RMB21,628.0 million in 2013 to
approximately RMB21,327.4 million in 2014. This decrease was primarily
due to the decreases in cost of sales for the Group’s environmental
protection and solar power products and services businesses, and
was partially offset by the increase in cost of sales for the Group’s
energy conservation solutions and wind power products and services
businesses, which were consistent with changes in revenues in these
businesses.

Cost of sales # & & A&

BB AT (48)
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The following table sets out the Group’s cost of sales by segment and TR R E E2014F %2013F12H31H
as a percentage of total cost of sales of the Group for the years ended IHFERDEEI D AREBHEER AL EG

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively: REBBRHERNTNBE D -
2014 2013
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AE¥EEBT) (AR¥EET)
Environmental protection and RRREEBAAR:
energy conservation solutions:
Environmental protection R 7,519.3 35.3 8,462.4 39.1
Energy conservation solutions HES: S 3,307.8 15.5 8345 39
Sub-total &3t 10,827.1 50.8 9,296.9 43.0
Renewable energy equipment ABERRRERERRY
manufacturing and services:
Wind power products and services BEEmRRE 7,544.7 35.4 5,483.7 25.4
Solar power products and services ABREE m kRS 2,739.2 12.8 6,774.5 31.3
Sub-total &3t 10,283.9 48.2 12,258.2 56.7
All others BT E A 216.4 1.0 729 0.3

Total Foh 21,327.4 100.0 21,628.0 100.0
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the foregoing reasons, gross profit of the Group increased by
approximately RMB485.8 million, or 12.8%, from approximately
RMB3,792.4 million for 2013 to approximately RMB4,278.2 million for
2014. The increase in gross profit was primarily attributable to the
increase in gross profit for the Group’s wind power products and
services business and the increase in gross profit for the energy
conservation solutions business, partially offset by the decrease in
gross profit from the solar power products and services business. The
gross profit for the Group’s environmental protection business remained
at the same level as compared to 2013. The average gross profit
margin of the Group across all segments of the Group increased from
14.9% for 2013 to 16.7% for 2014. The increase in gross profit margin
for the environmental protection business was primarily attributable
to the increases in the gross profit margin for the NOx emission
reduction business. The increase in gross profit margin for the solar
power products and services was primarily due to the increase in
gross profit margin for the solar power EPC business. The decrease in
gross profit margin for the energy conservation solutions business was
primarily due to the low gross profit margin of general contracting for
power stations business. The decrease in gross profit margin for the
wind power products and services business was primarily due to the
decrease in gross profit margin of the wind turbine converter business.

Gross profit margin F fi &

2014
2013

2014
2013

2014
2013

2014
2013

BB am AT (48)
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The following table sets out the Group’s gross profit and gross profit TR R E E2014F %2013F12H31H
margins by segment for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, HFERDBE DN AEEERMERNE :
respectively:

2014 2013
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AE¥EEBT) (AR¥EET)

Environmental protection and RRREEBAAR:

energy conservation solutions:

Environmental protection R 1,615.4 17.7 1,620.1 16.1

Energy conservation solutions HES: S 381.5 10.3 210.0 20.1
Sub-total &3t 1,996.9 15.6 1,830.1 16.4
Renewable energy equipment ABERRRERERRY

manufacturing and services:

Wind power products and services BEEmRRE 1,909.2 20.2 1,432.7 20.7

Solar power products and services A Em kRS 180.2 6.2 399.0 5.6
Sub-total &3t 2,089.4 16.9 1,831.7 13.0
All others BT E A 191.9 47.0 130.6 64.2
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Other revenue

Other revenue of the Group decreased by approximately RMB75.9
million, or 19.1%, from approximately RMB395.5 million for 2013 to
approximately RMB319.6 million for 2014. This decrease was primarily
due to the decrease in subsidies from the PRC government.

Other net (loss)/income

The Group recorded other net loss of approximately RMB27.6 million
for 2014, compared with other net income of approximately RMB134.5
million for 2013. The net loss was primarily due to the net loss of
approximately RMB99.1 million generated from the Group’s disposal
of property, plant and equipment in 2014 and was also because the
Group derived a net income of approximately RMB52.0 million from
sales of certain listed equity securities in 2013 but did not record such
income during 2014.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
RMB367.3 million, or 48.0%, from approximately RMB765.8 million for
2013 to approximately RMB1,133.1 million for 2014. This increase was
primarily due to the increased expenses for transportation, warranty
and after-sales services of WTGs as a result of the increase in WTG
sales.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB589.5
million, or 36.1%, from approximately RMB1,631.5 million in 2013 to
approximately RMB2,221.0 million in 2014. This increase was primarily
due to the Group’s provision for an impairment loss of approximately
RMB524.9 million for the thin-film solar production lines.

Operating profit and operating profit margin

As a result of the foregoing factors, operating profit decreased
by approximately RMB709.0 million, or 36.8%, from approximately
RMB1,925.0 million for 2013 to approximately RMB1,216.1 million for
2014. Operating profit margin decreased from 7.6% for 2013 to 4.7%
for 2014.
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Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB243.3 million, or
26.0%, from approximately RMB934.9 million for 2013 to approximately
RMB1,178.2 million for 2014, primarily due to the increased interest
expenses as a result of the increases in the Group’s average amount
and effective interest rates of bank borrowings for 2014 and the
reduced capitalized interest. As a percentage of the Group’s revenues,
finance costs increased from 3.7% for 2013 to 4.6% for 2014, primarily
due to the increased average amount of bank borrowings and the
reduced capitalized interest in 2014.

Profit before taxation

As a result of the foregoing factors, profit before taxation of the
Group decreased by approximately RMB880.3 million, or 93.7%, from
approximately RMB939.4 million for 2013, to approximately RMB59.1
million for 2014.

Income tax

Income tax charges increased by approximately RMB115.5 million, or
144.2%, from approximately RMB80.1 million for 2013 to RMB195.6
million for 2014.

The effective tax rate of the Group increased from 8.5% for 2013 to
330.8% for 2014, which was primarily due to that the Group did not
recognize deferred tax assets in respect of the impairments of property,
plant and equipment and tax losses of the solar power products and
services business.

(Loss)/profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a loss for the year of
approximately RMB136.5 million for 2014, compared with a profit for the
year of approximately RMB859.3 million for 2013.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to non-controlling
interests of the Group decreased by approximately RMB45.3 million, or
15.0%, from approximately RMB302.2 million for 2013 to approximately
RMB256.9 million for 2014.

(Loss)lprofit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company was approximately 393.4 million for 2014, representing a
decrease of RMB950.5 million, or 170.6%, from a profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of approximately RMB557.1 million
for 20183.
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Analysis of Segment Results DEBHEESH
The following table sets out the Group’s segment revenues, segment
gross profit and segment operating profit, each as a percentage of total
Group revenues, Group gross profit, and Group operating profit for the

TR DRI 5 & £20144F K20135F12831H
IEFEAEEN D BUYA - BFIMLEFE
UREaEHEEEEAEEWRA - EFMLE

years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively: ZRENE O :
2014 2013
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
AE®EET) (ANEEEET)
Environmental protection and BRRBERALR
energy conservation solutions
Environmental protection: R
Revenue WA 9,134.7 35.7 10,082.5 39.7
Gross profit E7 1,615.4 37.8 1,620.1 427
Operating profit E 1,106.9 91.0 1,204.1 62.6
Energy conservation solutions: i
Revenue WA 3,689.3 14.4 1,044.5 41
Gross profit EH 381.5 8.9 210.0 55
Operating profit EE R 264.6 21.8 139.3 7.2
Segment revenues BN 12,824.0 50.1 11,127.0 438
Segment gross profit 2HEF 1,996.9 46.7 1,830.1 48.2
Segment operating profit AHEERE 1,371.5 112.8 1,343.4 69.8
Renewable energy equipment TBERRRBERERRE
manufacturing and services
Wind power products and services: EEERRES :
Revenue WA 9,454.0 36.9 6,916.4 27.2
Gross profit Syl 1,909.2 44.6 1,432.7 37.8
Operating profit E I 643.6 52.9 536.9 27.9
Solar power products and services: A g Em kR -
Revenue WA 2,919.4 11.4 71735 28.2
Gross profit EH 180.2 4.2 399.0 10.5
Operating profit EE R (767.4) (63.1) 413 2.1
Segment revenues 2 EA 12,373.4 48.3 14,089.9 55.4
Segment gross profit 2HEF 2,089.4 48.8 1,831.7 48.3
Segment operating profit AHEERE (123.8) (10.2) 578.2 30.0
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Environmental Protection and Energy Conservation Solutions
Environmental protection
Revenue

Revenue from the environmental protection business decreased
by approximately RMB947.8 million, or 9.4%, from approximately
RMB10,082.5 million for 2013 to approximately RMB9,134.7 million for
2014. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue
from the Group's NOx emission reduction business, which was partially
offset by the increase in revenue from the Group’s SO, emission
reduction business. Revenues generated from the SO, emission
reduction business increased by approximately RMB1,256.2 million, or
an increase of approximately 49.4% as compared to the corresponding
period of 2013. The growth in revenues from the SO, emission reduction
business was primarily attributable to the increased market demand
stimulated by the air pollution control initiatives promulgated by the
PRC government in 2013. Revenue generated from the NOx emission
reduction business decreased by approximately RMB2,282.4 million,
or a decrease of approximately 44.3%. The decrease in revenue from
the Group's NOx emission reduction business was primarily attributable
to the decreased scale of investment in and construction of the power
stations in the PRC for the year.

The following table sets out the revenues from the business lines
comprising the Group’s environmental protection business, each as
a percentage of the revenue from this business, for years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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2014 2013
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AE¥EET) (AE¥EET)
SO2 emission reduction ik 3,799.7 41.6 2,543.5 25.2
NOx emission reduction iR 2,874.9 315 5,157.3 511
Low NOx combustion equipment ERIMER 811.9 8.9 917.7 9.1
Water treatment KEHE 1,201.9 13.1 1,286.2 12.8
Ash removal BE 446.3 49 177.8 1.8
Total Fhy 9,134.7 100.0 10,082.5 100.0
SO. emission
reduction
It 6%
SO. emission 25.2%

Low-NOx
combustion
Lqumnun

reduction
kqmplmm
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. 2014 41.6%

Low-NOx combustion
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the environmental protection business decreased
by approximately RMB943.1 million, or 11.1%, from approximately
RMB8,462.4 million for 2013 to approximately RMB7,519.3 million for
2014. This was mainly due to the decrease in cost of sales for the NOx
emission reduction business, partially offset by the increase in cost of
sales for SO, emission reduction business, which were consistent with
the changes in revenues from these business lines.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing factors, gross profit attributable to the
environmental protection business was approximately RMB1,615.4
million for 2014, which remained stable as compared to the gross
profit of approximately RMB1,620.1 million for 2013. Gross profit
margin for this business increased from approximately 16.1% for 2013
to approximately 17.7% for 2014. The increase in gross profit margin
was primarily attributable to the increases in gross profit margins for
the desulfurization EPC and denitrification EPC businesses, which was
because of the relatively high gross profit margins of some projects and
the decreased engineering costs as a result of the Group’s centralized
management and optimized designs in 2014.

The following table sets out the changes in gross profit margins for
the business lines comprising the Group’s environmental protection
business for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared with the
year ended December 31, 2013:
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% %

SO, emission reduction PR AR 15.3 14.6
NOx emission reduction iRz 221 14.3
Low NOx combustion equipment KRR &t 23.1 30.6
Water treatment KRR 22,5 22.9
Ash removall % EE 9.2 18.2
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2013

2014
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Energy conservation solutions
Revenue

Revenue attributable to the energy conservation solutions business
increased by approximately RMB2,644.8 million, or 253.2%, from
approximately RMB1,044.5 million for 2013 to approximately
RMB3,689.3 million for 2014. The revenue growth was mainly
attributable to the revenue contribution from the Group’s general
contracting for power stations business. The increase in revenue from
waste heat recovery business and the revenue generated from the
Group’s boiler comprehensive utilization and retrofitting business also
contributed to the revenue increase from the energy conservation
solutions business.

The following table sets out the revenues from the business lines
comprising the Group’s energy conservation solutions business, each
as a percentage of the revenue from this business, for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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2014 2013
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AE®EET) (AREBET)

Plasma-assisted coal ignition and SEHFREEARENR
combustion stabilization 475.5 12.9 350.7 33.6
Steam turbine flow passage retrofitting AR E RS 55.0 1.5 51.9 5.0
Energy management contract (‘EMC”) EMC 407.3 11.0 397.8 38.1
Waste heat recovery BREN LK 291.2 79 100.7 9.6
General contracting for power stations BuhEREERD 2,420.9 65.6 1434 13.7

Boiler comprehensive utilization MR a R AduE 39.4 1.1 — —
and retrofitting

Total @it 3,689.3 100.0 1,044.5 100.0
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the energy conservation solutions business increased
by approximately RMB2,473.3 million, or 296.4%, from approximately
RMB834.5 million for 2013 to approximately RMB3,307.8 million for
2014. This increase was mainly attributable to the significant increase in
the cost of sales for the Group’s general contracting for power stations
business, consistent with the revenue growth of this business line.

Gross profit and gross profit margins

As a result of the foregoing factors, gross profit attributable to the
energy conservation solutions business increased by approximately
RMB171.5 million, or 81.7%, from approximately RMB210.0 million
for 2013 to approximately RMB381.5 million for 2014. Gross profit
margin for this business decreased from approximately 20.1% for
2013 to approximately 10.3% for 2014. This was primarily due to the
relatively low gross profit margin of the Group’s general contracting
for power stations business, for the reason that the Group’s general
contracting for the power stations business was still at its early stage,
and the increased percentage of revenue contribution from the general
contracting for the power stations business to the Group’s energy
conservation solutions business.

The following table sets out the changes in gross profit margins for the
business lines comprising the Group’s energy conservation solutions
business for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared with the
year ended December 31, 2013:
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2014 10.3
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Renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services
Wind power products and services
Revenues

Revenue attributable to the wind power products and services
business increased by approximately RMB2,537.6 million, or 36.7%,
from approximately RMB6,916.4 million for 2013 to approximately
RMB9,454.0 million for 2014. The increase was mainly attributable to a
substantial increase in the Group’s WTG sales volume as a result of the
increase in demands for WTGs, the Group’s main products of its wind
power products and services business segment, due to the favorable
policies promulgated by the government and the recovery of the wind
power products and services market.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales attributable to the wind power products and services
business increased by approximately RMB2,061.0 million, or 37.6%,
from approximately RMB5,483.7 million for 2013 to approximately
RMB7,544.7 million for 2014, primarily due to a corresponding increase
in the sales volume of WTG units, consistent with the revenue growth in
this business.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, gross profit attributable to the wind power
products and services business increased by approximately RMB476.5
million, or 33.3%, from approximately RMB1,432.7 million for 2013 to
approximately RMB1,909.2 million for 2014. Gross profit margin for
this business decreased slightly from 20.7% for 2013 to 20.2% for
2014. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in gross profit
margin of the wind turbine converter business line, which contributed
a relatively low proportion to the Group’s revenue generated from the
wind power products and services.

Solar power products and services
Revenues

Revenue attributable to the solar power products and services business
decreased by approximately RMB4,254.1 million, or 59.3%, from
approximately RMB7,173.5 million in 2013 to approximately RMB2,919.4
million in 2014. The decrease was mainly due to a significant decrease
in revenue from the Group’s solar power EPC business, which is
attributable to the significant decrease in the Group’s photovoltaic
ground power station EPC projects in 2014, as a result of the impact
by changes in procedures for granting administrative permissions for
construction of photovoltaic ground power stations and the intensified
competition in the solar power products and services industry.
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales attributable to the solar power products and services
business decreased by approximately RMB4,035.3 million, or 59.6%,
from approximately RMBG6,774.5 million for 2013 to approximately
RMB2,739.2 million for 2014, consistent with the revenue decrease in
this business.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, the solar power products and services
business of the Group recorded a gross profit of approximately
RMB180.2 million for 2014, compared to a gross profit of approximately
RMB399.0 million for 2013, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB218.8 million, or 54.8%. The Group recorded a gross profit margin
of approximately 6.2% for 2014, which increased from the gross profit
margin of approximately 5.6% for 2013, primarily due to the increase in
the gross profit margin for the Group’s solar power EPC business, which
contributed a relatively high proportion to the Group’s revenue.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group’s cash is mainly used in operating activities and repayment
of due bank loans in 2014.

The following table sets out the net cash flows of the Group for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the cash and cash
equivalents as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively:
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Net cash generated from/(used in) RS EE (ER) 2,705.6 (697.6)
operating activities ZHEeFE

Net cash used in investing activities REFEHFEA RS IFHE (1,164.3) (1,044.8)

Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEE(FA) EE (2,718.3) 1,979.3
financing activities ZHEeFE

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31  R12A31EMNER L RELEEY 2,456.1 3,633.7
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(1,164.3)
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Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

Net cash generated from the Group’s operating activities for 2014 was
approximately RMB2,705.6 million, as compared to net cash used in the
Group’s operating activities of approximately RMB697.6 million for 2013,
primarily attributable to the Group’s improvement in management of its
trade receivables and therefore achieved a better result in collection of
trade receivables.

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in the Group’s investing activities for 2014 was
approximately RMB1,164.3 million, as compared to approximately
RMB1,044.8 million for 2013. The primary reason for the increase in net
cash used in investing activities was the Group’s sales of certain listed
equity securities in 2013 but the Company did not conduct any such
sales during 2014.

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities

Net cash used in the Group’s financing activities for 2014 was
approximately RMB2,718.3 million, as compared to net cash generated
from financing activities of approximately RMB1,979.3 million for 2013,
primarily due to the Group’s decreased amount of indebtedness during
the year.

Working Capital

As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were approximately RMB2,456.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB1,177.6 million, as compared to approximately
RMB3,633.7 million as of December 31, 2013. As of December 31,
2014, the Group had unutilized bank credits of approximately RMB15.45
billion.

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing net debt
(including interest-bearing other payables and interest-bearing
borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents) by the result of total equity
plus net debt, decreased from 56.6% as of December 31, 2013 to
56.0% as of December 31, 2014. This was primarily due to a decrease
in net debt by approximately RMB589.5 million, partially offset by the
decrease in total equity of approximately RMB141.9 million.

Based on the existing cash resources and unutilized bank credit
facilities, the Directors are of the opinion that the Group will have
enough working capital to support current requirement and daily
operation for the following 12 months.
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Net Current Liabilities

As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s net current liabilities were
approximately RMB1,083.4 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB820.5 million, or 312.1%, as compared to December
31, 2013. The increase was primarily attributable to the increases in
the Group’s trade and bills payables of approximately RMB2,026.7
million and the Group’s other payables of approximately RMB1,447.5
million, and the decrease in cash at bank and in hand of approximately
RMB975.9 million, which were partially offset by increases in the
Group’s trade and bills receivables of approximately RMB2,167.6
million, the Group’s gross amounts due from customers for contract
work of approximately RMB812.1 million and the Group’s deposits,
prepayments and other receivables of approximately RMB708.8 million.

Inventory Analysis

The inventories of the Group were approximately RMB4,504.0
million as of December 31, 2014, which increased by approximately
RMB539.1 million, or 13.6%, from approximately RMB3,964.9 million
as of December 31, 2013. The increase was primarily attributed to
the increase in inventories of the WTGs under manufacture and semi-
finished WTGs. The Group’s inventory turnover days increased to 72.5
days for 2014 from 61.3 days for 2013.

Trade and bills receivables

Trade and bills receivables increased by approximately RMB2,167.6
million, or 11.1%, from approximately RMB19,503.8 million as of
December 31, 2013 to approximately RMB21,671.4 million as of
December 31, 2014. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in trade and bills receivables due to the increased revenue of
wind power products manufacturing business.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables increased
by approximately RMB708.8 million, or 26.5%, from approximately
RMB2,674.5 million as of December 31, 2013 to approximately
RMB3,383.3 million as of December 31, 2014. The increase was
primarily attributable to increase in prepayments paid for procurements
of inventories for the Group’s wind power products and services
business and for construction contracts for the environmental protection
business, and increase in advances to associates.
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Trade and bills payables

Trade and bills payables increased by 12.6% from RMB16,138.9 million
as of December 31, 2013 to RMB18,165.6 million as of December 31,
2014, primarily due to the increase in payables in relation to general
contracting for power stations in the energy conservation solution
business of the Group.

Indebtedness

The following table sets forth the Group’s borrowings as of December
31, 2014 and 2013:
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As of As of

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
7A2014512H318 7 2013F12A31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥E&ET) (AR¥5ET)

Long-term interest bearing borrowings REFHEMER
Bank loans: RITER

Secured Fogaiwii 1,387.4 1,701.1

Unsecured 4mE 3T 3 2,176.6 1,581.2
Other loans HtERK 68.0 —
Corporate bonds NAEfES 4,055.7 4,049.5
Sub-total NaEt 7,687.7 7,331.8
Less: Current portion of long-term borrowings J& : £ B & 73X &9 BN #A 2015 (2,601.0) (599.0)
Sub-total A&t 5,086.7 6,732.8
Short-term interest bearing borrowings EHHEMER
Bank loans: |ITER -

Secured HiK 311.1 892.7

Unsecured Esip 8,745.5 10,185.5
Other loans: HEMER

Secured BHEA 300.0 200.0

Unsecured 4 45 1 125.1 1,400.0
Private placement of AREEEMETA

debt financing instruments 1,373.4 —
Current portion of long-term borrowings RHEE KB RNER (D 2,601.0 599.0
Subtotal ] &&t 134561 18,277.2
Total indebtedness BEAHE 18,542.8 20,010.0
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The Group’s total indebtedness decreased by approximately 7.3%
from approximately RMB20,010.0 million as of December 31, 2013
to approximately RMB18,542.8 million as of December 31, 2014. The
decrease was mainly because the Group collected its receivables to
repay the bank loans and controlled its debt financing. The proportion
of short-term indebtedness to overall indebtedness increased from
approximately 66.4% as of December 31, 2013 to approximately 72.6%
as of December 31, 2014, with a corresponding proportionate decrease
in long-term indebtedness.

All of the Group’s borrowings were denominated in the RMB.
The following table sets out the maturity status of long-term borrowings

(including current portion) as of December 31, 2014 and as of
December 31, 2013, respectively:
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As of As of

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
A2014512831H R2013F12H31H

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR¥EET) (ANR¥EET)
Less than 1 year or on demand 1FERNRIREREE 2,601.0 599.0
More than 1 year but less than 2 years 1F LA EE2F AR 983.1 2,530.5
More than 2 years but less than 5 years 2F PA E1ESF AR 2,269.4 2,490.1
More than 5 years 5F A E 1,834.2 1,712.2
Total A&t 7,687.7 7,331.8

The annualized effective interest rate of the Group for 2014 (determined
by dividing total interest expenses for 2014 by the average of sums
of outstanding borrowings and other interest bearing payables as of
January 1, 2014 and December 31, 2014) was 6.3%, as compared
to the Group’s effective interest rate of 6.0% in 2013. The increase in
the Group’s effective interest rate was primarily due to the decrease
of interest-bearing debts as a result of repayment of bank loans with
collected receivables at the end of 2014.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group’s contingent liabilities increased by approximately 55.6%,
from approximately RMB1,025.1 million as of December 31, 2013
to approximately RMB1,595.2 million as of December 31, 2014. The
Group’s contingent liabilities as of December 31, 2014 primarily
consisted of bid and performance guarantees.
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Material Investments

In 2014, the Group completed its investment of approximately
RMB1,221 million. Among all the investment approximately RMB597
million was invested in infrastructure, mainly in eight projects of
three categories including desulfurization concession, denitrification
concession and photovoltaic electricty generation; approximately
RMB404 million was invested in technical innovation, mainly in technical
upgrades to desulfurization and denitrification concession project;
and approximately RMB220 million was used for acqusition of two
million-unit desulfurization devices for concession business. Our Group
anticipates that these investments collectively would not have material
adverse change in the near term.

Acquisitions and Disposals

Acquisition of Guodian Zhishen

On December 31, 2013, the Group entered into a purchase agreement
to acquire 6.3% of the equity interests in Guodian Zhishen with a
consideration of approximately RMB10.8 million. On January 1, 2014,
the Group and the other shareholder of Guodian Zhishen entered
into a concert party agreement, under which the other shareholder of
Guodian Zhishen agreed to vote in concert with the Group with respect
to, among others, decisions regarding financial and operating policies.
As a result, the Group effectively controlled Guodian Zhishen since
January 2014. Therefore, Guodian Zhishen has been a subsidiary of the
Group since January 2014,

Disposal or deemed disposal of equity interest in three subsidiaries

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group disposed of
100% of the equity interest in Guodian Lucency Puyang Water Co., Ltd.
and Tonghua Guodian Longyuan Environment Engineering Co., Ltd.,
with an aggregate consideration of approximately RMB86,102,000.
Guodian Longyuan Taizhou Co., Ltd. (“Longyuan Taizhou”), a former
subsidiary of the Group, allotted share capital to certain independent
third parties and Longyuan Environment, a subsidiary of the Group.
Upon completion of the share allotment, the percentage equity interest
of Longyuan Environment in Longyuan Taizhou reduced from 100% to
45%. Longyuan Taizhou became an associate of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Market Risk

The Group is exposed to various risks associated with its business
operations, including credit and counterparty risk, interest rate risk,
liquidity risk and exchange rate risk.

Credit and counterparty risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its bank deposits and
cash in-hand, trade and bills receivables, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables, and other non-current assets. The Group has an
internal credit policy to monitor its exposure to its counterparty credit
risk on an ongoing basis.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash is deposited in state-owned or
state-controlled PRC banking institutions. Directors of the Company
consider counterparty risks with these PRC banks insignificant.

The Group performed credit evaluations on all of its customers, and
monitors outstanding receivables due from such customers on an
ongoing basis. The Group’s credit evaluation focuses on a customer’s
payment history and its ability to pay and takes into account industry
and customer-specific considerations, as well as the general
macroeconomic climate. The Group generally requires its customers
to settle progress billings and other debts in accordance with agreed
contract terms.

Interest rate risk

The Company has significant borrowings and its operational activities
are significantly dependent on the availability of credit facilities at
competitive rates. Substantially all of the Company’s borrowings are
denominated in RMB and are owed to PRC bank lenders and non-bank
financial institutions, which are subject to adjustments in interest rates
based on changes in the applicable regulations of the People’s Bank of
China. Accordingly, fluctuations in interest rates may have a significant
impact on the Group’s business, operation and financial condition. The
Company issued corporate bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of RMB4.0 billion in 2012 and completed private placements of debt
financing instruments with an aggregate principal amount of RMB1.35
billion in 2014, both of which are fixed interest rate indebtedness, and
thus are not subject to interest rate risks.

The Group does not currently hedge its interest rate risks through any
derivative instruments or other hedging arrangements.
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Liquidity risk

The Group’s operating cash flows are subject to significant fluctuations,
given the nature of the businesses in which it is engaged. The Group
increasingly carries out its water treatment business through the BOT
business model and its desulfurization business through the concession
business model. While the Group believes that such business models
would help greatly with the development of the Group during its
rising period: they would generate steady cash flows and revenues
for the Group over extended periods, such business models require
substantial up-front capital investment and a longer period to fully
recoup such investments as compared to the traditional business
model of EPC. Accordingly, while the Group aims to ensure that it has
sufficient working capital to meet its operational requirements or has
access to sufficient banking credit facilities to continue its operations
without disruption, the cash flow position of the Group may vary with its
continued growth and expansion.

Exchange risk

The continued development and expansion of the Group’s international
operations is expected to result in increased exposure to exchange
rate risk, arising primarily through export sales which would typically be
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group expects that its future
export sales will principally be denominated in either United States
dollars, Euros or Hong Kong dollars. In 2014, the Group recorded an
exchange loss of approximately RMB9.4 million, mainly because the
Company’s subsidiary, Guodian Technology & Environment Group
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. imported parts of the pitch systems, which
were priced in Euros and Euros depreciated significantly. The Group
has made adjustments in order to mitigate risks in association with
the fluctuation of Euro exchange rates. Directors consider the Group’s
exchange rate risk to be insignificant. The Group does not currently
hedge against its exchange rate risk.

The RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC Government
may at its discretion restrict access to foreign currencies for current
account transactions in the future. Changes in such foreign exchange
controls may adversely affect the Group’s international operations and
sales, and may prevent the Group from satisfying its foreign exchange
denominated obligations. In addition, the Group may be restricted from
paying dividends on its listed H-shares to shareholders by any such
changes in regulations.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Prospects for the year of 2015

Looking forward, the Group is faced with both challenges and
opportunities. On one hand, tighter standards of energy conservation
and emission reduction in China may result in the expansion of the
Group’s environmental protection and energy conservation solutions
business. The Group’s renewable energy equipment manufacturing and
services business may benefit from the development of clean energy
in China and the gradual increase of investment in renewable energy.
Policies such as the proposed “Action Plan for Anti-Water Pollution” ({7k
ST 2677851 #))) , which was issued on  April 2, 2015, are likely to
benefit the development of the Group’s water treatment business. On
the other hand, the Group may face the uncertainties of the electricity
price of renewable energy, a diminishing market for coal-fired power
stations environmental protection and intensified competition.

To leverage on the favorable policies in the PRC, the Group intends to
implement the followings for its continuous development.

Optimizing the Asset Structure

The Group plans to adjust its asset structure and withdraw from
industries and projects in which the Group does not have competitive
advantage. On one hand, the Group seeks to dispose of unprofitable
projects and businesses and concentrates on enhancing its core
businesses. On the other hand, the Group intends to strengthen the
development of new energy projects, such as wind and solar power
stations, and the preparation works of operational projects for coal-
fired power stations and enlarge the scale of its general contracting for
green power stations and EMC businesses.

Strengthening Technology Development

The Group intends to accelerate the industrial application of new
technologies to improve its capability of utilizing the technological
innovation to meet the demands of the Group’s development. The
Group intends to put together its high-quality resources and enhance
its technological potential to achieve the breakthrough in its core
businesses. Meanwhile, the Group expects to offer incentives for
scientific and technological innovations, and motivates the technical
personnel of the Group by connecting the remunerations of the
technical personnel to the profits of science and technology projects.
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Enhancing Service Innovations

The Group expects to establish a supportive system for service
innovations. Regarding clients’ demands as the guidelines, the Group
intends to integrate advanced technologies from every area of its
business, innovate its business model and improve the ability to adapt
to the ever-changing market. The Group intends to assist Beijing
Guodian Sida Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of United Power, to
enhance the WTG repair and maintenance service business, in order
to transform its business from manufacturing to integrated system
design and provision of integrated solutions. The Group also intends to
accelerate the upgrading of services in information service companies,
creating new business models and providing value-added services.

Expanding Market

The Group divides the market into the market within the Guodian Group,
the power market outside of the Guodian Group, the non-electric power
market outside of the Guodain Group and the overseas market. The
Group will analyze the capacity and business rules of each market,
focusing on efficiency and profitability, make diversified marketing
strategies, seize every market change, integrate its market resources
and enhance its market competitiveness comprehensively.

Strengthening centralized management and control

The Group intends to further increase its efficiency by improving
its centralized management. The Group will focus on the financial
indicators, emphasize on meeting targets and strengthen its
management in 2015. The Group expects to further improve the internal
control system by means of, among others, strengthening centralized
purchasing of goods, enhancing budget management, optimizing
designs and production and improving financial management.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
55 EENSREEAE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company currently consists of 11 Directors, including
three executive Directors, four non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The Board of the Company’s
function and responsibility include: convening general meetings;
reporting its work to the general meeting; implementing resolutions
approved by general meetings; deciding on the Company’s business
plans and investment plans; preparing the Company’s annual budget
and final accounts, preparing the Company’s profit distribution plans
and proposals for the increase in or reduction of the registered capital;
and exercising other powers, functions and responsibilities as set out in
the articles of association of the Company. The Company has entered
into a service contract or appointment letter with each of Directors.

The following table sets out certain information relating to Directors
of the Company. The members of the second session of the Board
were re-elected and appointed on the annual general meeting of the
Company held on May 16, 2014. The current term for all the Directors
will expire on May 15, 2017.

55g
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Date of
Appointment/

Name Age Position Date of Joining Re-appointment

e Fie BN A B ZE/ERAY

Mr. YANG Guang 50 Executive Director and Chairman of January 6, 2005 Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
the Board

5 fEE HITESREER 200551 A6H 2014F5A16HEEE

Mr. Wang Zhongqu 53 Non-executive Director May 16, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014

ITRREE FRTES 2014557164 2014F5 R 16 B EZR T

Mr. ZHANG Wenijian 51 Non-executive Director May 16, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014

R E FRTES 2014557164 2014F5 R 16 B EZR T

Mr. FENG Shuchen 51 Non-executive Director September 28, 2004  Re-appointed on May 16, 2014

B Kt FRTES 2004997 28H 2014F5 16 R EE &

Mr. YAN Andrew Y. 57 Non-executive Director June 8, 2012 Re-appointed on May 16, 2014

B ks FNITES 201246 A8H 2014F5 16 EEE

Mr. FEI Zhi 47 Executive Director March 18, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014

E B%4E WITES 20143/ 180 20144516 F EZR T

Ms. WANG Hongyan 51 Executive Director January 1, 2005 Re-appointed on May 16, 2014

EC) Redan WITES 20051 A1RH 2014F5 16 R EE &

Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu 63 Independent Non-executive Director May 16, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014

KEBLZT BAUFNTES 2014557164 2014F5 R 16 B EZR T

Mr. QU Jiuhui 57 Independent Non-executive Director May 16, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014

i A 98 5 A& BAUFNTES 2014557164 2014F5 R 16 B EZR T

Mr. XIE Qiuye 55 Independent Non-executive Director May 16, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014

HINEF L& BAUFNTES 2014557164 2014F5 R 16 B EZR T

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony 54 Independent Non-executive Director November 28, 2011 Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
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Mr. YANG Guang, is an executive Director and the chairman of the
Board of the Company. Mr. YANG joined the Group on January 6, 2005.
Mr. YANG previously served successively as designing chief engineer,
deputy director and director of engineering division of South West
Electric Power Design Institute; deputy chief engineer and director of
project division of South West Electric Power Design Institute; deputy
director and director of economic and trade division of international
department of the State Power Corporation; deputy head of engineering
and construction department, head of international cooperation
department, head of international cooperation and overseas business
department, and head of science-technology and comprehensive
business department of the Guodian Group. Mr. YANG received a
bachelor's degree in power plant hydraulic power from Chongging
University in July 1985. Mr. YANG is a Senior Engineer.

Mr. WANG Zhongqu, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
WANG also serves as the chief supervisor of the Work Safety and the
head of the Work Safety Office of Guodian Group. He joined the Group
on May 16, 2014. He previously served successively as boiler engineer
in Electric Power Research Institute in Hebei Province; engineer and
manager of Production Planning of Electric Power Industry Bureau
of Hebei Province; assistant to manager of Electric Power plant of
Xibaipo branch of Hebei Power Grid; deputy manager of Hengshui
Power plant of Hebei Province; manager and deputy head of the Power
Plant Preparatory Office of Hanfeng Power plant of Hebei Power plant;
deputy head of the Work Safety Office of Guodian Group. Mr. WANG
graduated from Shandong Industry Institution and received a bachelor’s
degree in Thermal Power. He also obtained a master’s degree in power
engineering from Huabei Electric Power University. Mr. WANG is a
Senior Engineer.

Mr. ZHANG Wenjian, is a non-executive Director of the Company and
also serves as the head of the Technology and General Industry Office
of Guodian Group. Mr. ZHANG joined the Company on May 16, 2014.
He previously served successively as deputy head of the Electric Usage
Office, head of the Electric Dispatch Office, manager of the Production
Planning, assistant of the director, deputy director of Hengshui Electric
Power Bureau; secretary of the party committee of Hanfeng Power
plant; director of Xingtai Power plant; deputy head and head of the
marketing department of Guodian Group. Mr. ZHANG graduated from
Huabei Electric Power College and obtained a bachelor’'s degree from
Power plant and Electric Power System. He also received a master’s
degree from Huabei Electric Power University in technology economy
and management. Mr. ZHANG is a Senior Engineer.
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Mr. FENG Shuchen, is a non-executive Director of the Company and
serves concurrently as president of GD Power and the general manager
assistant of the Guodian Group. Mr. FENG joined the Group on
September 28, 2004. Mr. FENG previously served successively as chief
manager of Chaoyang Power Plant; deputy chief manager and chief
manager of Guodian Power Datong No. 2 Power Plant; vice president
and president of the Company; and head of the human resources
department of the Guodian Group. Mr. FENG graduated from North
China Electric Power University and received a master's degree in
control theory and control engineering. Mr. FENG is a Senior Engineer.

Mr. YAN Andrew Y., is a non-executive Director of the Company
and serves concurrently as the founding managing partner of SAIF
Partners. Mr. YAN joined the Group on June 8, 2012. He also previously
served as lead engineer at Jianghuai Aviation Instrument Factory;
economist of Washington headquarter of the World Bank, researcher
of Hudson Institute in the US and director for strategic planning and
business development for the Asia Pacific region of Sprint International
Corporation successively; and managing director and head of Hong
Kong office of AIG Asia Infrastructure Fund. Mr. YAN majored in
airplane design and obtained his bachelor's degree in engineering
from Nanjing Aeronautic Institute (now named as Nanjing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics). Mr. YAN also studied at a master’s
program in sociology at Peking. He has also obtained a master of arts
in international political economy from the Princeton University.

Mr. FEI Zhi, is the executive Director and President of the Company.
Mr. FEI joined the Group on March 18, 2014. He previously served
successively as deputy head of the Technology and Education Office
of Tianshenggang Power Plant; manager of the Fuel Department,
Maintenance Department, manager assistant of Nantong Tianshenggang
Power Co, Ltd.; chief manager of Nantong Tianshenggang Power
Co, Ltd.; deputy chief manager of Longyuan Power Group Co., Ltd.
(“Longyuan Power”). Mr. FEI graduated from Shanghai Electric Power
College and received a bachelor's degree in production automation.
He also obtained a PHD's degree from Jiangsu University in science of
management and engineer. Mr. FEI is a Senior Engineer.

Ms. WANG Hongyan, is an executive Director and chief accountant
of the Company. Ms. WANG joined the Group on January 1, 2005. Ms.
WANG previously served successively as financial executive of China
Longyuan Power Group Corporation and vice president of Long Wei
Power Technology Co., Ltd.; deputy manager of department of finance
of GD Power; and deputy chief accountant and manager of department
of finance of the Company. Ms. WANG received a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from Renmin University of China (No. 1 Branch) in July
1987. Ms. WANG is a Senior Accountant.

BREXE AARRFERTEST - BAAL
ARETHEEHAKE BEEEEAELE
BhIE o )5 £ R2004F9A28H MA AL -
BEAERTHGEERME BEENKRE
E_RERFEHR F_REHHRE -
ARFRBEERELE  BEEEANE
REBEF - BAEERERENLETHNKRE K&
B EmEEH TRREEELEBMN 5L
SRR TR -

B ®EE REARFENTEE ATAE
ETMEEEENBIREREGRA - HELAE
20126 HBA MMA KR A RA] - e £ FEET
EMZEEERMEE TIRAD - FERUEH AR
BREEER EEREHEARMAARE
Sprint International Corporationgs /A [& &5 B 17
BIREREREEE  AGEMEAREHERER
£ /)% A FEmerging Markets Partnership
CEFHRRBERBEBPRLAEFE -HAREE
¥R RAMESER CRERMEMRAZE) R
BRAEE WESIRESBEL2 K%L
EBERIERREREHESBE T 246G W&
FEMETE XS EBRBUA K EE 24 -

B ERE BARARTESRBAKRE-
B ER2014F3818BMAREE - B A
FEEREAZERUBEHAERIBE BB
FEBBRBERDAMBDBEEEE BB
HAETE AEEDE BRRAEBRE
ERARBRLE BREHNSERMDERA
RI(ERELABKE -BEEEENE
BENER  ESLEEBREADLLEEEL
B NEXERTIHASEENERTIIER
¥ESHLEN - BAEEa R TRRAM-

IRt AARRRITES KA -
T L2+ HR2005F1A1BMALAER - T4+
EAERENSBEARUBKEE EHESE
RO BRARBBREE  BEENYB
HRIEE  ARA BB ARY B PERE -
FRTRIB7TFTRAEERFRARKRE—S
RIGTESSHEBELTEN - FTHITEIRE

5 -




54

2014 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EF EENSHEEAER(E)

Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu, is an independent non-executive Director of
the Company. Ms. ZHANG joined the Group on May 16, 2014. Ms.
ZHANG currently serves as a senior advisor of China Power Investment
Corporation, director of Aluminum Corporation of China and a director
of China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Group.
Ms. ZHANG served successively as deputy director of construction
machinery department, deputy director of research division, assistant
to director, deputy head and head of Electric Power Construction
Research Institute of Ministry of Electric Power; director of technology
department of Ministry of Electric Power; head of science and
technology education bureau, head of environmental science and
technology department of State Power Corporation; deputy president
of China Power Investment Corporation. Ms. ZHANG received a master
degree from Xi'an Jiaotong University. Ms. ZHANG is a professor-level
senior engineer.

Mr. QU Jiuhui, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Qu joined the Group on May 16, 2014. Mr. QU Jiuhui
currently serves as a researcher and the director of academic degree
evaluation committee of Research Center for Eco-environmental
Sciences, Chinese Academy of Sciences. Mr. QU serves concurrently
as vice chairman in All-China Environment Federation, vice chairman of
Chinese Society for Environmental Sciences, vice chairman of Chinese
Society for Sustainable Development, a member of the National
Advisory Council on Environment, and a member of Expert Committee
for Project 863. Mr. QU previously served as the deputy director and
the director of Research Center for Eco-environmental Sciences. The
research field of Mr. QU is focused on Science and Technology on
water quality as well as Water Pollution Control. Mr. QU has been
nominated as an independent non-executive director of Dongjiang
Environmental Company Limited (00895.HK; 002672.5Z). Mr. QU Jiuhui
graduated from Harbin University of Civil Engineering and Architecture
with a PhD degree. Mr. QU was elected as an academician of China
Academy of Science in 2009.

Mr. XIE Qiuye, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. XIE joined the Group on May 16, 2014. He currently
serves as president, executive director, general manager of Electric
Power Planning & Engineering Institute. Mr. XIE served successively
as deputy chief engineer and vice president of Northwestern Electric
Power Design Institute, deputy president and chief engineer of China
Power Construction Engineering Consulting Corporation, manager
of power generation branch of China Power Engineering Consulting
(Group) Corporation and president of Central Southern China Electric
Power Design Institute. Mr. XIE Qiuye graduated from Chongaging
University with a bachelor degree in thermal energy. Mr. XIE is a
professor-level senior engineer and a national investigation and design
master.
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Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. FAN joined the Group on November 28, 2011. Mr.
FAN received his MBA degree from University of Dallas, USA. Mr. FAN
serves concurrently as chairman and managing director of AsialLink
Capital Limited. Mr. FAN also serves as independent non-executive
director in the following companies listed on the Main Board of Hong
Kong Stock Exchange: Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (00220.HK),
Raymond Industrial Limited (00229.HK), Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited (00563.HK), China Development Bank
International Investment Limited (01062.HK), Technovator International
Limited (01206.HK), Renhe Commercial Holdings Company Limited
(01387.HK), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (02882.
HK), CITIC Resources Holdings Limited (01205.HK), LT Holdings
Limited (00112.HK) and Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited
(06868.HK).

Board of Supervisors

The board of Supervisors of the Company consists of five members.
Except that employee representative Supervisors are elected by
employees, Supervisors are elected by the Shareholders of the
Company. Supervisors serve a term of three years after which they
may be re-elected or re-appointed. The responsibilities of the board
of Supervisors include, amongst others, reviewing and verifying the
financial report, business report and profit distribution plan prepared
by the Board of Directors, and (upon doubt, if any) appointing certified
public account and certified public auditor to examine again the
financial information of the Company; supervising financial activities
of the Company; supervising the performance of Directors, president
and other senior management and safeguarding against any breach
of the law, administrative regulations and provisions of the articles of
association of the Company in the course of discharging their duties;
requiring Directors, president and senior management to correct actions
that may harm the interests of the Company and exercising other rights
granted to them by the articles of association of the Company.

Supervisors

The following table sets out certain information relating to the
Supervisors of the Company. The members of the second session of
the board of Supervisors were re-elected and appointed on the annual
general meeting of the Company held on May 16, 2014. The current
term for all the Supervisors will expire on May 15, 2017.
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Date of
Appointment/Election/

Name Age Position Date of Joining Re-appointment

] i B AR R/ EE/ERBH

Mr. SHAO Guoyong 48 Chairman of the Board of Supervisors May 16, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014
AR B S A4 EEeR 201457 16H 2014516 H BT

Mr. XU Xingzhou 53 Supervisor May 16, 2011 Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
RV Pt EE 2011457 16H 2014516 H B Ei®

Mr. CHEN Jingdong 50 Supervisor May 16, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014
RERLE EE 2014457 16H 2014516 H BT

Ms. HE Lili 39 Employee Representative Supervisor March 18, 2014 Elected on May 16, 2014
AIEBRt BIRREE 201443 18H 201455 416 R &2

Mr. LI Wei 41 Employee Representative Supervisor March 10, 2008 Re-elected on May 16, 2014
FREE BIRREE 2008437 10H 2014516 H B Ei®

Mr. SHAO Guoyong, is the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
of the Company. Mr. SHAO joined the Group in May 16, 2014. He
serves concurrently as head of the financial management department
of the Guodian Group. Mr. SHAO previously served successively as
financial director of Shenzhen Branch of the North East Electric Power
Design Institute; financial director of Singapore Tech-Winoverseas
and Malaysia Desheng Engineering; chief accountant and head of
financial department of North China Electric Power Design Institute;
deputy manager of the financial department of Datang International
Power Generation Co., Ltd.; deputy finance manager and finance
manager of GD Power; chief of the funds settlement center of the
department of finance and property rights of Guodian Group; president
and the chairman of the board of the Guodian Finance Corporation
Ltd; president of the China Guodian Capital Holdings Ltd.; chairman
of the board of Old Mutual-Custodian Life Insurance Co. Ltd. and
the president of Changjiang Property & Casualty Insurance Co., Ltd.
Mr. Shao has obtained bachelor degree of financial accounting from
Renmin University of China. He also obtained a MBA degree from
Tsinghua University of China. Mr. SHAQO is a Certified Accountant.

Mr. XU Xingzhou, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. XU joined
the Group on May 16, 2011. He serves concurrently as head of the
human resource department of the Guodian Group. Mr. XU previously
served successively as deputy director and director of the Salary
and Insurance Division of human resource department of State Power
Corporation; deputy head of the human resource department of the
Guodian Group; chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Guodian
Sugian Company and Guodian Kaiyuan Company; and head of the
Social Insurance Center of the Guodian Group. Mr. XU received a
bachelor’'s degree in management engineering from Jilin University in
July 1983. Mr. XU is a Senior Economist.
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Mr. CHEN Jingdong, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. CHEN joined
the Group on May 16, 2014. He currently serves as the head of the
capital management and property management department of Guodian
Group. Mr. CHEN previously served as assistant engineer in the Power
Application Sector, Department of Power Generation, Ministry of Water
and Electricity, engineer in the Power Application Sector, Department
of Power, Ministry of Energy, assistant to the general manager of
Longyuan Electric of China Longyuan Power Group Corporation; the
deputy director of the power application sector of safety operation
division of the electric power department; deputy director of the urban
power network renovation group of security division of the electric
power department; director of the transmission and transformation
division of the safety transmission department of State Grid Corporation
of China; deputy general manager and secretary of the board of
directors of GD Power. Mr. CHEN received his master degree in
electric power system and automation from Beijing Graduate School of
North China Electric Power University and a master degree in business
administration from The University of Texas at Arlington College of
Business. Mr. CHEN is a senior engineer.

Ms. HE Lili, is the employee representative Supervisor of the Company.
Ms. He joined the Company on March 18, 2014. She currently serves as
the leader of the disciplinary team and the chairman of the labor union
of the Company. Ms. He previously served as a technician of rubber
plant production division of Sinopec Beijing Yanshan Company, deputy
head of politics and work department and head of human resources
department of Guodian Group. Ms. He received an MBA degree from
Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics. Ms. He is a senior
administration engineer and a senior economist.

Mr. LI Wei, is an employee representative Supervisor of the Company.
Mr. Li joined the Group on March 10, 2008. He serves concurrently as
manager of the audit department of the Company. Mr. Li previously
served successively as deputy director of the audit department and
vice president of the financial department of China National Electronic
Materials Corporation; deputy chief accountant of United Power; and
vice president of supervision and audit department and president of
supervision department (Disciplinary Office) of the Company. Mr. Li
received a bachelor degree in economics from Hangzhou Institute of
Electronics Engineering and an MBA degree from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics. Mr. Li is a senior accountant.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The following table sets out certain information relating to the senior
management of the Company.

SREEAE

TRBIEREAABRERABNETE
B o

Name Age Position Date of Joining
HE Fie BEBM A B

Mr. FEI Zhi 47 President and Executive Director March 18, 2014
E Bxa BEBRATES 201443 A18H
Ms. WANG Hongyan 51 Chief Accountant and Executive Director January 1, 2005
Byl (R g mEMRRTES 200541 A1H
Mr. WANG Gonglin 55 Vice President December 26, 1998
T RMEE Blaiers 19984 12 426 H
Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong 39 Vice President November 1, 2010
REER T4 Blaiers 201011 A1H
Mr. YANG Dong 42 Vice President January 18, 2001
B REHE Bl 200141 A18H

Mr. TANG Dejun

FISERE 46 and General Counsel
BlABIR EEGWE - REEERM
Mr. CAl Zhaowen 46 Vice President
IR A& Bl e
Mr. FEI Zhi — Please see details under the heading “Board of

Directors” above.

Ms. WANG Hongyan — Please see details under the heading “Board
of Directors” above.

Mr. WANG Gonglin, is vice president of the Company. Mr. WANG
serves concurrently as the chairman of the board and the president of
Guodian Longyuan Power Technology and Engineering Co., Ltd. Mr.
WANG joined the Group on December 26, 1998. Mr. WANG served as
deputy chief engineer of Xuzhou Combustion Institute, chief engineer of
Zhuhai Zhongdian Co. (¥k)8# & A 7)), president of Yantai Development
Zone Longyuan Combustion Control Engineering Co., Ltd. (fB&
@ FEIRIRIENT]), vice president and then president of Longyuan
Technology, president of the engineering company. Mr. WANG received
a master's degree in thermal measurement and automation from
Northeast Dianli University in January 1990 and is a Senior Engineer.

Vice President, Secretary of the Board of Directors

February 5, 2007
20074 2H5H

March 18, 2014
2014437 18H
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Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong, is vice president of the Company. Mr. ZHANG
serves concurrently also as chairman of the board of directors of
Guodian Zhishen and Beijing Huadian Tianren Power Controlling
Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. ZHANG joined the Group on November 1,
2010. Mr. ZHANG previously served as project principal of Energy
Conservation Information Dissemination Center and project principal
of project construction division of Information Center of the State
Economic and Trade Commission; deputy director of research and
consulting division of the SASAC’s Information Center and director
of application and development division of the SASAC'’s Information
Center. Mr. ZHANG majored in electric technology and received a
bachelor's degree from Taiyuan Heavy Machinery Institute. Mr. ZHANG
also received an MBA degree from Beijing University of Aeronautics
and Astronautics. Mr. ZHANG is a Senior Engineer.

Mr. YANG Dong, is vice president of the Company. Mr. YANG also
serves as the chairman of Beijing Lucency Environment and Technology
Co, Ltd. (“Lucency”) Mr. YANG joined the Group on January 18, 2001.
Mr. YANG previously served as thermal mechanical engineer of North
China Electric Power Design Institute; project engineer of ABB Beijing
Representative Office; manager of engineering department of Longyuan
Environment; president of Beijing Longyuan Environmental Engineering
Co., Ltd; and assistant to president and manager of the department
of technology management, and chief engineer of the Company. Mr.
YANG received his bachelor's degree in thermal power engineering
from Shanghai Jiao Tong University and an MBA degree from Renmin
University of China. Mr. YANG is a Professor-level Senior Engineer.

Mr. TANG Dejun, is vice president Directors of the Company. Mr.
TANG also serves concurrently as secretary to the Board, joint
company secretary of the Company, general counsel and chairman
of the board of Longyuan Technology. Mr. TANG joined the Group on
February 5, 2007. He previously served as director of department of
finance of China Center for Information Industry Development; chief
financial officer and secretary of board of directors of CCID Consulting
Co., Ltd.; manager of finance department of the Company; vice
president and chief accountant of Longyuan Technology, and president
of Board Office and Securities and Financing Department. Mr. TANG
received a bachelor’'s degree in economics from Hangzhou Institute of
Electronics Engineering and a master’s degree of economics in finance
from Central University of Finance and Economics. Mr. TANG is a
Senior Accountant.
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Mr. CAl Zhaowen, is vice president of the Company. Mr. CAIl also
serves as the chairman of Guodian United Power Co, Ltd. Mr. CAI
joined the Group on March 18, 2014. Mr. CAIl previously served
successively as executive vice president of Yinchun Xinganling Wind
Power Co., Ltd., Yilan Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. and Yenan
Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd.; director of planning and development
department of Longyuan Power and general manager assistant and
director of planning and development department of Longyuan Power.
Mr. CAl graduated from Tsinghua university, where he received the
bachelor’s degree in hydraulic structure and environmental engineering,
and master's degree in business management. Mr. CAIl is a senior
engineer.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. TANG Dejun — Please see the subsection above under the
heading of “Senior Management”.

Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen, is joint company secretary of the Company.
Mr. WONG joined the Group in November 2011. Mr. WONG is a fellow
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Approved Supervisor
to train its prospective members, a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG
served as senior company secretary, senior company accountant and
authorized representative of CCID Consulting Co., Ltd (08235.HK)
(2006-2011). Mr. WONG received a bachelor's degree in International
Business with his major in China trade from City University of Hong
Kong in 1993. Afterwards, he obtained postgraduate accounting
diploma at University of Lethbridge, Canada. He received a bachelor’s
degree with honours in accounting from Oxford Brooks University in
2006 and a joint International Master of Business Administration degree
from Tsinghua University and Massachusetts Institute of Technology,
USA in 2009.
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The Board of the Company hereby presents to Shareholders this Annual
Report and the audited financial statements as of, and for the year
ended, December 31, 2014 (the “Financial Statements”).

Share Capital

As of December 31, 2014, the total issued share capital of the Company
was RMB6,063,770,000, divided into 6,063,770,000 shares of RMB1.0
each, including 4,754,000,000 domestic shares and 1,309,770,000 H
shares. Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 37(c) to the Financial Statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
December 31, 2014.

Pre-emptive Rights

According to the articles of association of the Company or the PRC law,
there are no provisions for pre-emptive rights requiring the Company
to offer new shares to the existing shareholders of the Company in
proportion to their shareholdings.

Principal Business

The Company is principally engaged in (1) environmental protection and
energy conservation solutions, and (2) renewable energy equipment
manufacturing and solutions. The Company offers diversified products
and services and uses various business models in its business
operation. Details of subsidiaries and associates of the Company are
set out in Note 19 and Note 20 to the Financial Statements respectively.

Results

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 are set out in the audited
Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group performance during the year
and material factors underlying its results and financial position are set
out in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual
Report.
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Profit Distribution

The Board recommends not to distribute the final dividend for the year
ended December 31, 2014.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Company and its subsidiaries during the year are set up in Note 14 to
the Financial Statement.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 37(a) to the Financial Statements, among
which, details of reserves available for distribution to the shareholders
as of December 31, 2014 are set out in Note 37(e) to the Financial
Statements.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 are set out in Note 30 to the
Financial Statements.

B 2k

BEEEEHETREHE2014F12A8318 1L F
EZREBKE -

ARBREMBRRYME BFEMRRERE
FENEHFBTHNM B RRME14-
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

The following table sets forth certain

information concerning the

Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company as of

December 31, 2014.

EEgWms (B8)

EE ESVSREERAER

TRIER2014F12831HARBEE « &
ENSREEABNETER -

Directors
E=x
Date of Appointment/
Name Position in the Company Re-appointment
HE BAEXRR BB = /EEABH

Mr. YANG Guang
B oess

Mr. WANG Zhongqu
FTRERE

Mr. ZHANG Wenjian
RXEELE

Mr. FENG Shuchen
R B A&

Mr. YAN Andrew Y.

Mr. FEI Zhi
E BRAE

Ms. WANG Hongyan
Eap] ognn

Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu
KRBT

Mr. QU Jiuhui
H A BB S A
Mr. XIE Qiuye
HIXE S

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony
BIOERE

Executive Director and Chairman of the Board

HITEFREER

Non-executive Director
FEITES
Non-executive Director
FEITES
Non-executive Director
FEITES
Non-executive Director
FEITES

Executive Director

HITES

Executive Director

HITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUIFRITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUIFRITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUFRITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUFRITES

Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
20145516 R EHE

Appointed on May 16, 2014
2014F5 A16HER T

Appointed on May 16, 2014
2014F5 A16HER T

Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
2014F5 316 B & &EE

Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
20145516 R EHE

Appointed on May 16, 2014
2014F5 16 HER T

Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
20145516 R EHE

Appointed on May 16, 2014
2014F5 16 HER T

Appointed on May 16, 2014
2014F5 16 HER T

Appointed on May 16, 2014
2014F5 16 HER T

Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
20145516 R EHE
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Supervisors

E=E

Date of Appointment/Election/
Name Position in the Company Re-appointment
HH BEARR BB RIEEEERAH

Mr. SHAO Guoyong
ARED BB 5 A

Mr. XU Xingzhou
FF BN 5 4

Mr. CHEN Jingdong
PRER L&

Ms. HE Lili
AEEL L

Mr. LI Wei
F BE4E

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
EFEGEF

Supervisor

EE

Supervisor

EE

Employee Representative Supervisor

BIRREE

Employee Representative Supervisor

BTHRRES

Appointed on May 16, 2014
20146516 B EZ T

Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
20145516 R EEHE

Appointed on May 16, 2014
20146516 B EZ T

Elected on May 16, 2014
20145 16 B &5

Re-elected on May 16, 2014
20145516 R EHE

Senior Management

BREEAE

Name Position in the Company Date of Joining
HE BERR AR A B 58

Mr. FEI Zhi President and Executive Director March 18, 2014
B Bi4E BIEEEMITES 201493/ 18H

Ms. WANG Hongyan
Byl hogen

Mr. WANG Gonglin
T RMEE

Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong
REER A

Mr. YANG Dong
B REL

Mr. TANG Dejun
BISERLE

Mr. CAl Zhaowen
B

Chief Accountant and Executive Director

mEtRRITES

Vice President
BlBasie

Vice President
BlBasie

Vice President
BlBasie

Vice President, Secretary to the Board
and General Counsel
BB REETEWE REEERM

Vice President
BlBasie

January 1, 2005
200541 H1H

December 26, 1998
19984 12 H26H

November 1, 2010
201011 A1H

January 18, 2001
200141 H18H

February 5, 2007

2007%2H5H

March 18, 2014
201443 H18H
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The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and considers that all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent of the
Company.

Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management
are set out in the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of this
Annual Report.

Service Contracts of the Directors and Supervisors

Each of the executive Directors and Supervisors of the Company has
entered into a service contract with the Company, and each of the
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company, on May 16,
2014 (or June 8, 2012, in the case of Mr. YAN Andrew Y.; or May 16,
2011 in the case of Mr. FENG Shuchen; or November 28, 2011, in the
case of Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony). Each service contract is preliminarily
for a term of three years commencing from May 16, 2014. Each letter
of appointment is for a term of three years commencing from May 16,
2014 (or June 8, 2012, in the case of Mr. YAN Andrew Y.; or May 16,
2011, in the case of Mr. FENG Shuchen; or November 28, 2011, in the
case of Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony) with a one-year automatic renewal
clause.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors
has entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company are set out in Note 9 to the Financial Statements.

Interests of Directors and Supervisors in Contracts

At any time during the year of 2014, there was no contract of
significance to the Group’s business in which the Company and its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director or supervisor had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year
or at the end of the year.

EEgnE (8)

RARERIBGEBULFATEFRESTE
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Interests of Directors in Competing Business

During the year of 2014, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors
and their associates had any competing interests in any business which
competed, or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group:

EERNGERBNES

H2O14F A - B T BEE SN B E
FRABEANEMRAEELHEE LMY
A L T AL AL B R T R A AT
5T ¢

Name of Directors

EEpS

Position in the Company

RA T

Other Interests

Hth s

Mr. YANG Guang Executive Director and chairman of

the Board

B ekt HITEFERESFER

Mr. WANG Zhongqu Non-executive Director

Director of Science and Comprehensive Industry
Department of Guodian Group®™
HEEEBRERGS

EEMEEO

Safety production supervisor of Guodian Group, and

the head of Work Safety Division

ITRREE FBITES

Mr. ZHANG Wenjian Non-executive Director

HEEEREEERERLELEENTME

Head of Technology and General Industry Division of

Guodian Group

RXERE FHITES

Mr. FENG Shuchen Non-executive Director

EEBMXELES

EEMEE

President of GD Power and general manager

assistant of the Guodian Group

ot l= FHITES

.EE'EE

B REEEEAKEDE

Notes:

(1) Mr. YANG Guang ceased to be the chief of Science and Comprehensive
Industry Department of Guodian Group since March 18, 2014.

Interests and Short Positions of the Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As of December 31, 2014, Mr. YAN Andrew Y., a non-executive Director
of the Company, was interested in 288,200,000 shares of the Company.
Please refer to “-Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares” for
more information. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors,
supervisors and senior management of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be registered in the register referred to therein, or which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

HiiE

(1) BBX LA B2014F3R18B ETBRIEEE
BRI EGEEXETEE -

EE EEREREEAERK
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20145128318 - AR R IEHMITE S Mk
Je HE ¥ 7K A 5] #9288,200, oooﬂxﬁxfﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁfé/\ o
BEZERFERI— TERERBG 2 ES
BEXHEEEZN ARASES - m$
REREEANB B EE AR A E (A A5 5B
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares TEREARGOZ2ER

R2014F 128318 - MEFAA > TA AL
(KRRESE EZhahEBABKRIIN R
ARA B AERE D P A RIEGES K
EAEBY EXVERFE2M3D BB AN A T HE

As of December 31, 2014, so far as known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be

disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of ZRERFIKRAE -
the SFO:
Number Percentage in
of Shares/ the Relevant Percentage in
Name of Underlying  Class of Share the Total Share
Shareholders Class of Share Capacity Shares Held Capital® Capital®
BER® EEEREER e
BRREE 2B 13 8 5l =20} HERGHE ZBEZHO Ep Al
(Share) % %
(#) % %
Guodian Group Domestic shares Interests of beneficial owner 4,754,000,000 100.00 78.40
BEEE NE B and controlled corporation (Long position)
EnBEREARRBERARZER (478)
GD Power Domestic shares Interests of beneficial owner 2,376,500,000@ 49.99 39.19
HEE NE K ERBAEACER (Long position)
(%)
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. H shares Interests of beneficial owner 288,200,000® 22.00 4.75
B ks HAR and controlled corporation (Long position)
EnBREARRBERRZER (478)
SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. H shares Interests of beneficial owner 288,200,000 22.00 4.75
H and controlled corporation (Long position)
EnBEREARRBERRZER (478)
SAIF IV GP LP H share Interests of beneficial owner 288,200,000@ 22.00 4.75
H% and controlled corporation (Long position)
BB ARRERA 2 #R (HH8)
SAIF Partners IV L.P. H shares Interests of beneficial owner 288,200,000 22.00 475
HAR BEmlEA AR (Long position)
(F#8)
State Grid International H shares Interests of beneficial owner 89,505,000 6.83 1.48
Development Limited H#& BEnlA AR (Long position)
BREMERER (478)
BRRA
National Council for H shares Interests of beneficial owner 77,310,000 5.90 1.27
Social Security Fund  HB& BmlEA A2 #Em (Long position)
of the PRC (H#2)
2EMHEREES

BEE
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Notes:

(1) This percentage is calculated on the basis of the number of underlying
shares/total shares that had been issued by the Company as of December
31, 2014.

(2) The Guodian Group holds, directly or indirectly, 100% of the domestic
shares of the Company via GD Power. As of December 31, 2014, Guodian
Group has 48.09% of the interests in the total shares of GD Power and
GD Power has 49.99% of the domestic shares of the Company. Therefore,
Guodian Group is deemed to have the interests in the domestic shares of the
Company possessed by GD Power.

(3) Mr. YAN Andrew Y. holds 22.00% of the H shares indirectly via SAIF Partners
IV L. P. through SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. and SAIF IV GP LP. He is the
controlling shareholder of SAIF IV Capital Ltd., SAIF IV GP LP, and SAIF
Partners IV L. P. SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. is the controlling shareholder of
SAIF IV GP LP. SAIF IV GP LP is the controlling shareholder of SAIF Partners
IV L.P. SAIF Partners IV L.P. has 22.00% of the H shares. Therefore, Mr. YAN
Andrew Y., SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd., and SAIF IV GP LP are deemed to have
the interests in the H shares held by SAIF Partners IV L. P.

Management Contracts

The Company did not enter into any contract in respect of the
management or administration of the entire or any significant part of
the business of the Company nor such contract subsisted at any time
during 2014.

Connected Transactions

The Company has entered into certain contracts with its connected
persons (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules). These
transactions were monitored and managed by the Company in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Bist
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ZEDLRUAARQRR2014F128318 B 317
WM& R fEROBBEHE -

HEEEZAREE HEEKEERFE100%H
NE R - R2014F12A318 - IEEERERE
BENRMGBETHEEL8.09%MEDR  BEE N
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LPHI#ERZ AR R » SAIF IV GP LPZSAIF Partners
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Non-exempt connected transactions of the Group during 2014 are as T BN EBR2014FE N R EZ P HE
follows: RS :

(1) Non-exempt One-off Connected Transaction (1) TEHRRE - XAHERERS

During the year of 2014, the Group had conducted the following
non-exempt one-off connected transaction.

Provision of Loan by Longyuan Environment to Guizhou
Longyuan

On August 22, 2014, Longyuan Environment, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan agreement (the
“Loan Agreement’) with Guizhou Longyuan Wengfu Environment
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Guizhou Longyuan”), pursuant to which,
Longyuan Environment agrees to provide a shareholder loan (the
“Loan”) in a principal amount of no more than RMB400.0 million
to Guizhou Longyuan. The term of the Loan shall be one year
commencing from August 22, 2014 to August 21, 2015. The interest
rate applicable to the Loan under the Loan Agreement shall be the
benchmark lending interest rate announced by the People's Bank
of China for comparable loans. Guizhou Longyuan shall repay the
Loan together with the interest accrued thereon on August 21,
2015, when the term of the Loan expires. Guizhou Longyuan may
prepay the whole or any part of the Loan with prior written approval
of Longyuan Environment. Longyuan Environment may request
Guizhou Longyuan to prepay the whole or any part of the Loan at
any time during the term of the Loan. Guizhou Longyuan shall repay
the principal and the interest accrued thereon, as requested by
Longyuan Environment and within ten (10) business days upon it
receives the notice from Longyuan Environment.

Longyuan Environment is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Longyuan Environment holds 55% of Guizhou Longyuan’s
total equity interest. Guodian Duyun Power Generation Co., Ltd.,
a 55%-owned subsidiary of Guodian Guizhou Power Co., Ltd.
(“Guodian Guizhou”), owns 15% of equity interest in Guizhou
Longyuan. Provision of Loan by Longyuan Environment to Guizhou
Longyuan constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratio
is more than 0.1% but less than 5.0%, the provision of the Loan
by Longyuan Environment to Guizhou Longyuan shall be subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement as set out in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(2) Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

The Group has entered into certain non-exempt continuing
connected transactions during 2014.

2014%F AEEEHRUT TN ER® — X
MRER S -

FERRREEMERIEREN

2014F8H22H - AR BIHMEENE A A
ERRRESMNEREERAREAR
ARI(EMNERDITVEZRBE ([EX
WiElD B ERRREEEEIMER
RETZRARBI0VOEETALEN
REREERK - BRI B2014F8H220 =
2015%F8H21A B i—F - BEFXHEE
TERNBERAFEAATEARRITAM
AALREFNELEEEFR X - EMNER
AREE B R EE M 'R KX2015F8 A
IR EFRHRE R ERFE - BMNEE
RAERTEE R AN ER - EASL
BAERRANSHEILE - BRRERAUE
FREABR A BE S Bk & M BERIRATEE 2 5T
HEBMER - EMEFRBR K EFRRR
MR ERRENEZZNT(10)EE
¥BRREMASEREFE -
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For the continuing connected transactions item numbering one, two,
three, and seven, the Company has obtained approvals from the
independent shareholders on the annual caps for the year 2014. For
the continuing connected transaction items numbering four, five and
six, the Company has obtained approvals from the Board and has
published announcements on the annual caps for the year 2014.

The table below has set out the annual caps and the actual

BE—E -F-BE FTEMBELESE
FEXSHME @ NAFEM014FFEE L
RESKREASH ABB HEME F
FBERBEANEFEREISIME ARQA]
EB204FFE LRAESSIEIE
Wt FIZE QS o

o

TREVNFELREZEFAERERHH

transaction amounts of such continuing connected transactions:

ERRHEE

Connected Party

HBER

Transaction Type

b E Ll

Actual
Transaction

Cap for 2014 Amount for 2014

20145 2014 FE
EELR BEXZSH

(RMB million)

(RMB million)

(AE¥BET) (ARKBFZT)

Guodian Group
B5E

Guodian Group
B EEE

United Power

BEBN

United Power

BAEN

Longyuan Technology

BETR BT

Longyuan Technology
BEJR Bl

Guodian Finance
B E B 75

Provision of products and services by
the Group to Guodian Group and its
subsidiaries

HAEEMEEEEREMERR
RHE R LIRS

Provision of products and services by
Guodian Group and its subsidiaries to
the Group

HEEEERANBATMAEE
RAEm MR

Provision of products and services by
the Group to United Power and its
subsidiaries

HAEEMBEAS N RAMERR
RME @ KRS

Lease of properties by the Group to
United Power and its subsidiaries

MAKERBESS N LENBARLEME

Provision of products and services by
the Group to Longyuan Technology and
its subsidiaries

B 7R £ B M BE R R R B A R
RAEm MR

Provision of products and services by
Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries
to the Group

m%%%ﬁ&ﬁwgﬁﬁﬂ$%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁ
ail

Provision of deposit services by
Guodian Finance and its subsidiaries
to the Group

HEEHBEERENE ARG
) 72N 5 (B 4R 1 77 SRR 7%

26,400.0 12,452.7
3,5600.0 658.1
1,313.0 585.2

30.0 241
10.0 9.1
86.0 16.5
2,000.0M 1,570.6(
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Note:

(1) These numbers represent the maximum daily balance of the deposit

placed with Guodian Finance by the Group.

. Provision of products and services by the Group to
the Guodian Group and its subsidiaries (other than the
Group)

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services
with the Guodian Group on November 23, 2011, amended by
a supplemental agreement, and a second, a third and a fourth
supplemental agreement on May 7, 2012, August 28, 2012,
November 11, 2013 and August 22, 2014, respectively (the
“Guodian Master Agreement”).

Material terms and conditions of the Guodian Master Agreement
are set out as follows:

Pursuant to the master agreement, the goods and services
to be provided by the Group to the Guodian Group and its
subsidiaries (other than the Group) include:

e Environmental protection and energy conservation solutions
services segment: (i) environmental protection products
(including, among others, ash removal, water treatment and
denitrification catalyst); (ii) energy conservation products
(including, among others, plasma-assisted coal combustion
equipment); (iii) environmental protection services (including,
among others, desulfurization concession service,
denitrification concession service, desulfurization EPC
service, denitrification EPC service, water treatment BOT
service); and (iv) energy conservation services (including,
among others, steam turbine flow passage improvement
service and EMC); and

e Renewable energy equipment manufacturing and integrated
solutions services segment: (i) WTGs and their parts and
components; (i) solar power products; (ii) wind power
services including wind farm EPC services; and (iv) solar
power services (including, among others, solar station EPC
services).

If the terms and conditions of similar products and services
offered by an independent third party are no better than those
offered by one party, the other party shall give priority in
sourcing the requisite products and services from the first party.

EEgnE (8)
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The Group and the Guodian Group and its subsidiaries (other
than the Group) will enter into separate agreements which shall
set out the specific scope of products and services, terms and
conditions of providing such products and services according to
the principles laid down by the master agreement.

The term of Guodian Master Agreement will expire on December
31, 2017. Either party may terminate the master agreement upon
giving the other party at least three months’ written notice.

The products to be provided under the master agreement will be
based on the following pricing policy:

(1) government-prescribed price (including any price prescribed
by any relevant local government, if applicable);

(2) where there is no government-prescribed price but there is a
government-guidance price, then the government-guidance
price;

(8) where there is neither a government-prescribed price nor
a government-guidance price, the market price, which is
defined as the price at which the same type of products and/
or services are provided by the independent third parties in
the ordinary course of business; or

(4) where none of the above is applicable or where it is not
practical to apply the above pricing policies, then the price
agreed between the relevant parties shall be based on arm’s
length negotiation and shall be the reasonable costs incurred
in providing the products plus reasonable profits.

The above pricing mechanism is hereinafter referred to as the
“Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.”

The services to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the following pricing policy:

(1) the bidding price where the bidding process is required; or
(2) where no bidding process is involved, the market price.

The above pricing mechanism is hereinafter referred to as the
“Applicable Standard Services Pricing Policy.”
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The Group would be accorded priority by the Guodian Group
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) in the provision of
the relevant products and services, provided that the terms
and conditions offered by an independent third party to the
Guodian Group and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are
no more favorable than those offered by the Group for the same
products or services, and in return, under the same terms and
conditions, the Group has undertaken to the Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) that it shall not provide
products and services which are less favorable than those
offered by the Group to independent third parties.

Guodian Group is the controlling shareholder of the Company
and is, together with its subsidiaries, a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for
2014 was RMB26,400.0 million and the actual transaction
amount during the reporting year was RMB12,452.7 million.

. Provision of products and services by the Guodian Group
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) to the Group

The Company entered into the Guodian Master Agreement in
good faith and at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products
and services with the Guodian Group on November 23, 2011,
amended by a supplemental agreement and a second, a third
and a fourth supplemental agreement on May 7, 2012, August
28, 2012, November 11, 2013 and August 22, 2014 respectively.

Please refer to relevant disclosure under “-1. Provision of
products and services by the Group to the Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group)” for material terms and
conditions of the master agreement.

Goods and services to be provided by the Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) to the Group include:
desulfurization equipment, denitrification equipment and water
supply, electricity supply, gas supply and consulting services.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for
2014 was RMB3,500.0 million and the actual transaction amount
during the reporting year was RMB658.1 million.
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3. Provision of products by the Group to United Power and

its subsidiaries

The Company entered into a master agreement with United
Power in good faith and at arm’s length for provision of products
to United Power and its subsidiaries on November 23, 2011
amended by a supplemental agreement with United Power on
November 11, 2013 (the “United Power Master Agreement”).

Pursuant to this agreement, the products to be provided to
United Power and its subsidiaries by our Group are parts and
components of WTGs.

Material terms and conditions of the United Power Master
Agreement are set out as follows:

Subsidiaries of both parties will enter into separate agreements
which shall set out the specific scope of products and services,
terms and conditions of providing such products and services
according to the principles laid down by the agreement.

The products to be provided under the agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.

The agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 2016. Either party may terminate the agreement upon giving
the other party at least three months’ written notice.

The Company owns 70%, while Longyuan Power owns 30%,
of equity interest in United Power. As Longyuan Power is a
63.68% owned subsidiary of the Guodian Group, the Company’s
controlling shareholder, United Power is therefore an associate
of the Guodian Group. Therefore, United Power is the connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(4) and Rule
14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules. The subsidiaries of United Power
are the Company’s connected persons under Rule 14A.11(4)
and Rule 14A.11(6) of the Listing Rules. The result of the
transactions between United Power and its subsidiaries and the
Group will be eliminated in consolidation because United Power
is the Company’s connected person as well as its subsidiary.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for
2014 was RMB1,313.0 million and the actual transaction amount
during the reporting year was RMB585.2 million.
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4. Lease of properties by the Group to United Power and its

subsidiaries

The Company entered into a supplement agreement with United
Power in good faith and at arm’s length on November 11, 2013
which amended the master leasing agreement (the “Leasing
Agreement”) with United Power dated November 23, 2011.

Material terms and conditions of the Leasing Agreement are set
out as follows:

The Company agreed to lease land and buildings to United
Power and its subsidiaries as offices, production facilities,
workshops and staff quarters;

United Power and its subsidiaries are not entitled to sub-lease
or transfer any of the leases to another party without prior written
consent from the Company;

The Leasing Agreement is for a term of three years ending
on December 31, 2016 as extended by the supplemental
agreement, and is subject to compliance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules by us, renewable upon mutual agreement of
the parties;

During the term of the leases for the properties, the parties to
each lease will bear their own taxes in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations;

United Power has warranted that it and its subsidiaries will
pay the rents specified for each of the properties in a timely
manner and that United Power and its subsidiaries shall use the
properties in accordance with the leases and not do or allow
any damage to the value of the properties;

The rights and obligations of the parties under the master
leasing agreement are not transferable; and

The rent for each of the leases has been determined for the
three year period with reference to comparable properties in
similar locations as specified in each of the leases and (where
applicable) will be adjusted in accordance with the terms of
the lease by mutual agreement or by the appointment of an
independent valuer acceptable to both parties. However, any
such increment in rent has to be reasonable and no higher than
the rent that would otherwise be payable by an independent
third party paying market rent for similar properties.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for
2014 was RMB30.0 million and the actual transaction amount
during the reporting year was RMB24.1 million.
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5. Provision of products and services by the Group to

Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith
and at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and
services with Longyuan Technology on November 23, 2011,
amended by the supplemental agreement, second supplemental
agreement and third supplemental agreement dated July 31,
2012, November 11, 2013, and August 22, 2014, respectively
(the “Longyuan Technology Master Agreement’).

Material terms and conditions of the Longyuan Technology
Master Agreement are set out as follows:

Pursuant to the Longyuan Technology Master Agreement, the
products and services to be provided to Longyuan Technology
and its subsidiaries by the Group include distributed control
system (DCS) and accessories, and on-site assembling and test.

If the conditions of similar products and services and the fees
payable thereof offered by an independent third party are not
better than those offered by one of the parties, the other party
shall give priority in sourcing the requisite products and services
from the first party.

The Group and Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries
will enter into separate agreements which shall set out the
specific scope of products and services, terms and conditions
of providing such products and services according to the
principles laid down by the agreement.

This agreement will expire on December 31, 2016. Either party
may terminate the master agreement upon giving the other party
three months’ written notice.

The products to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy; the services
to be provided under this agreement will be based on the
Applicable Standard Services Pricing Policy.

Longyuan Technology is the Company’s 23.25% owned
subsidiary. As of the latest practicable date, Hero Asia (BVI)
Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Longyuan
Power, owns approximately 18.8% of equity interest in Longyuan
Technology. Given that Longyuan Power is a subsidiary of the
Guodian Group, Longyuan Technology is a connected person
of the Company under Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules. The
subsidiaries of Longyuan Technology are the connected persons
of the Company under Rule 14A.11(6) of the Listing Rules. The
result of the transactions between Longyuan Technology and its
subsidiaries and the Group will be eliminated in consolidation
because Longyuan Technology is the Company’s connected
person as well as its subsidiary.
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The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for
2014 was RMB10.0 million and the actual transaction amount
during the reporting year was RMB9.1 million.

. Provision of products and services by Longyuan
Technology and its subsidiaries to the Group

The Company entered into the Longyuan Technology Master
Agreement in good faith and at arm’s length on the mutual
supply of products and services with Longyuan Technology on
November 23, 2011, amended by the supplemental agreement,
second supplemental agreement and third supplemental
agreement dated July 31, 2012, November 11, 2013, and August
22, 2014, respectively.

Disclosures regarding the material terms and conditions of the
Longyuan Technology Master Agreement are set out above
under “5. Provision of products and services by the Group to
Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries”.

Pursuant to this master agreement, the products and services
to be provided to the Group by Longyuan Technology and its
subsidiaries include plasma ignition and stable combustion
equipment, and other products and services including low NOx
combustion products and solutions and waste-heat recovery
products and services.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for
2014 was RMB86.0 million and the actual transaction amount
during the reporting year was RMB16.5 million.

. Provision of deposit services by Guodian Finance and its
subsidiaries to the Group

The Company entered into a finance services framework
agreement with Guodian Finance in good faith and at arm’s
length on the provision of financial services by Guodian Finance
to the Group on July 31, 2012, amended by a supplemental
agreement on December 10, 2013 and a second supplemental
agreement on August 22, 2014 (the “Finance Services
Framework Agreement”).

Material terms and conditions of the Finance Services Framework
Agreement are set out as follows:

Pursuant to the Finance Services Framework Agreement,
the services to be provided by the Guodian Finance and its
subsidiaries to the Group include (i) deposit services; (ii) loan
services; and (iii) other financial services.
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Under the agreement, Guodian Finance has promised that the
financial services provided to the Company will not be less
favorable than those offered to other members of Guodian Group
network, or those provided by commercial banks or comparable
services.

The Company and its subsidiaries will utilize the financial
services of Guodian Finance on a voluntary and non-compulsory
basis and is not obliged to engage Guodian Finance for any
particular service.

Guodian Finance and its subsidiaries may, from time to time,
enter into separate individual financial service agreement with
the Company and its subsidiaries for the provision of specific
financial services, subject to the terms and conditions of the
agreement.

The duration of the agreement is for a term of three years, with
retroactive effect commencing on January 1, 2012 and with an
expiration date on December 31, 2014.

The services to be provided by Guodian Finance and its
subsidiaries under the agreement will be based on the following

pricing policy:

(1) Deposit services: interest rates for deposit services shall
not be lower than any of the following: (i) the benchmark
deposit interest rates published by the People’s Bank of
China (“PBOC”) from time to time for the same category of
deposits; (ii) the interest rates offered to other members of
Guodian Group network by Guodian Finance for the same
category of deposits; and (iii) the interest rates offered to the
Company and its subsidiaries by any commercial bank for
the same category of deposits.

—
N
—

Loan services: interest rates shall be no higher than any of
the following: (i) interest rates 10% lower than the interest
rates published by the PBOC from time to time for the same
category of loans; (ii) the interest rates offered to other
members of Guodian Group by Guodian Finance for the
same category of loans; and (iii) the interest rates offered to
the Company and its subsidiaries by commercial banks for
the same category of loans.

(8) Other financial services: the interests or service fees
charged for other financial services (i) shall comply with
the standard rates as promulgated by the PBOC or China
Banking Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) from time to time
(if applicable); (ii) shall be no higher than or equal to the
interests or service fees charged by commercial banks or
other financial institution for comparable services; and (iii)
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shall not be higher than the interests or service fees charged
by Guodian Finance for comparable services to other
members of Guodian Group network.

The term of the Finance Service Framework Agreement will
expire on December 31, 2017.

The Guodian Group is controlling shareholder of the Company
as defined under the Listing Rules and thus a connected person
of the Company. Guodian Finance is a subsidiary of the Guodian
Group, and is therefore a connected person of the Company.

The maximum daily deposit balance placed by the Group with
Guodian Finance and its subsidiaries (including any interest
accrued thereon) for 2014 was RMB2,000.0 million and the
actual maximum daily balance during the reporting year was
RMB1,570.6 million.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed each of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been conducted:

(1) in the usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable
transactions to determine whether they are on normal commercial
terms, from the perspective of the Group, on terms no less favorable
than the terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with relevant agreement governing the relevant
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Chapter 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s auditor
was engaged by the Board of the Company to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the
work performed, the auditor of the Company confirmed to the Board
of Directors of the Company that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions:

(1) have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;
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(2) involving the provision of goods and services by the Group were
priced in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group stipulated
under the relevant agreements governing such transactions;

(3) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded the relevant annual cap as disclosed in the
relevant announcements.

The auditor has issued his letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group on pages 69 to 79 of this Annual Report in accordance with
rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor's letter has
been provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no related party transaction set out in Note
41 to the Financial Statements falls into the category of connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules.

Compliance with Non-Competition Agreement

The Company entered into the non-competition agreement with the
Guodian Group and GD Power respectively on November 23, 2011
(“Non-Competition Agreement”).

Pursuant to the agreement, Guodian Group and GD Power provided
certain non-competition undertakings to the Company and granted
the options and pre-emptive rights to acquire the retained business
and any new business opportunities of Guodian Group or GD Power
(as the case may be) to the Company. Pursuant to the agreement, the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company are responsible
for reviewing and considering whether or not to exercise such options
and pre-emptive rights and are entitled, on behalf of the Company, to
review the implementation of the undertakings under the arrangement
on an annual basis.

During the year, the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company have reviewed the implementation of the Non-Competition
Agreement and confirm Guodian Group and GD Power has been in full
compliance with the agreement and there was no breach by Guodian
Group and GD Power.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the purchase from the Group’s
five largest suppliers in aggregate contributed 15.0% of the Group’s
total purchase for the year, among which, the total purchase from the
largest supplier contributed 6.6% of the Group’s total purchase for the
year.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the sales to the Group’s five
largest customers in aggregate contributed 57.2% of the Group’s total
sales for the year, among which, the sales to the largest customer
contributed 48.6% of the Group’s total sales for the year.

Guodian Group’s subsidiaries as the Group’s customers mainly include
GD Power and Longyuan Power which are all the Group’s connected
person. Save as disclosed above, during the year, so far as the
Directors are aware, none of the Directors, associates of Directors
or any shareholders of the Company (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in the Company’s five largest suppliers or five largest
customers during the year.

Retirement and Employees Benefit Scheme

Details of the Group’s retirement and employees benefit scheme are set
out in Note 7(a) to the Financial Statements.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices

As a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Company strives to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
practices and complies with the code provisions as set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual
Report for details.

Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and so far as
the Directors are aware, not less than 21.6% of the issued share capital
of the Company was held by the public as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this Annual Report, which was in compliance with
the requirements under the Listing Rules.
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Material Litigation and Arbitration

Litigation. As disclosed in the Company’s 2012 annual report,
2013 interim report, 2013 annual report and 2014 interim report, on
September 29, 2012, a bank sued Guodian Solar Co., Ltd. (“Guodian
Solar”) and its associated company, requiring the repayment of a loan.
According to the judgment of the Intermediate People’s Court of Wuxi,
Jiangsu province on July 29, 2013, the court dismissed the plaintiff's
claim demanding Guodian Solar to take on additional liability and
ordered the associated company to pay the loan. The plaintiff appealed
to the High People’'s Court of Jiangsu Province. On May 30, 2014, the
High People’s Court of Jiangsu Province dismissed the claim in a final
verdict and confirmed the judgment by the intermediate court and held
that Guodian Solar assumed no additional liability.

In 2014, certain suppliers sued a subsidiary of the Group for overdue
payables with additional interests and liquidated damages. As of
the date of this annual report, the subsidiary reached settlement
agreements with some of these suppliers and agreed that the
subsidiary should repay the overdue payables without any additional
interests and penalties. For the unresolved claims, the total amount of
the interests and penalties claimed by the suppliers was approximately
RMB5.83 million.

International Arbitration. As disclosed in the Company’s 2013 interim
report, 2013 annual report, and 2014 interim report, a subsidiary of
the Group was named as a respondent in an arbitration case at the
Singapore International Arbitration Centre for a contractual dispute
arising from a joint effort in certain research and development
matters. As stated in the notice of arbitration dated July 16, 2013
and the statement filed by the applicant on November 25, 2013, the
applicant asked for a compensation of approximately RMB324.0
million plus interest and cost from the subsidiary for its alleged breach
of contractual obligations. The subsidiary responded and denied all
of the allegations and submitted its defense and counterclaims to
the arbitral tribunal, alleging the other party’s defaults, requesting
termination of the contract and raising a counterclaim of approximately
RMB78.7 million. The case was heard by the tribunal at the Singapore
International Arbitration Centre from December 16 to 19, 2014. Based
on the facts and the legal advice it has received, the Group believes
that the subsidiary has duly performed its obligations pursuant to the
contract and the claims are without merit. The Group believes that
the proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
business, results of operations or financial position. The Group thus has
not made any provisions for the claim.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended December 31, 2014, the
Company was not involved in any material litigation or arbitration.
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Audit Committee

The 2014 annual results of the Group and the Financial Statements
as of, and for the year ended, December 31, 2014 prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.

Auditors

KPMG and Union Power Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) were appointed as the Company’s international and PRC
auditors, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2014. The
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014
of the Company prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards have been audited by KPMG. KPMG has been
appointed by the Company since the date of preparation of its listing.
The Company’s former PRC auditors, RSM China Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) (“‘RSM China”) was merged
with Crowe Horwath Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) and the former RSM China ceased to exist. The Board
of Directors of the Company appointed Union Power Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) as the Company’s new PRC
auditors on December 27, 2013 to fill the vacancy, which was also
approved on the 2013 AGM of the Company. Details of change of PRC
auditors of the Company are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated February 16, 2014. An ordinary resolution will be proposed at the
Company’s 2014 AGM to re-appoint KPMG and Union Power Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) as the international
and PRC auditors of the Company, respectively.

By order of the Board

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
Chairman of the Board

Mr. YANG Guang

Beijing, China, March 27, 2015
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In 2014, to protect the interests of shareholders and the Company, and
in compliance with relevant laws and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company, the Board of Supervisors of the Company
(the “Board of Supervisors”) had effectively exercised its supervision
authority over the meeting-convening and decision-making procedures
of the Board of Directors for compliance with relevant laws, regulations
and the articles of association of the Company. During this reporting
year, the main work of the Board of Supervisors is as follows:

1. Meetings the Board of Supervisors Convened in
2014

The Board of Supervisors convened four meetings in 2014

1. The first meeting in 2014 of the first session of the Board
of Supervisors was held on March 28, 2014, at which
the Company’s resolutions regarding 2013 annual report
(the review draft), the announcement of annual results for
2013, the annual profit distribution plan for 2013, and the
report of the Board of Supervisors were considered and
approved.

2. The first meeting in 2014 of the second session of the
Board of Supervisors was held on May 16, 2014, at which
the resolution regarding election of the chairman of the
Board of Supervisors of the Company was considered
and approved.

3. The second meeting in 2014 of the second session of the
Board of Supervisors was held on August 22, 2014, at
which the Company’s resolutions regarding 2014 interim
report (the review draft), the announcement of interim
results for 2014, the 2014 interim financial statements of
the Company, and the 2014 interim profit distribution plan
were considered and approved.

4, The third meeting in 2014 of the second session of the
Board of Supervisors was held on October 31, 2014, at
which the resolution regarding the amendments of the
rules of procedures of the Board of Supervisors was
considered and approved.
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Work Undertaken by the Board of Supervisors

In 2014, the Board of Supervisors mainly undertook the following
work:

During the reporting year, the Board of Supervisors duly
reviewed the Company’s operation plan and development plan
and proposed reasonable suggestions and advice to the Board
of Directors. The Board of Supervisors actively and effectively
performed its supervision duties over significant decisions
and implementations by the Company’s senior management to
ensure compliance with the laws, regulations, and the articles of
association of the Company, in order to protect the interests of
shareholders.

The Board of Supervisors carefully reviewed and approved the
Directors’ Report by the Board of Directors and reviewed the
financial report and the dividend distribution plan which are to
be presented at 2014 annual general meeting. The Board of
Supervisors is of the opinion that the members of the Board
of Directors, President and other senior management of the
Company strictly complied with the principles of integrity,
performed their duties diligently, exercised their powers in
the best interests of the Company, and discharged their
responsibilities in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company. Meanwhile, the Company’s operations have
been further standardized and its internal control system has
been improved. The Company’s connected transactions were
in the overall interest of the Company’s shareholders and were
on fair and reasonable terms. The Board of Supervisors has not
discovered that any of the Directors or senior management had
abused their power or any of their actions were prejudicial to the
interests of the Company or shareholders of the Company, or
violated the laws, regulations and the Articles of the Association
of the Company.

The Board of Supervisors is satisfied with the financial status
and operational results in 2014. The Board of Supervisors is
confident in the prospect of the Group.
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By Order of the Board of Supervisors

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Company Limited*
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

Mr. SHAO Guoyong

Beijing, China, March 27, 2015
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Corporate Governance Practices

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed to improving
its corporate governance, which is considered an ingredient essential to
the creation of values for Shareholders. The Company has established
a modern corporate governance structure, which comprises a number
of independently-operated and effectively-balanced bodies, including
general meetings of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, the Board
of Supervisors and senior management, by referring to the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has adopted the Code as its own corporate
governance practices. During 2014, the Company had complied with
the principles and provisions of the Code, and in some circumstances
adopted the best practices recommended by the Code.

Corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
summarized below.

1. The Board

The Board exercises its powers and functions in accordance
with the provisions as set out in the articles of association
of the Company. In the best interests of the Company and
its Shareholders, the Board reports to the general meetings,
implements the resolutions passed thereon and is accountable
to the general meetings.

1.1 Composition of the Board

As of December 31, 2014, the Board consisted of 11
Directors, including three executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors.
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A

TEERRE (B)

Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

1. The Board (Continued)

1.1

Composition of the Board (Continued)

The biographical details of the Directors as of this
Annual Report are set out in the section headed Director,
Supervisor and Senior Management of this Annual Report.
There are no relationships (including financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationship) among
members of the Board. The structure of the Board is well
balanced with each Director having sound knowledge,
experience and expertise on the business operation and
development of the Group. All Directors are well aware of
their joint and several responsibilities to the Shareholders.

Since the listing of the Company, the Board has been
in compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
regarding the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors; the Board has also been in
compliance with 3.10A of the Listing Rules to appoint
independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-third of the board . Furthermore, the qualifications
of all four independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are in full compliance with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules. In
addition, the Company has received annual confirmations
from all independent non-executive Directors as to their
respective independence in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company therefore considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be in compliance
with the independence requirements as set out in the
Listing Rules.

The Board of the Company’s function and responsibility
include: convening general meetings; reporting its work to
the general meeting; implementing resolutions approved
at general meetings; deciding on the Company’s business
plans and investment plans; formulating the Company’s
annual financial budget and final accounts; formulating
the Company’s profit distribution plans and proposals for
the increase in or reduction of the registered capital; and
exercising other powers, functions and responsibilities as
set out in the articles of association of the Company. The
Company has entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with each of the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

1.

The Board (Continued)

1.1

Composition of the Board (Continued)

The Company firmly believes that the increasing diversity
at the board level is one of essential elements in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development, therefore, the Company
formulated Board Diversity Policy. While determining the
composition of the Board, the Company shall consider
the diversity of the Board from various perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experiences, skills,
knowledge and service tenure, and finally make decisions
based on the value of candidates and contributions they
can be brought to the Board. The appointment of the
members of the Board shall be oriented by the need of
skills and experiences of the Board for its overall good
operation, and follow the principle of selecting talented
people, while fully considering the abovementioned
diversity goal and requirements of the diversity. The
Nomination Committee will report the composition
of the Board at a diversity level in the annual report
each year, supervise the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any amendments to the Board Diversity Policy when
necessary and propose such amendments to the Board
for the approval of the Board.

Certain information concerning the incumbent Directors
of the Company is set out in the table below. The current
term of all the Directors of the Company will expire on
May 15, 2017.
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TEERRE (B)

Corporate Governance Practices (Continued) TEERER(E)
1. The Board (Continued) 1 BEg (&)
1.1 Composition of the Board (Continued) 1.1 EFEHAK(E)
Date of
Appointment/
Name Age Position Re-appointment
®E Fie B ZI/EEAH
Mr. YANG Guang 50 Executive Director and Chairman of the Board Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
5 rE4E WIEERESR 20144516 B EE R
Mr. Wang Zhongqu 53 Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
ITAREE FHTES 2014516 HEER T
Mr. ZHANG Wenjian 51 Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
RXEELE FRTES 20144516 B ER T
Mr. FENG Shuchen 51 Non-executive Director Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
B R L FNTES 2014516 A E %
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. 57 Non-executive Director Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
M omrsE FRTESR 2014554168 EE 2
Mr. FEI Zhi 47 Executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
B Bi4 HTEF 2014F5 416 HEER T
Ms. WANG Hongyan 51 Executive Director Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
IRt HITES 2014F5 16 EE %
Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu 63 Independent Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
REBLZL BIUFNTESE 201445 A 16 B EER T
Mr. QU Jiubhui 57 Independent Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
thABEE BUFNTES 2014F5 16 HER T
Mr. XIE Qiuye 55 Independent Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
HINE & BUERTES 201456516 A X T
Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony 54 Independent Non-executive Director Re-appointed on May 16, 2014

BLELE BUFHITES 20145 A 16 EE R
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1.

The Board (Continued)

1.2

Director’s Continuous Training and Development

In compliance with Rule A6.5 of the Code and to ensure
that the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant, during the reporting year, the
Company arranged and funded suitable training for
all Directors such as holding special training sessions
covering topics including notifiable transactions under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the issuer’s
continuing obligations under Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules.

Besides the trainings provided by the Company, Directors
have also developed their professional skills through
various ways, including attending forums, seminars and
public lectures.

As of December 31, 2014, all Directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. YANG Guang, Mr. FElI Zhi, Ms. WANG
Hongyan. Mr. WANG Zhongqu, Mr. ZHANG Wenjian,
Mr. FENG Shuchen, Mr. YAN Andrew Y., Ms. ZHANG
Xiaolu, Mr. QU Jiuhui, Mr. XIE Qiuye, and Mr. FAN Ren
Da Anthony, had participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills as required by Rule A6.5 of the Code.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

1. The Board (Continued)

1.3

Board Meetings

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
the Board is required to hold at least four Board meetings
each year, which shall be convened by the Chairman of
the Board. A notice of at least 14 days shall be given for
a regular board meeting. The notice shall state the time,
venue and means by which the board meeting will be
convened.

Except for the Board’s consideration of matters in relation
to connected transactions as set forth in the articles of
association of the Company, the quorum for a board
meeting is the majority of all the Directors. A Director may
attend the board meeting in person, or appoint another
Director in writing as his proxy to attend the board
meeting. The secretary to the Board of the Company
is responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes
of board meetings and ensuring that such minutes are
available for inspection by any Director.

During 2014, the Board held seven meetings in total,
including three meetings held by the first session of the
Board and four meetings held by the second session of
the Board. Presence of Directors at board meetings is as
follows:

—_

ER(E

BEARRCARER) MR
T EEEEFELZRAMEK
TE EFSCRHEFRA
E-THEFEFZENEH
RIZED14RFELBA - BAE
PR &% A FARE - 2
S

BRARBKABERFIRESE
EeEAUEISETENER
N BEECEHEERAARTHEE
EHEHART -BEANE
BE2mMEFEEE TANE
EBETHEMESEAEZZR
EREEFEESESH A4
REECWEZRERENRE
EEC TR THERES
BB ZS G-

R2014FE  EFEHETT
tReER - EPE—EEEE
BB F_EEEE
BRTGANR -BEELFES

SEHEBERAT -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

2014 &8

HENEBREBROHERLE

ALl A N

CEEARRE (B)

Corporate Governance Practices (Continued) TCEEERER (&
1. The Board (Continued) 1. BEEe (&)
1.3 Board Meetings (Continued) 1.3 EF225(E)
The First Session of the Board
F-EESS
Number of
Meetings Attendance
Name Position in the Company Attended/Held Rate %
HE R
" E AR E B BRRE HEE%
Mr. YANG Guang Executive Director and 3/3 100
B fkaE Chairman of the Board™
HITEEREERY
Mr. CHEN Feihu Non-executive Director® 3/3 100
BR AR AT 5 A4 EMITER®
Mr. YE Weifang Non-executive Director® 3/3 100
EERFEE EMITERO
Mr. LI Hongyuan Non-executive Director® 3/3 100
FRELE FEHITE R
Mr. FENG Shuchen Non-executive Director 3/3 100
SRR S A FMITES
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. Non-executive Director 3/3 100
E s EMITESR
Ms. WANG Hongyan Executive Director 3/3 100
FreiLt WITE=R
Mr. LU Yanchang Independent Non-executive Director 3/3 100
PEiE & o BYIENITES
Mr. ZHAI Ligong Independent Non-executive Director 3/3 100
BYUIhEE B EMITES
Mr. SHI Dinghuan Independent Non-executive Director 3/3 100
AEREE BYIFATES
Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony Independent Non-executive Director 3/3 100

BIESRLE

BIAIFHTESF
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

1. The Board (Continued)

1.3

Board Meetings (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

On March 18, 2014, Mr. YANG Guang was appointed as
the chairman of the Board, and was re-designated from
a non-executive Director to an executive Director.

On March 18, 2014, Mr. CHEN Feihu resigned as the
chairman of the Board.

On March 18, 2014, Mr. YE Weifang resigned as the vice
chairman of the Board, and was re-designated from an
executive director to a non-executive Director.

Mr. LI Hongyuan resigned as the President of the
Company on March 18, 2014, and was re-designated
from an executive Director to a non-executive Director.

2014438188 * B4+
E2AEER WHIEH
TESETARITES -

2014538188 © BRI %
EBRTEERBE -

2014538188 » EEF %
EHRTHESERL &
PITESEEIIENTES -

2014937180  TFREE
A BHT AR BB A IR BT
HATEFEERIFNIT
e
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1. The Board (Continued) 1 BEEe (&)
1.3 Board Meetings (Continued) 1.3 EF225(E)

The Second Session of the Board

E-REST
Number of

Meetings Attendance

Name Position in the Company Attended/Held Rate %
HiE R
HE AN BB PR HE £%
Mr. YANG Guang Executive Director and 4/4 100
Chairman of the Board

B kA& HITEEREER
Mr. WANG Zhongqu Non-executive Director 4/4 100
ERREE EMITES
Mr. ZHANG Wenjian Non-executive Director 4/4 100
RXEEE EMITESR
Mr. FENG Shuchen Non-executive Director 4/4 100
SRR S A FEMITES
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. Non-executive Director 4/4 100
B Ak FEHITES
Mr. FEI Zhi Executive Director 4/4 100
B B4 WMITE=R
Ms. WANG Hongyan Executive Director 4/4 100
Rt WITES
Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu Independent Non-executive Director 4/4 100
REBL L BN EMITES
Mr. QU Jiuhui Independent Non-executive Director 4/4 100
#h A B S BN IEHITEE
Mr. XIE Qiuye Independent Non-executive Director 4/4 100
K EF o 4 BYRITEE
Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony Independent Non-executive Director 4/4 100

SBlEERE BUFRTESR
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

1. The Board (Continued)

1.4

1.5

Powers Exercised by the Board and the Management

The powers and duties of the Board and the management
have been clearly defined in the articles of association
of the Company so as to ensure that adequate check-
and-balance is in place for the purpose of maintaining
effective corporate governance and internal control.

The Board is responsible for deciding on the Company’s
business and investment plans, determining the
establishment of the Company’s internal management
structure, issuing the Company’s essential administration
regulations, resolving and approving other material
business and administrative matters of the Company and
supervising the performance of the management.

Led by the President (and also an executive Director),
the management of the Company is responsible for
implementing the resolutions passed by the Board and
managing the Company’s day-to-day operations.

Chairman and President

The posts of the Chairman of the Board and the President
of the Company (i.e. chief executive officer pursuant to
the relevant Listing Rules) are separated and held by
different persons in order to ensure the independence
of their respective responsibilities, and the balance of
power and authority between them. Mr. YANG Guang
acts as the Chairman of the Board and Mr. FEI Zhi
acts as the President. The Rules and Procedures of
the Board Meeting and the Terms of Reference of the
Senior Management of the Company, as considered and
approved by the Board, clearly define the division of
duties between the Chairman and the President.

Mr. YANG Guang, the Chairman of the Board, is
responsible for leading the Board in determining the
overall development strategies of the Company and
ensuring that the Board effectively performs its duties and
discusses significant and appropriate matters in a timely
manner that the Company establishes effective corporate
governance practices and procedures and that the
Board acts in the best interest of the Company and its
Shareholders. Mr. FEI Zhi, the President of the Company,
is mainly responsible for the Company’s day-to-day
operations, including implementing Board resolutions and
making day-to-day decisions.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued) TCEEERER (&
1. The Board (Continued) 1 BEEe (&)
1.6  Appointment and Re-election of Directors 1.6 ZMFREZEZE
Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, BEARABACAIER)NR
Directors including the non-executive Directors shall T EE(BREIFERTESR)MA
be elected at general meetings with a term of office for BRERARSERESE  BETH
no more than three years and may be re-appointed. BB =F nJ@EEEE-
The Company has established a set of procedures for ARABERTESTNEZEE
appointing new Directors. Nomination of new Directors VYT —EBRNEF -FES
shall be first considered by the Nomination Committee, MIRBEELHIERZESR
whose recommendations will then be presented to the FOARBERNESTCRITUMH
Board for consideration. All newly nominated Directors Fi o WHAREASEEEE -
are subject to election and approval at general meetings.
Each of the executive Directors of the Company has RIERBERER KA RFRA
entered into a service contract with the Company on May AERNBTE  KR2AI&H
16, 2014 and each of the non-executive Directors has TEED N2014F58 160 &
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company, KABEINLTRBEEH k&
in compliance with relevant laws and regulations, and FEMITEREEARARRIEFILT
the articles of association of the Company. Each of EEH - ZBLIEWNITEEI
the independent non-executive Directors has entered BEAQNFY T AH=ZFH
into a three-year-term letter of appointment with the T - FRIEE # E2014F
Company. Each service contract is for a term of three S5R16RRBRABM=F 5%
years commenced from May 16, 2014. Each letter of B H20144%5 8168 (3 B #t
appointment commenced from May 16, 2014, (or June SEME - A2012F6A8H
8, 2012, in the case of the letter of appointment of Mr. FEEHEXEEMES  A2011
YAN Andrew Y.; or May 16, 2011, in the case of the letter F5H16H B CERE
of appointment of Mr. FENG Shuchen; or November 28, M1E R A2011F11H28H)
2011, in the case of the service contract of Mr. FAN Ren HBEZT ZZARBEEEY
Da Anthony), with a one-year automatic extension clause. EH— F A IEER
1.7 Directors’ Remuneration 1.7 EEHH

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee makes EEFMREER  T1EKER
recommendations about Directors’ remuneration by ERE hFMEEZEELTES
taking into consideration factors such as educational REEZ ERRERSH &SR
background and work experience. The Board determines FEEeRBEESELER TEX
the Directors’ remuneration by considering Directors’ B BEATSET -

experiences, work performances, positions and market
conditions and subject to approval of the general meeting
of Shareholders.
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»

Board Committees

There are four Board committees, namely the Audit Committee,
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, Nomination Committee
and Strategic Committee.

On May 16, 2014, the chairmen and members of the second
session of Board committees were appointed on the first Board
meeting of the second session of the Board.

2.1

Audit Committee

During the reporting period, the Audit Committee consists
of three Directors: Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony (independent
non-executive Director), Mr. YANG Guang (executive
Director, January 1, 2014 to March 18, 2014), Mr. ZHAI
Ligong (independent executive Director, January 1, 2014
to May 16, 2014), Mr. SHI Dinghuan (independent non-
executive Director, March 18, 2014 to May 16, 2014),
Mr. QU Jiuhui (independent non-executive Director, from
May 16, 2014) and Mr. ZHANG Wenjian (independent
non-executive Director, from May 16, 2014). Mr. YANG
Guang, the former member of the Audit Committee was
re-designated from non-executive Director to executive
Director on March 18, 2014, and thus resigned as a
member of the Audit Committee; on the same date, Mr.
SHI Dinghuan, a non-executive Director of the Company,
was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee. Mr.
ZHAI Ligong and Mr. SHI Dinghuan, former members
of the Audit Committee, resigned as Directors of the
Company on May 16, 2014, and thus ceased to be
members of the Audit Committee. On the same date, Mr.
QU Jiuhui and Mr. ZHANG Wenjian was each appointed
as a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. FAN Ren Da
Anthony serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the Company’s financial reporting
procedures, including:
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2. Board Committees (Continued) 2. BEEEeTEZEg (&)
2.1  Audit Committee (Continued) 21 FHHZEE2(E)
. Making proposals in respect of the appointment, . MEZ S INEZEETA

re-appointment or change of the external auditors
to the Board, approving remuneration and terms
of engagement of external auditors, and handling
any issues related to the resignation or dismissal
of external auditors;

. Evaluating and examining the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors and
the effectiveness of the auditing procedures in
accordance with applicable standards;

. Monitoring completeness, accuracy and
impartiality of the financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s accounts, annual
reports and interim reports and reviewing
significant financial reporting opinions contained

in them;

. Reviewing the Company’s financial control,
internal control and risk management systems;
and

. Taking necessary measures to ensure that

employees have a channel to raise concerns in
an anonymous manner any possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee held two
meetings, details of which are as follows:

. On March 20, 2014, the first meeting of the first
session of the Audit Committee for 2014 was
held, at which (1) the resolution regarding the
Company’s 2013 annual report (the review draft)
and the financial statements contained in the 2013
annual report was considered and approved; and
(2) the resolution regarding the appointment of
PRC and international auditors was considered
and approved.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

2.

Board Committees (Continued)

2.1

Audit Committee (Continued)

. On August 15, 2014, the first meeting of the
second session of the Audit Committee for 2014
was held, at which (1) the resolution regarding the
Company’s 2014 interim report (the review draft)
and interim results announcement was considered
and approved; (2) the resolution regarding the
Company’s 2014 interim financial statements
was considered and approved; (3) the resolution
regarding the updates for continuing connected
transactions between the Group and Guodian
Group for 2015 to 2017 was considered and
approved; (4) resolution regarding amendments
to continuous connected transactions between the
Group and Longyuan Technology was considered
and approved; and (5) the resolution regarding
the loan from Longyuan Environment, a subsidiary
of the Company, to Guizhou Longyuan were
considered and approved.

All the members of the Audit Committee attended the
above meetings, except for the absence of Mr. QU Jiuhui
on the first meeting of the second session of the Audit
Committee for 2014.
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2. Board Committees (Continued) 2. BEEEeTEZEg (&)
2.2  Remuneration and Appraisal Committee 22 HFHHEEBREZESE

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee of the KARNHFMHEEZZES R
Company consists of three Directors: Mr. CHEN Feihu —REBEAK MM RIZ

(non-executive Director, January 1, 2014 to May 16, R EAE GERITEE R
2014), Mr. LU Yanchang (independent non-executive 201451 H1H £20145F5H16
Director, January 1, 2014 to May 16, 2014), Mr. ZHAI H) - BELEESLE BILIERTT
Ligong (independent non-executive Director, January 1, #F £ R2014F1H1H £2014
2014 to May 16, 2014), Mr. QU Jiuhui (independent non- F5A168) - B L4 (B
executive Director, from May 16, 2014), Mr. XIE Qiuye MNIEBITE E - R2014F1A8
(independent non-executive Director, from May 16, 2014) 1H E2014F58168) A A
and Mr. WANG Zhongqu (non-executive Director, from Bk (BYIERITES B
May 16, 2014) on May 16, 2014. Mr. CHEN Feihu, Mr. 20145168 #) - MM &
LU Yanchang, and Mr. ZHAI Ligong, former members E(BZIERITES - 52014
of Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, resigned F5H16HE) MEBRERLE
as Directors of the Company, and thus ceased to be (FE#1TE =H » B2014%5816
members of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee. Hi#) - 2014F5/816H © &
On the same date, Mr. QU Jiuhui, Mr. XIE Qiuye, and FMEEXEZESRZERMRRE
Mr. WANG Zhongqu was each appointed as a member S BEEELERBINE
of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee. Mr. QU EBIARRIES  EmTE
Jiuhui serves as the chairman of the Remuneration and EEAQFNEEZEES
Appraisal Committee. The primary responsibilities of the ZE8-RHB BAEBLELE - H
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee are to formulate MELERTARLEERE
the standards concerning the assessment of Directors BARAHWNEEZZTESER
and senior management, assess the performance of B MAEBEAEBAAARRR
Directors and senior management, and decide on and YR ERZEGER - HM
review remuneration policies and plans concerning BERZEeNTERE A5
Directors and senior management, including: EFEEERRAERAEBDN

R R B RFRRIRETTI
EEx EHNEEREREEE
HEE R F BB R N 5t &l - H

BIE

. Approving and overseeing the total remuneration . HEREEZEERAR
of Directors and senior management; assessing EIE A BRI -
the performance of senior management and FEERERAEBNE
deciding on and approving the remuneration to be IR E A A
paid to senior management; FTERAERANERT

. Reviewing the remuneration of Directors and . B = H N Bt Ut A
making corresponding recommendations to the EEgRHERRER
Board of Directors; and 54

. Reviewing the remuneration policies, strategies . EHESRRAEERA
and principles of Directors and senior BHNHMEE KRB R
management and making recommendations about JRAI BRI E FE iR

it to the Board of Directors. HEBER -
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2.

Board Committees (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee (Continued)

During the reporting year, the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee held one meeting on March 28,
2014, at which resolution regarding the remuneration of
Directors, Supervisors and senior management for 2014
was considered and approved.

All the members of the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee attended the above meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Company’s Nomination Committee consists of three
Directors: Mr. LU Yanchang (independent non-executive
Director, January 1, 2014 to May 16, 2014), Mr. ZHAI
Ligong (independent non-executive Director, January
1, 2014 to May 16, 2014), Mr. XIE Qiuye (independent
non-executive Director, from May 16, 2014), Mr. QU
Jiuhui (independent non-executive Director, from May
16, 2014) and Ms. WANG Hongyan (executive Director).
Mr. LU Yanchagn and Mr. ZHAI Ligong, former members
of the Nomination Committee, resigned as Directors of
the Company on May 16, 2014, and thus ceased to be
members of Nomination Committee. On the same day,
Mr. XIE Qiuye and Mr. QU Jiuhui were appointed as the
members of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. XIE Qiuye serves as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The primary responsibilities of the Company’s
Nomination Committee are to formulate the procedures
and standards for nominating candidates for Directors
and senior management, and conduct preliminary
review of the qualifications and other credentials of
the candidates for Directors and senior management.
In addition, Nomination Committee is in charge of
supervising execution of the Director Diversity Policy (the
“Policy”) according to the Policy. Nomination Committee
will also discuss any possible amendments to the Policy
and propose to the Board for its the review and approval,
to ensure the effectiveness of the Policy. Nomination
Committee considers the constitution of Directors during
the reporting period satisfied the requirements of the
Policy.
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2. Board Committees (Continued)

2.3

Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the reporting year, the Nomination Committee held
three meetings, details of which are as follows:

The first meeting of the first session of the Nomination
Committee in 2014 was held on March 18, 2014, at which
the resolutions regarding (1) the election of the chairman
of the Board; (2) the appointment of the President of the
Company; and (3) the appointment and the dismissal of
the vice Presidents of the Company were considered and
approved.

The second meeting of the first session of the Nomination
Committee in 2014 was held on March 28, 2014, at
which resolutions regarding the (1) nomination of the
members of the second session of the Board; and (2) the
nomination of the shareholder representative supervisors
of the second session of the Board of Supervisors were
considered and approved.

The third meeting of the first session of the Nomination
Committee in 2014 was held on April 25, 2014, at
which the resolution regarding the nomination of the
independent non-executive directors of the second
session of the Board was considered and approved.

All the members of the Nomination Committee attended
the above meetings.

el

2.3

B=x

_LI_/‘\—/‘f\

Ltéﬁ_E,wq#&ﬁﬁ(%§>

ETEZEE(#)
BEZEE (#)
EXAREFEN RREEEE
/\CIE:ﬁT //\EIE?X"/AEE%

HFEABRT

R201453A18BE B E — &

EECREZEBEG2014FF
REF SLEZTBBER

UTEENER: (1)ERAF
EER(QBEARRAZE:
A R (3) B8 A I R BE A 2 ] Bl 48
KEIR o

R201453A28B B E — &
EEOREZEBEG014FFE=

ReF SLEBLE iﬂﬁﬁEA
UTEHEMBER: (NREA

F_EEREEHEAR: DA&
QREBENAE_ELEFERR
HKREFANE-

R20145F4F25B B E — &

EEOREZEBEG14FFE=
REH TEHBRLBEBER

REQBIE_EEETSBEIIHE
WITEENENZER -

REZEER
J:Lauﬁ"

BEEHHET

103




104

2014 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EERRE (B)

Corporate Governance Practices (Continueq)

2. Board Committees (Continued)

TERERER (&

2.4

Strategic Committee

The Company’s Strategic Committee consists of five
Directors: The members of Strategic Committee of the
first session are Mr. CHEN Feihu (non-executive Director,
January 1, 2014 to May 16, 2014), Mr. YE Weifang
(executive Director, January 1, 2014 to March 18, 2014;
non-executive Director, March 18, 2014 to May 16, 2014),
Mr. LI Hongyuan (executive Director, January 1, 2014 to
March 18, 2014; non-executive Director, March 18, 2014
to May 16, 2014), Mr ZHAI Ligong (independent non-
executive Director, January 1, 2014 to May 16, 2014),
Mr. YANG Guang (executive Director and chairman of
Board of Directors, from May 16, 2014), Mr. XIE Qiuye
(independent non-executive Director, from May 16, 2014),
Mr. FENG Shuchen (non-executive Director), Mr. YAN
Andrew Y. (non-executive Director, from May 16, 2014),
and Mr. FEI Zhi (executive Director, from May 16, 2014).
Mr. YANG Guang serves as the chairman of the Strategic
Committee. The primary responsibilities of the Strategic
Committee are to formulate the Company’s overall
development plans and investment decision-making
procedures, including:

. Reviewing the Company’s long-term development
strategies;
. Reviewing the Company’s strategic plans and

implementation reports;

. Reviewing significant capital expenditures,
investment and financing projects that require
approval of the Board; and

. Authorizing the President’s office to formulate
specific plans, negotiate and implement relevant
review and approval procedures, execute
contracts and relevant documents, and handle
relevant procedures for the above matters.
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2.

Board Committees (Continued)

2.4 Strategic Committee (Continued)

During the reporting year, the Strategic Committee held
two meetings, details of which are as follows:

The first meeting of the first session of the Strategic
Committee in 2014 was held on March 20, 2014, at which
the resolution regarding public offering of domestic
bonds was considered and approved.

The first meeting of the second session of the Strategic
Committee in 2014 was held on December 29, 2014, at
which the resolution regarding organizational structure
adjustment was considered and approved.

All the members of the Strategic Committee attended this
meeting.

Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2014.

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and
understandable assessment of 2014 financial statements and
other issues required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules and other supervisory provisions. The management has
provided such explanations and information to the Board as
necessary to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the Group which is to
be reviewed and approved by the Board.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’
liabilities has been arranged against possible legal proceedings
to be taken against the Directors.
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e

Compliance with the Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct and rules
governing dealings by its Directors and Supervisors in the
securities of the Company. After specific enquiries were made
by the Company to them, all Directors and Supervisors of the
Company have confirmed that they have strictly complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers during the reporting
year.

To ensure the compliance with relevant requirements under
the Listing Rules and to protect Shareholders’ interests, the
Board will examine the corporate governance practices and the
operations of the Company from time to time.

Internal Control

The Company has attached prime importance to internal control.
An internal control system has been established to protect
Shareholders’ and the Company’s interests.

The Company has set up a set of internal control rules, including
“Rules and Procedures of the General Meeting”, “Rules and
Procedures of the Board Meeting”, “Rules and Procedures
of the Supervisor Meeting”, “Terms of References for the
Strategic Committee of the Board”, “Terms of References for
the Audit Committee of the Board”, “Terms of References for
the Nomination Committee of the Board”, “Terms of References
for the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee of the Board”,
“Provisions on Information Disclosure”, “Administrative Measures
on Connected Transactions”, and “Internal Control Principle
Policy.”

In order to monitor and regulate potential insider trading
activities, ensure confidentiality insider information, the Company
has established a set of “Management Rules on the Conduct of
Insider Trading of Guodian Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Limited” in accordance with the Company Law
of the PRC, Securities and Futures Ordinance, Listing Rules
and other relevant laws and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company.
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5.

Internal Control (Continued)

The Company has also established the Finance and Property
Department, the Audit Department and the Supervision
Department and put on sufficient personnel in each department
in charge of financial operations, risk management, internal
auditing and anti-corruption. Besides, the Company has
provided regular trainings at its own expenses to the Group’s
employees whose duties relate to finance, risk management and
internal auditing so as to ensure that they are well qualified and
experienced.

Each department of the Company has the channel to submit to
the Board information requested. Being the most senior platform
of contact for each department of the Company, the President
has the duty to effectively report to the Board in relation to the
operations of each department, and to coordinate and mobilize
the demands of each department to promote reasonable
decision-making within the Company.

During the reporting year, the Board assessed the internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries and was
not aware of any material weaknesses nor any material defaults
with respect of financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management. The Board believes that the current
monitoring system of the Company is effective and considers
that the resources, qualifications and experiences of the staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions, its
training programs and budgets thereof are adequate.

Auditors and Remuneration

KPMG and Union Power Certified Public Accountants (Special
General Partnership) (“Union Power”) were appointed as
auditors for the financial statements prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises of PRC for the year ended
December 31, 2014, respectively.

The Company’s former PRC auditors, RSM China was merged
with Crowe Horwath Certified Public Accountants (Special
General Partnership) and the former RSM China ceased to exist.
The Board of Directors of the Company appointed Union Power
as the Company’s new PRC auditors on December 27, 2013
to fill the vacancy, which was approved on the 2013 annual
general meeting.
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o

Auditors and Remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the fees payable to
KPMG and Union Power for audit services were RMB10.16
million and RMB3.325 million, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the fee payable
to KPMG for non-audit service related to the review of the
Company’s interim financial report was RMB4.56 million. Union
Power and RSM China did not provide any non-auditing service
for the year ended December 31, 2014.

KMPG, the Company’s external auditor’s responsibilities to the
financial statements are set out on pages 127 to 128 of this
Annual Report.

The Company plans to present the proposal of re-appointing
KPMG and Union Power as the auditors of the Company to the
annual general meeting which is to be convened.

Communications with Shareholders

The Company highly appreciates Shareholders’ opinions and
advice, actively organizes various investor relations-related
activities to maintain connections with Shareholders and makes
timely responses to reasonable requests of Shareholders.

7.1 Convening Extraordinary General Meetings by
Shareholders

According to the articles of association of the Company,
two or more Shareholders holding in aggregate more
than 10% of the shares carrying the right to vote at
the meeting sought to be held may sign one or more
counterpart requisitions requiring the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and stating the
objectives of the meeting. The Board shall, in accordance
with the requirements of laws and regulations and the
articles of association of the Company, furnish a written
reply stating its agreement or disagreement to convene
the extraordinary general meeting within ten days
upon receipt of such requisition. If the Board agrees to
convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice for
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be
issued within five days upon adoption of the resolution by
the Board.
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7.

Communications with Shareholders (Continued)

7.1

Convening Extraordinary General Meetings by
Shareholders (Continued)

If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary
general meeting, or if it fails to give its feedback in
writing within ten days upon receipt of such requisition,
Shareholders individually or jointly holding an aggregate
of more than 10% of the shares carrying the right to
vote at the meeting sought to be held shall be entitled
to propose to the board of Supervisors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, and shall submit its
proposal in writing to the board of Supervisors. If the
board of Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary
general meeting, a notice for convening such meeting
shall be issued within five days upon receipt of such
requisition.

If the board of Supervisors fails to issue a notice for
such meeting within the prescribed period, the board of
Supervisors shall be deemed not to convene and preside
at the meeting, and Shareholders individually or jointly
holding an aggregate of more than 10% of the shares
of the Company for more than 90 consecutive days
themselves may convene and preside at the meeting at
their own discretion.

If the Board does not issue a notice of meeting within
30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written requisition,
the requisitioning Shareholders themselves may convene
such a meeting according to procedures as similar
as possible to that in which general meeting are to be
convened by the Board within four months from the date
of receipt of the requisition by the Board.
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7.

Communications with Shareholders (Continued)

7.2

7.3

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

According to the articles of association of the Company,
when the Company convenes an annual general meeting,
Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than
3% of the shares of the Company shall have the right
to propose motions. Shareholders holding more than
3% of the shares of the Company shall have the right
to propose ad hoc motions in writing, and the Company
shall include matters in the proposed ad hoc motions
within the scope of duties and responsibilities of the
general meetings on the agenda, if the criteria as
specified in the articles of association of the Company
are met.

Investor Relations Activities

The Group received visiting investors, analysts and
press thoughtfully and answered their related questions
efficiently and accurately; the Group paid close attention
to the trend of market development, and always
communicated with the public in an authentic and
objective way of compliance.

7.3.1 Results Roadshows

During 2014, the Company organized roadshows
for its 2013 annual results and 2014 interim
results. In April 2014, the management of the
Company conducted roadshows for its 2013
annual results in Hong Kong, which lasted for four
days, and held 20 one-to-one/group meetings with
investors. In August 2014, the management of
the Company conducted roadshows for its 2014
interim results in Hong Kong, which lasted for
three days, and held totaling 14 one-to-one/group
meetings with investors.

7.3.2 Investors’ Routine Visits

During the reporting period, the Company
received 97 groups of investors and analysts by
way of one-to-one/group/telephone meetings,
totaling 156 people.
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7. Communications with Shareholders (Continued)

7.3

7.4

Investor Relations Activities (Continued)

7.3.3 Investment Summits

During the reporting period, the Company
attended two investment summits organized
by world-famous investment banks, and fully
communicated with investors through one-to-one/
group meetings.

7.83.4 Reverse Roadshows

During the reporting period, the Group organized
one reverse roadshow. In June 2014, the
Company invited about 10 analysts to visit the
environmental protection and high-profile new
energy equipment manufacturing enterprises in
Baoding, Hebei province.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

According to the articles of association of the Company,
all Directors shall attend general meetings. Shareholders
may present enquiries to the Board at such general
meetings. If Shareholders need to contact the Board
for enquiries, they are also welcomed to send enquiries
directly to the Board office of Company, contact details
of which are as follows:

Attention: Board Office

Address: Suite 1225, Building No. 1,
Block No. 16, Xi Si Huan Zhong Road,
Haidian District, Beijing, PRC

Postal code: 100039

Telephone:  010-5765 7777

Fax: 010-5765 9705

Email: board@kh.cgdc.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit
and send the original duly signed written enquiry or
correspondence of any type to the above address, and
provide full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto.
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7.

Communications with Shareholders (Continued)

7.5

7.6

Disseminating Information through the Internet

In order to promote good corporate governance and
transparency, the Group uses its website (www.01296.
hk) as a medium to disseminate information. The Group
implements procedures to vet information which is to be
put on its website and also monitors its website to ensure
that all published information is up-to-date and accurate.

Overseas Regulatory Announcement

As Yantai Longyuan Power Technology Co., Ltd, a
subsidiary of the Company, is a public company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the Group has complied
with the requirements regarding overseas regulatory
announcements in accordance with Rule 13.10(B) of
Listing Rules.

Furthermore, as the corporate bonds of the Company
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the Group
has complied with the requirements regarding overseas
regulatory announcements in accordance with Rule
13.10(B) of Listing Rules in this regard.

Company Secretary

Mr. TANG Dejun and Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen are the internal

joint company secretaries of the Company. Please refer to the

Section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

— Joint Company Secretaries” for further information.

The Company’s joint company secretaries had complied with

Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during 2014.
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9.

10.

11.

Amendments to the articles of association

As adopted as special resolutions at the 2014 first extraordinary
general meeting held on December 19, 2014, the articles of
association of the Company was amended. The amendments to
the articles of association of the Company included, amongst
others, (i) modifying the provision on the rights enjoyed by the
holders of the Company’s common shares, (ii) adding provisions
to protect the rights of minority investors, (iii) supplementing the
matters which shall be resolved by ways of special resolutions
at the general meetings, (iv) amending notification requirements
relating to meetings of the Board of Supervisors, (v) amending
the provisions regarding the fund for the Board, and (vi)
adding new provisions on profit distribution. For details of the
amendments to the articles of association of the Company,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
November 2, 2014.

The Management of Insider Information

In order to promote fairness, transparency, accountability and
responsibility, which are the core principles of good corporate
governance, the Group notifies the Exchange and discloses
to Shareholders and other holders of its listed securities of the
Group’s inside information pursuant to the Listing Rules and Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”).

Connected Transaction Management

In order to strengthen the Company’s management of connected
transactions, the Company has established the “Management
Rules on the Conduct of Connected Transactions of Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited” and
has designated the Office of the Board for the management of
connected transactions with the assistance from the Securities
and Finance Division and Financial Property Division. In order to
ensure that the Company’s connected transactions are carried
out in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and that
the aggregate transaction amounts do not exceed the annual
caps, the Group has notified all subsidiaries and divisions
regarding the applicable continuing connected transaction caps,
allocated monitoring obligations to specific subsidiaries and
divisions and required such subsidiaries or divisions to report to
the senior management regarding the connected transactions.
The Company has provided regular training to the Company’s
internal staff in relation to connected transactions from time to
time, and has designated specialized personnel in an effort to
ensure full compliance with relevant Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continueq)

12.

Insider Trading Management

In order to monitor and regulate potential insider trading
activities, ensure confidentiality insider information, the Company
has established a set of “Management Rules on the Conduct of
Insider Trading of Guodian Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Limited” in accordance with the Company Law
of the PRC, Securities and Futures Ordinance, Listing Rules
and other relevant laws and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company.
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SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES
ANEIRBESR

As of December 31, 2014, the Group had a total of 10,542 staff, of M2014F 128318 - A& E £ H 8 110,542
which 7,837 or 74.3% were male while 2,705 or 25.7% were female. - HPFBEBET7,837A (h743% mwET

The staff structure is as follows: 2, 705N ' 1525.7% - ABBAIERAT ¢
Table 1: Analysis of the Group’s staff by academic qualification R—  AEEREREINEIDN
Number of Staff Percentage
Academic Qualification BE AE ke i
Postgraduate or above AN E 1,012 9.6%
Undergraduate RNEARR 3,702 35.1%
College diploma ANEHR 2,655 25.2%
Technical secondary school or below FERNRT 3,173 30.1%
Total A5t 10,542 100.0%

9.6%

Postgraduate or above
HFRERAL

W Undergraduate
REBAR
College diploma
REBER

M Technical secondary school or below
PERUAT

35.1%

25.2%

Table 2: Analysis of the Group’s staff by age R AEERERISWE TSN

Number of Staff Percentage
Age Fi|e AE ke i
56 years and above 565 A 175 1.7%
46-55 years 46-55%%, 1,048 9.9%
36-45 years 36-45%% 2,133 20.2%
35 years and below BB EAT 7,186 68.2%
Total &5t 10,542 100.0%

1.7%

9.9%
. 56 years and above
56ERMA £

20.2%
° W 4655 years
46-555%

36-45 years
36-455%

68.2%

W 35 years and below
35 EAT
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SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)
ANERBR (B)

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had a total of 107 staff. The R2014F12A318 - KRB HBET1074 °
staff structure is as follows: AEBRBRAOT :

Table 3: Analysis of the Company’s staff by academic qualification R ARPARBEEASNEIDN

Number of Staff Percentage
Academic Qualification BRE AE Lt il
Postgraduate or above A kA E 45 421%
Undergraduate KEBARE 54 50.5%
College diploma AKEZR 7 6.5%
Technical secondary school or below FERNUT 1 0.9%
Total A5t 107 100.0%
6.5% 0-9%
[ Postgraduate or above
421% BlEE RN L
W Undergraduate
REARR
50.4% ;o%eé%diploma
Technical secondary school or below
PHEEUT
Table 4: Analysis of the Company’s staff by age RO ARARRFERESHNEI DN
Number of Staff Percentage
Age F# AE L 41
56 years and above 565% A 4 3.7%
46-55 years 46-555%, 21 19.6%
36-45 years 36-455% 31 29.0%
35 years and below 35 LA T 51 47.7%
Total & &F 107 100.0%
3.7%
*%
56 years and above
567 -
47.7%
W 46-55 years
46-555%
36-45 years
36-455%

W 35 years and below
35 RAT

47.7%
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SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

Staff Performance Appraisal

Guodian Tech diligently implements the “155 Strategy” of the
Guodian Group by pushing forward the transition and upgrade of the
Company and strengthening the development of its core capacity.
The Company makes an exploration on the establishment of a
marketization mechanism, and faces directly the challenges with a
proactive exploration and an intensified management and control in
order to improve its services. Aiming to ensure the objectiveness and
fairness of the performance evaluation and the comparability of the
evaluation results, the Company introduces the departmental evaluation
process where the management of the Company evaluates the middle
management and the department, and in turn the department managers
evaluate their employees, and eventually the missions of the Company
are effectively conveyed.

Staff Training

The Group has duly implemented the strategy of strengthening
the enterprise by attracting talents to continuously enhance the
systematic education and training of the Group as well as strengthen
and improve the employee training system catering to the Group’s
future development and the need for talents. Trainings tailored for the
Company’s personnel of different professions at different levels were
carried out according to their needs.

To improve staff quality was considered as an important aspect in the
talent development strategy in 2014 education training. The Group
strived to improve training system and curriculum planning to meet
the requirements of the development of the Group, actively explored
to build a “3+1” employee training system comprising of leadership,
competence, execution, and professional skills; oriented by ability and
quality, the Group organized 365 relevant trainings, and the person-
time of the attendance has reached 17,504.

The Company has laid a solid foundation for building the platform
of talent training and appraisal of occupational skills through the
establishment of “the Lecture Hall of Guodian Tech”. Through
continuous development of various training courses, the Group has
increasingly improved staff quality, reinforced the modern management
concept among its management and enhanced the overall management
efficiency.
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ANERBER (B)

Employee Remuneration Policy

In 2014, to optimize and improve the position salary and performance
payment system, the Company has conducted the position design,
position analysis and position evaluation scientifically and reasonably
by considering practice and real situations to establish the internal
income allocation method centering on position value and performance
contribution. And the diverse position salary and performance payment
mechanism with hierarchical classification has been gradually formed.
The employee remuneration of the Group comprises of basic salary,
performance payment and bonus payment. Performance payment is
made reference to the Company’s financial results and the performance
appraisal on the individual employee. The bonus payment is made with
reference to the level of completion of the Company’s annual major
tasks.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT

The Company has made substantial efforts since the establishment
to fulfill its corporate social responsibilities by promoting the Group’s
performance and sustainable growth of the society. The Company
emphasizes the importance of energy conservation and environmental
protection as part of its corporate culture, and incorporates such
concept into its daily business operation.

Today, the global economy is still in the process of post-crisis
adjustment, which is expected to have a long-term impact. Meanwhile,
developed countries are implementing the re-manufacturing
industrialization strategy. The third industry revolution is gaining
momentum with the development of internet industry and new energy
industry. Faced with these challenges and to adapt to fast-changing
market climates, the Group centers its corporate social responsibilities
around the following aspects: (1) promotion of the new technology
innovation and development; (2) development of alternative energy,
energy conservation and environmental protection, and low-carbon
technologies; (3) devotion in social welfare activities; and (4) stressing
upon the anti-corruption and upholding honesty and integrity in the
business operation.

Proactive R&D for Environmental Protection, Energy
Conservation and Renewable Energy Technologies

As one of the state-owned enterprises, the Company since its
establishment, has been proactively participating in multiple national
technological innovations and R&D projects and made significant
contribution to the development of technologies and industries related
to environmental protection, energy conservation and renewable energy.
The Company always considers enhancing independent innovation
capability as its core development strategy, and has promoted the
development of industries closely related to national energy security
and sustainable growth of the Chinese society.

In addition, the Company regards the industrial application of new
technologies as a significant part of the R&D activities. The Group
proactively participated in national scientific research projects with
significant practical value such as the 863 Project and the 973 Project.
Major technologic breakthroughs achieved by the Group’'s R&D
projects have successfully eliminated the industry monopoly which were
once enjoyed by multinational corporations from developed countries,
and contributed significantly to the upgrade of the power industry
technology in the PRC.
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HtEREEHKEER(B)

Promotion of A Green Society

Aiming to become a global leading provider of integrated green
power solutions, the Company endeavors to improve the development
and application of environmental quality, energy conservation,
environmental protection and renewable energy technology. The Group
has implemented a set of standardized procedures in its productions.
At the preliminary stage of the projects, the Company undertakes
cautious environmental protection assessment so as to avoid negative
impact on environment. During the construction and operation stage of
each project, the Company also implements necessary and appropriate
measures for environmental protection. The Company has greatly
improved the clean production of the power industry in the PRC, which
boosts the harmonic development of economy, society and ecologic
environment of China, and helps promote energy efficiency and
emission reduction initiatives in the PRC and around the world.

The Company considers raising public awareness about energy
conservation and environmental protection as part of its corporate
social responsibilities. In order to build a green society, the Company
established the Guodian Science and Technology Exhibition Hall (the
“Exhibition Hall”) in its headquarters in Beijing, the PRC, designed to
educate the public about the importance of energy conservation and
environmental protection as well as low-carbon footprint lifestyle.

Environmental Protection

Exerting the Advantages in Environmental Protection Industry
to Contribute to Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction

The core business of the Group is providing the solutions to and
services of the smoke-gas treatment such as denitrification and
desulfurication for thermal power plants, sewage treatment, energy
conservation of facilities as well as manufacturing new energy (i.e.
green energy) equipment, new energy power generation and etc. In
2014, the Group continued to exert its advantages in environmental
protection industry and has made outstanding contributions to the
courses of global environmental protection, energy conservation and
emission reduction.

As of the end of December 2014, the cumulative installed capacity of
the company-owned concession desulfurization project is 32,910 MW,
and the cumulative installed capacity of the company-owned concession
denitrification project is 5,100 MW. Annual emission reduction of sulfur
dioxide has reached 1.3062 million tons, while the number of reduction
for nitrogen oxide is 14,000 tons. Newly installed EPC desulfurization
capacity within the year is about 22,935 MW, while newly installed EPC
denitrification capacity is approximately 27,173 MW, and accumulated
capacity has reached 149,435 MW and 62,123 MW over the years; EPC
desulfurization projects under construction or to be built have reached
a total capacity of 43,235,000 KW, while EPC denitration projects have
reached a total capacity of 13,875,000 KW.

BHEMEREERE

RERA/ER—ROGERIRERBER R
HE ARAAARSTREEE  HER
REFERRMOFENE ARBELE
BREPERT —RINEE(ETIERRE - ER
BATH  ADEETT T ABAIRRAT (5 AR
SHEBHREMNBEYE -EE-HEMNE
RIMELEER  ARARAEBERTHENAE
MIRRRERE - ARBABHRSTEE
TTENBREER  RETRELE £
THARREHAER HHTHREDEL
REEANERIENES REAERESEE
MR -

ARFHEMHE EEEHERREERET
CEMGEENEZEARTS - RERULE
HREBR ARARAEHASTRIERAR
BHEMERE(RED  AAREFEHER
RE)E B ERME AR -

BRIRRE

BZERREXEZRWEREMER

REBAIEEEBNZLRE R NERIEHR
FORER - B FEROREAIR T R MR
AR REKBRIE - SRABETRE - ARHTBEIR (AN AR
BRER) REBEENRNEREES - 2014F K
SEHEBHERREXED RE2EARR
REFRERE T TRIE B R -

HE2014F12AK - Ral B METEE
HEMRFTHKEAE R32,910KE - FIE R
WHIALEHEBEMRTERDE A5100Kk
Feo2F—atmaEzs 7130628 M -
BHER ALY AB W - Q8 F R REPCH
KR EHR22 935K F - BLASEPCHEKA
BN R2TATIRE BFRFTAE D BIES
149,435)K L f162,123)K F, + 7E & R FF = B it
EPCIEB A RE432358 TH  HERERFE
BRMEEPCIE B 82 £1,387.58 T K °



2014 &8
HENEBREBRHERLE

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

In the field of low-nitrogen modification, the related technologies have
achieved an in-depth further development. Double-scale low nitrogen
combustion technology has made a breakthrough on low-quality and
fire-retardant coals such as lean coals and mixed coals, and the
nitrogen-reducing indicator has reached a leading level in PRC. Anti-
cockability of the swirl low-nitrogen is rapidly enhanced, and Castle
Project has been greatly renovated along with other projects. "W-Type"
boiler maintains the best performance of the low-nitrogen in the entire
industry. Main indicators in the Anshun Project successfully achieve the
expected goal, and the working efficiency of the boilers has increased
by 5 percents. Nantong AlU has been successfully carried out along
with other small-stove projects and the performance indicator has
met the contractual requirements. In 2014, the Group also signed
several new low-NOx combustion contracts. The cumulative contract
value is more than 838 million Yuan, and the Group has completed
the low-nitrogen reconstruction of 51 units. The Company’s low-NOx
technologies have been employed more than 430 boilers that are newly
built or reconstructed inside and outside PRC with a domestic market
share higher than 50%.

The water treated by the sewage treatment plants of Lucency
(a subsidiary of the Group) goes into the following two ways: (1)
discharged if the water reaches the discharge standard after the
treatment, or (2) runs back to the industrial enterprises (e.g. power
plant) after the reusing treatment. Industrial sewage and household
sewage discharged by sewage treatment plants are contained in the
sewage treatment system and would not be released to the outside and
cause environmental pollution. Through the operation of water utilities,
the Group has disposed 238,658,300 tons swage (including recycled
water) and the emission reduction of COD has reached 83,500 tons in
aggregate.

Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction

In addition to the contributions made by the Group with the advantages
in environment protection industry, the Group also committed to
contract energy management, plasma ignition, oil ignition, heat pump
manufacture and boilers general reconstruction. The Group values
the fundamental function of the technological progress in energy
conservation and emission reduction and fully uses the advantages in
technology industry and management.

In respect of contract energy management, the Group mainly relies on
energy conservation technologies including turbine flow reconstruction,
steam sealing reconstruction, air preheater seal reconstruction, residual
heat and pressure usage, motor system energy saving and combustion
optimization. The Group completes nearly 97 contract energy
management reconstruction projects, and conserves over 650,000
tons of standard coal annually. Among them, 27 is completed in 2013,
saving more than 160,000 tons of standard coal; and 16 in 2014, saving
more than 250,000 tons of standard coal.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

HEREEHKEER(B)

In respect of the plasma ignition and oil ignition business, the Group
continues to maintain stable development and a leading position in
the industry and continues to expand the residual heat usage. It also
completed the development of the new energy-efficient condenser
waste heat utilization technology and the research on the residual heat
usage. In 2014, the heat pump manufacture project is successfully put
into operation. The Company has become the head contractor of the
residual heat usage business with the ability of heat pump equipment
manufacture, and it greatly improves the competitiveness of the Group’s
core business. The boiler general reconstruction business has seen a
solid start, and the Group has successfully initiated a lean coal to soft
coal reconstruction project in Changyuan, in which the major indicators
reached or exceled the expected number. The coal consumption in the
power generation is down to 9.5g/KWh which is highly praised by the
clients.

Wind Turbine Manufacture and Emission Reduction

United Power is one of the Group’s subsidiaries that specialized in the
production of wind generator set and sold high-quality wind turbines in
2014 with a total capacity of 2,530.5 MW, which is a great contribution
to the green energy development.

In the production of wind turbine, the sewage produced by the
production bases in Jiangsu, Neimenggu, Jilin, and Hebei provinces
is released into the local municipal sewage treatment plants through
the city net-pipes and is treated until it reaches the standard then
discharged. Solid waste pollutant is handled by delegated third parties
and put into recycle. Activated carbon treatment equipment is installed
in ventilation systems where the air pollutant is produced therefore the
environment would not be harmed. All other wastes are sold to metal
recycle companies for recycling purposes.

Wind Power Generation Business Promoting Emission
Reduction

Chifeng Wind Company of Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Co., Ltd., focusing on the wind power and photovoltaic power
generation business, has generated 284,870,000 KWh electricity in
2014, which is equal to 269,000 tons’ GHG emissions reduction.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Photovoltaic Manufacturing and Project Service Business
Promoting Emission Reduction

Guodian Solar, one of the Group’s subsidiaries, had newly signed
photovoltaic power station project contract of 560.22 MW (including
EPC projects of 120.22 MW, and integrated management contract
of 440 MW) in the year. Compared to the previous year, the EPC
engineered capacity reduced by 483.1 MW in 2014, and the new
projects in 2014 has a 265.3 MW net capacity, which is a remarkable
contribution to developing green energy of China, and equal to the
reduction of environmental pollution produced by normal thermal power
plants with the same capacity.

Continuously Enhancing Environmental Protection during
Construction, Operation and Production

During the construction of desulfurication and denitrfication projects,
the Longyuan Environment, a subsidiary of the Group, has strictly
executed the environmental protection requirements for the projects
and the “Three Simultaneity” provisions that stipulate the facilities for
environmental protection must be designed, constructed and put into
operation simultaneously with the main part of a construction project.
The concession desulfurication and denitrification items have met the
emission standards.

The sewage treatment plants of Lucency, a subsidiary of the Group,
treated organic pollutants from exhaust pollutant with oxidative
decomposition, and released them after meeting the required standard.
With respect to solid wastes, residual sludge is normally buried or
utilized as fertilization in farmland after treatment, and other solid
wastes such as sediment and grit are shipped to refuse landfills to be
buried.

Work Place Safety and Employee Health

The Company has continuingly implemented the PRC laws and
regulations and standards on safe production and occupational
hazard, and continuingly promoted and improved the work environment
management and the occupational health and safety management
system. The Company has created for its employees a working
environment and conditions that meets the PRC occupational safety
and sanitary standard and requirements. By providing qualified
labor protection products, preventing, controlling and eliminating
occupational hazards, the Company has safeguarded its employee’s
health and relevant rights.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

SETEREEIE(E)

In order to strengthen the occupational health supervision and
management in each of the Group’s work sites, the Company has
established safety, occupational health assurance system. Each front-
line operational unit has taken the following measures:

1. Compiling the hazard causations list and the major hazard
causations list, and implementing tailored measures and
management plans for each hazard causation, especially major
hazard causations;

2. Regularly organizing employees to take trainings on occupational
health and occupational hazard prevention, and promoting
employees’ self-protection awareness;

3. Developing and improving the work environment of the work site;

4. Organizing employees to take physical examinations on a
regular basis according to supervision and management
measures; and

5. Proactively cooperating with relevant government authorities to
work on the prevention of contagious diseases.

The Group and its subsidiaries have conducted safety examinations,
drills for emergent accidents and safety education activities in various
forms. The safety status of 2014 is overall stable. No catastrophic safety
accidents or casualties have occurred.

In addition, the company also organized the production of “Touching
Stories Around” short film series — “Gesang blooming on the plateau”
and carried out in-depth implementation of the “Benefit the People
Project”. It carried out activities such as the “Three progresses & Three
solutions & three upgrades” and “Double union & Double assistance”
to gradually establish the supporting fund to assist the employees
in need. The Group also made a regular working schedule for eight
cultural associations which organized “Finding the Right One in the
Guodian Romance” which is a gathering of single employees and
enrich the daily lives of employees. The Group set up the “Talent
Youth” to expand the access for young employees and reserved the
talent for the Company and set up “Green Ribbon” Youth Volunteer
Service Association. During the APEC session, “Green Ribbon” carried
out the “Green Guodian Tech and Joy of Travel Initiative” to create a
good working environment for the benefit of employees.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Contribution to Social Welfare and Participation in the
Development of Local Economy

The Company is also devoted to promoting the society well-being and
development, pushing forward sustainable development of the Group,
the Chinese society and the environment. While striving to develop its
own business, the Company along with its subsidiaries and associates
also proactively participate in local social commonweal activities within
their capacities, such as joint development with local enterprises,
construction of spiritual civilization, promotion in courses of science,
education, culture and health, community building, donations to schools
and local education, poverty alleviation and etc., which has facilitated
the local economic development and society harmony. Through
participating in social activities, the Company has promoted corporate
culture, fostered good corporate image and has formed harmonious
and stable community relationship. In 2014, Guodian Tech and its
subsidiaries put more efforts into supporting the local infrastructure
development and undertook social welfare events such as donation to
the local charity schools for the children of the migrant workers and the
children from poor families, performing elderly care services. So far the
Company has donated money and goods with the worth of RMB200,000
in aggregate for local education and public welfare establishments. The
Company also organized volunteering tree planting, blood donation,
voluntary labor for community service, landscaping, environmental
advocacy, and a public long-distance running event with nearly 300
participants. In the year of 2014, Huadian Tianren, a subsidiary of
Guodian Tech, built seven micro grid stations and installed 9,165
photovoltaic products for household use, and it solved the power
shortage for more than 40,000 residents in remote areas including
Qinghai and Jiangxi.

In addition, the Company organized a series of regularly held internal
lectures named “Guodian Tech Forum” to promote the concept of
good corporate governance and corporate culture and to assist the
staffs to understand new governmental policies. It became a cultural
brand of the Company. “Guodian Tech Forum” promoted in-depth
communications and interactions among the employees, whose active
participation in developing and promoting the Company’s company
culture became a strong factor in the steady development of the
Company.
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Intensifying  Anti-corruption Force and Advocating
Integrity and Honesty

In 2014, China continued to focus its attention to anti-corruption.
The Third Plenary Session of the eighteenth central committee of the
Communist Party of China (“CPC”) National Congress announced
the “Two Responsibilities” on anti-corruption. To implement such
responsibilities, the Company announced the year of 2014 to be
“the Year of Intensifying Fundamental Works of Discipline Inspection
and Supervision” and split the year-round task of implementing anti-
corruption and upholding integrity into different items. Each section
inside the Company has seen the proper responsibility to be assigned
to the proper person in charge and every level of the Company has
signed the letter of responsibility for constructing an honest and
integrity atmosphere within the Company.

During this year, the Company pushed forward the building of
supervising organs and teams by expanding the number of secretaries
of discipline inspection commissions. In mid-year the Company held
meetings to continue to push forward the implementation of the “Two
Responsibilities”. The meeting issued the “Guidelines for Guodian
Tech to implement the Responsibility of Building Honesty and the
Discipline Inspection Commission’s Supervisory Responsibility”, and it
revised eleven other guidelines including “Assessment Methods on the
Secretary to the Discipline Inspection Commission” and “Management
Methods of Conversation on Integrity and Honesty of the Party”, and
has formed a complete, feasible and distinctive discipline inspection
system.

The Company announced September and October to be “the Month of
Combating Corruption and Building a Honest Company”, and the first
working day of each month to be “the Day of Combating Corruption
and Building a Honest Company” with “building a honest Guodian
and a honest Guodian Tech” as the main theme of anti-corruption
eduction in Guodian Tech. On Mid-autumn Day and the National
Holiday, the Company also carried out anti-corruption actions including
eight specific activities and eleven presentations on the matter of
anti-corruption. More than one thousand employees took part in such
activities. The Company also invited relevant officers from Beijing
People’s Procuratorate to give lectures to the deputy and higher officers
on prevention of corruption and circulated the book “New Regulations
on the Honest Governance after the 18th CPC National Congress”. The
management of the Company gained a deeper understanding on the
significance of honest governance and anti-corruption and the spirit of
honesty was established in the Company.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited

(a joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 129 to
284, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR (CONTINUED)

Bz A E ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

R R

for the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HZE2014F12A31H EFE UAARETR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
st AR FT ARETFoT

Revenue A 4 25,605,613 25,420,355
Cost of sales HEMA (21,327,430) (21,628,015)
Gross profit ER 4,278,183 3,792,340
Other revenue H Uz A 5 319,603 395,471
Other net (losses)/income Hih (518) /W58 5 (27,625) 134,456
Selling and distribution expenses $HE ko HFE X (1,133,140) (765,790)
Administrative expenses THRAX (2,220,962) (1,631,453)
Profit from operations K FRHE 1,216,059 1,925,024
Finance costs B 75 K AR 6 (1,178,236) (934,924)
Share of profits less FE AL Bt 2 A B IR R s 18 21,312 (50,675)

losses of associates
Profit before taxation i AT R 5E 7 59,135 939,425
Income tax Fris i 8 (195,642) (80,143)
(Loss)/profit for the year E (FE) FE (136,507) 859,282
Attributable to: BERN:

Equity shareholders RATERIRER (393,374) 557,095

of the Company

Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RE RS 256,867 302,187
(Loss)/profit for the year KE(FE) FHE (136,507) 859,282
Basic and diluted ERELAREBE 13 (6.5) 9.2

(loss)/earnings per share

(RMB cents)

(B1]),BR(ANEES)

The notes on page 140 to 284 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

a R e W

1R

for the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
EHZE2014F12A31B IEFE (AARBIITR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
o aE AREFT ARETFT
(Loss)/profit for the year KE(FR) FIHE (136,507) 859,282
Other comprehensive income REFHAMERE W= 12
for the year (after tax and (Bie REFDERARER)
reclassification adjustments)
ltems that may be reclassified HEi#ESHEF ABRMNIER :
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on — BREREARLNE 97 (607)
translation of financial ([ B ) mONETS B
statements of operations BRREANEL =5
outside the People’s
Republic of China
(the “PRC")
— Available-for-sale securities: — —H ik — 23,958
net movement in the fﬂffﬁf}ﬁﬁﬂ”}f p=)
fair value reserve
Other comprehensive REHMERS W 97 23,351
income for the year
Total comprehensive income REHFERHEE (136,410) 882,633
for the year
Attributable to: BERN
Equity shareholders ViN/NEIE - i 45 (393,277) 580,446
of the Company
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR RE = 256,867 302,187
Total comprehensive income RNEFREB R BE (136,410) 882,633

for the year

The notes on page 140 to 284 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
SOHEERER
as at 31 Decemgtz\ezroi(izfggpgf;s?;i;eﬁr;{r;:ﬁg))

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
st AR FT AREFT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB MR 14 11,808,852 12,773,702
Investment properties "B YE 15 357,109 404,121
Lease prepayments B L HEER 16 899,309 916,973
Intangible assets mEEE 17 1,392,627 1,310,418
Goodwill HES 18 57,591 57,591
Interests in associates HEZ QR E 20 386,867 411,214
Other equity investments HiEz=RE 21 162,187 162,187
Other non-current assets HEMIERSEE 22 4,654,776 4,607,239
Deferred tax assets RLEHIBEE 33(b) 451,557 408,419
Total non-current assets FRBEELR 20,170,875 21,051,864
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =g 23 4,503,967 3,964,868
Gross amounts due EUEES 24 3,486,111 2,673,962
from customers for F&EFRIABE
contract work
Trade and bills receivables FEUS BR 3k M 2R 25 21,671,373 19,503,759
Deposits, prepayments Ee  BANRIER 26 3,383,322 2,674,484
and other receivables H h fEWGRIR
Tax recoverable A] Y [B] 7 18 33(a) 83,704 63,356
Restricted deposits Z IR H 1T 27 504,890 383,222
Cash at bank and in hand RITEREEFRS 28 3,124,807 4,100,688
Assets held for sale BEEEEERE 29 — 190,392
Total current assets RBEEHLR 36,758,174 33,554,731
Current liabilities RBAEE
Borrowings R 30(b) 13,456,136 13,277,217
Trade and bills payables FERBRR R ER 31 18,165,570 16,138,865
Other payables HAth & 7 5118 32 4,737,154 3,289,696
Gross amounts due to ENZIEAR 24 1,273,039 758,822
customers for contract work RPRIEERE
Income tax payable FETERB R 33(a) 101,435 130,305
Provision for warranty R EE 34 108,260 107,653
Liabilities held for sale BEFEARE 29 — 115,029
Total current liabilities RBEBEERE 37,841,594 33,817,587
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (1,083,420) (262,856)
Total assets BEERRDEE 19,087,455 20,789,008

less current liabilities

The notes on page 140 to 284 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
aHEERER(E)

as at 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
2014F12A318 (AARBSIR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR®FT AREFT
Non-current liabilities RBEE
Borrowings R 30(a) 5,086,734 6,732,783
Deferred income ERE W &= 35 503,131 428,263
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEAE 33(b) 136,397 120,292
Provision for warranty BIRE B 34 563,951 515,114
Other non-current liabilities HinIERBAE 36 56,858 110,314
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEETE 6,347,071 7,906,766
NET ASSETS EERE 12,740,384 12,882,242
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXREE
Share capital f% 7 37(c) 6,063,770 6,063,770
Reserves HEE 3,180,135 3,676,496
Total equity attributable to REALTEEREANERAE 9,243,905 9,740,266
equity shareholders
of the Company
Non-controlling interests FERER 3,496,479 3,141,976
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 12,740,384 12,882,242

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 EE2R2015F3A27 A # & R ERE T -

March 2015.
Mr. YANG Guang Ms. WANG Hongyan BXEE ER:} - Kogn
Director Director EE EE

The notes on page 140 to 284 form part of these financial statements. 1402 284 B WM 3T AUt F M SRR A — 2615 ©
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BALANCE SHEET
BERE

as at 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
2014F12A318 (A AR¥EFIR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR FT AREFT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BRE KRR E 14 1,322,131 1,366,559
Investment properties WA 15 954,509 978,481
Intangible assets EREE 12,095 9,933
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR E 19 4,239,583 5,424,744
Interests in associates HELE N R E 20 35,941 63,116
Other equity investments HtE=mRE 21 156,070 156,070
Other non-current assets HEtIERBEE 22 40,414 91,834
Deferred tax assets BEERIEEE 1,050 —
Total non-current assets ERBEELRE 6,761,793 8,090,737
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 77 608
Trade and bills receivables JE U BR R N BRI 25 309,460 867,172
Deposits, prepayments e - T RIE R E A WG E 26 8,444,634 8,204,993
and other receivables
Cash at bank and in hand RITEAEREFRS 28 486,870 685,849
Total current assets FEBEEMEE 9,241,041 9,758,622
Current liabilities nREAE
Borrowings EEN 30(b) 5,689,776 4,870,978
Trade and bills payables FETRR R R R R 31 48,675 683,003
Other payables H fth & 5 R 32 864,905 555,818
Income tax payables FETFR1S TR 3,839 —
Total current liabilities REBEEARE 6,607,195 6,109,799
Net current assets RBEEFH 2,633,846 3,648,823
Total assets BEERRBAEESE 9,395,639 11,739,560

less current liabilities

The notes on page 140 to 284 form part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
EEBEXR(E)

as at 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
2014F12A318 (AARBSIR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR¥F AR For
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings (B2 30(a) 3,111,887 4,408,547
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBERE 3,111,887 4,408,547
NET ASSETS EEFRHE 6,283,752 7,331,013
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BXARHE 37(a)
Share capital R 2R 6,063,770 6,063,770
Reserves HE 219,982 1,267,243
TOTAL EQUITY ESAEE 6,283,752 7,331,013

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 ZEELR2015F3 27 B L& R BETIZE -

March 2015.
Mr. YANG Guang Ms. WANG Hongyan B EE ER:} ke
Director Director E -

The notes on page 140 to 284 form part of these financial statements. 140E284 B M FE At SR SR —3 M -
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HENEBREBRHERLE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HRESH BN

for the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HZE2014F12A31H EFE UAARETR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

BEAAAEERR
PRC Fair Non-
Share Capital statutory Exchange value  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
&x HEEE E5 DMREE BE FER B
BRE wE A®E " 53 b Pt L $: #

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETT ARETFT ARETHT ARETT AREFT AREFZ
Note 37(c) Note 37(d)(i) Note 37(d)(ii) Note 37(d)(iii) Note 37(d)(iv)

Wasze) M) MESTO)E) MR HEs7E))

Balance at 1 2013 6,063,770 1,063,769 82,272 (651) (23,958) 2,096,682 9,281,884 2,859,242 12,141,126
January 2013 118 &%
Changes in 2013F
equity for 2013: EEe:
Profit for the year REFE — — — — — 557,095 557,095 302,187 859,282
Other i — — - (607) 23,958 - 23,351 - 23,351
comprehensive FAWE
income
Total Ee — — — (607) 23,958 557,095 580,446 302,187 882,633
comprehensive sz
income
Dividend approved $EEEHED - - - - — (1212758 (121,275) — (121.278)
in respect of 3]
the previous year (H1i237(b)i))
(note 37(b)(ii))
Capital contributions & AR — — — — — — — 9,000 9,000
Appropriation EE — — 17,314 — — (17,314) — — —
Acquisition of HSH % — — — — — — — 42,941 42,941
control over NEEHIE
an associate
Acquisition of e B SRR AR 2 — (789) - - - — (789) 789 —
non-controlling
interests
Liquidation of BEHBAAF — — - — — — — (4,245) (4,245)
a subsidiary
Dividends paid L= NGilE — — — — — — — (67,938) (67,938)
by subsidiaries to EEeie £
non-controlling EEZARE

equity owners

Balance at 31 2013 6,063,770 1,062,980 99,586 (1,258) — 2515188 9,740,266 3,141,976 12,882,242
December 2013 123318 &8

The notes on page 140 to 284 form part of these financial statements. 1402 284 B WM 5T R L B ISR R 00 — & 1p o
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Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
AEHERBBE ()

for the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
B E2014F12A31HLFE (LARBIITR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

BEADAEBERE
PRC Fair Non-
Share Capital statutory Exchange value  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
HEEE
B2 BAfE AEE BN QAEERE BENHE Mt FERER  ERAE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT ARBTT AREFT ANRETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
Note 37(c) Note 37(d)(i) Note 37(d)(ii) Note 37(d)(iii) Note 37(d)(iv)
Bi37c) HE37)i)  HE37d)G)  KE37d)) B E37(d)(iv)

Balance at 1 2014 6,063,770 1,062,980 99,586 (1,258) — 2,515,188 9,740,266 3,141,976 12,882,242
January 2014 1A18 &%
Changes in 20145
equity for 2014: EEet:
Loss for the year AEEA - - - - —  (303374) (393374) 256,867  (136,507)
Other Hity — — - 97 - - 97 — 97
comprehensive Falas
income
Total A - - - 97 —  (303374) (393,277) 256,867  (136,410)
comprehensive gyt
income
Dividend approved HEFE - - - — —  (103,084)  (103,084) —  (103,084)
in respect of HESMRS
the previous year (B1:#37(b)(ii)
(note 37(b)(ii))
Capital contributions M E R - - - - - - - 132,487 132,487
Appropriation EEE - - 29,746 — — (29,746) — - -
Acquisition of 5K - - - — — - — 80,114 80,114
control over RREHIE
an associate (Hiiz42)
(note 42)
Dividends paid by HE AR R — — — - - — —  (114,965)  (114,965)
subsidiaries to R R
non-controlling FEEZ RS

equity owners

Balance at 31 20145 6,063,770 1,062,980 129,332 (1,161)
December 2014 12A31B &8

1,988,984 9,243,905 3,496,479 12,740,384

The notes on page 140 to 284 form part of these financial statements. 140 284 B )M 5T B L F B IS 3R 60 — &0 p -
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HENEBREBRHERLE

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AN Ay —1

SR ERE
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BZ2014F12A31B EFE (AARKIIR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARMTT AR F
Cash flows from operating activities RELETHNESR
Profit before taxation b N:IRRE 59,135 939,425
Adjustments for: AEE:
Depreciation e 7(b) 1,040,560 933,791
Amortisation g 7(b) 89,502 77,663
Net loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BEN 99,083 26,969
plant and equipment RIEBEFE
Impairment loss on trade FEU R SR B A 7(b) 100,113 48,399
and other receivables FE WK IB R (B 18
Impairment loss on property, W BER 7(b) 524,866 —
plant and equipment FEREERE
Write down of inventories FEHOR 23(b) 29,181 57,155
Finance costs B 75 B 2R 6 1,178,236 934,924
Foreign exchange loss, net & HEEFE 5 9,428 3,892
Interest income B U A 5 (136,963) (98,668)
Government grants BT 8 B 35 (23,628) (26,016)
Dividend income from FELTHERBELD 5 (20,233) (17,802)
unquoted equity securities % B0 A
Net gain on acquisition of 5 EC3: /N 5 (19,397) (16,220)
control over an associate 22 i 7 W 2V RE
Reclassification from equity HERH Y EE5E 5 — (51,984)
on disposal of BEXHNEDE
available-for-sale securities
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A m) WS F5E 5 (1,279) (29,637)
Share of profits FEAGH: & R R FE (21,312) 50,675
less losses of associates BB E
Changes in working capital: EEEMEL
Increase in inventories FEE (465,665) (715,121)
Increase in gross amounts due ERZEEAREP (779,882) (637,946)
from customers for contract work SRIE B RERYIE N
Increase in trade and bills receivables B URR T % R AL 0 (2,032,035) (5,292,104)
Increase in deposits, ®e - BN RIEM (448,594) (660,238)
prepayments and other receivables E Aty i U FR B /Y 35 00
Increase in other non-current assets HibIERENE E R IE I (183,476) (778,134)
Increase in trade and bills payables FEAS BR R R AR HYIE 0 1,911,476 3,866,365
Increase in other payables H b FE S FRIE HY 10 1,531,277 720,588
Increase in gross amounts ENR2EaREP 514,217 113,977
due to customers for contract work FRIA BRI IE
Increase in provision for warranty iR EEEM 17,828 33,026
Cash generated RETEE (FRNES 2,972,438 (617,021)
from/(used in) operations
Income tax paid [=ENITECS ) 33(a) (266,809) (180,584)
Net cash generated RETEEE/ 2,705,629 (697,605)
from/(used in) operating activities (EFER)NFEES

The notes on page 140 to 284 form part of these financial statements. 140E 284 B KM AL SIS IREZ B — 501D o
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Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
aFRERER (E)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
B E2014F12A31HLFE (LARBIITR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
o aE AREFT ABETFT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHELENRESR
Payments for purchase of property, HEYE  WELRKRE -
plant and equipment, AL EERKR (1,228,684) (1,690,402)
lease prepayments and mEEESZH
intangible assets
Prepayment for acquisition W BE BB A R FE AT 3K — (10,773)
of a subsidiary
Payments for acquisitions of g3 R —/NISTIN 2 — (1,400)
associates and other HigEmgETH
equity investments
Disposal of subsidiaries, HEH B A A 44(b) 48,922 (4,123)
net of cash disposed of WATRE RS
Payments for advances WERAEE T BRI (113,928) (233,704)
to related parties
Payments for advances to third parties ME=ZFHER (9,714) (8,394)
Increase in deposits with banks RITIF KA IE AN (724,900) (618,712)
Withdrawal of deposits with banks BITTF A IRE 523,200 939,212
Government grants received W B B BT 4 B 96,642 123,040
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BEN 14,220 5,491
plant and equipment JAEFTS A
and intangible assets
Proceeds from repayment of A (EEBR 59,000 21,654
advances by related parties
Proceeds from repayment of FE=ZAHEERK 6,907 79,042
advances by third parties
Acquisition of control over an associate EUIS B2 N B4 i R 44(a) 64,564 8,701
Proceeds from disposal of HEA SR — 244,976
listed available-for-sale BHFFTE A
equity securities
Dividends received B U B 60,562 34,009
Interest received BUF B 38,895 66,587
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFEANTEES (1,164,314) (1,044,796)

The notes on page 140 to 284 form part of these financial statements. 140E284 BRI Ut S IR o) — 3 o
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HENEBREBRHERLE

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
aHFRRER(BE)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BZE2014F12 A B IEFE (AARESTR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
st AREFT AEBETFT
Cash flows from financing activities REBMETBEENESR
Capital contributions from Bt /&8 A B FEIE AR 4 2 132,487 9,000
non-controlling equity FTH &K ERRE
owners of subsidiaries
Proceeds from borrowings BT 15 RE 16,538,929 17,965,810
Proceeds from issuing private BT AREES 1,345,950
placement notes A& T RAMSHRIA
Proceeds from advances FAHE 7 B 727,363
from related parties
Proceeds from advances BZFHER — 21,232
from third parties
Decrease in restricted deposits 2 BR 77 3R R 444,438 728,469
Repayment of advances (BB RANE 7 B (500,000)
to related parties
Repayment of advances to third parties BEE=FEK — (130,160)
Repayment of borrowings BEER (19,404,468) (14,153,241)
Payment to non-controlling A=A NG S — (4,245)
equity owners upon liquidation LIEERREREE
of a subsidiary
Dividends paid to equity SN NG & 085N (103,084) (459,558)
shareholders of the Company
Dividends paid by subsidiaries IENCIIE A (99,799) (200,425)
to non-controlling equity owners FIEEXZMRE
Interest paid B A (1,238,531) (1,054,991)
Increase in restricted deposits PR 17 A 1 A0 (561,621) (712,572)
Payments for acquisitions of W BE eI AR R 2 S — (30,000)
non-controlling interests
Net cash (used in)/generated BMETE (EAH) (2,718,336) 1,979,319
from financing activities EEXENERSE
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RERBEZEEYN (1,177,021) 236,918
and cash equivalents FBORD) EmE
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January M1 B1BHEER 3,633,688 3,405,287
HeEEY
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes %M FE 5 & {1 1) 52 28 (560) (8,517)
Cash and cash equivalents at R12A31ENEER 28 2,456,107 3,633,688

31 December REEEY

The notes on page 140 to 284 form part of these financial statements. 140E284 B WM T It S R 8y — 3 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 15 R 2k P vk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(RIESHHBA  UARKIIR)
1 ORGANISATION

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) was formerly known as Guodian Technology
& Environment Group Limited Liabilty Company and was
established on 6 April 2001 as a state-owned enterprise with
limited liability. The Company was converted to a joint stock
company with limited liability in the PRC on 16 May 2011 (the
“Conversion”). On 30 December 2011, the Company’s H shares
were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(“HKSE”).

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
which for this financial year and the comparative period
continue to be those of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the

new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76
to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on HKSE. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.

A

EEREREEEBRHERAA ([F
AFD A ABREREREREREBER
ANAE AEBERETLERKIR
20014 A6H - AR A MR201145A8
16REH APBEKHAERAR ([E
#]) - 20114128308 ' A RQ & KH
REEEHERHMBRAA ([HB
BERFT]) £ e

FTESFEE

(a)

BREHR

IS B RERAKIER R G
BB EeRMAMATAREBN(E
RIS IR R (ZABRIE
Fir 7 i A &) B 18 (B B B 75 3R
HEAD (BB g £ R M
BRE)MEE - HEMBHRE
WA EBCRRUEH) F E A
MEERT - RESEH(D
AEDY (F622F ) [ XR11576
ZESTIRMYIE BB Z IR 5
oFb (1R B &) FT1ER B E
ML RRBLH N F
R L B BB E R A R(A
FMEDI) (£32F) hiE A
BT HEMBHBREREHFSE
(BARABERSHBRDAF
FEMBADPEANEER
FoREEMEMOHERNSE
BEBMENT -

B St ENBEE O EMmE
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BEERD)  IRAKEERAK
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MEAMERNSARRES
#1E B BRI EE2(c)



2014 &8
HENEBREBRHERLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 5 eR R B et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
(see note 2(i)) are stated at their fair value. Non-current
assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell (see note 2(aa)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on these financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 3.

(BRIEZBRHA - UAREIIR)

2 FEEFBE#E

(b)

MBHBRERER

HE2014F12A31B LFER
AHUBEREBEARARE
MEBAR (GEAIAER]) K
NEE AN AL o

hEEATHIEENEMIA
EUAEQARBEYERIN (RW
FEo()) M mERAERE P FR
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F2(aa)) °

RETA(BERMBREER)
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HE - HEMBRREFEREK
MERMEE BFE WA
R HMHE SR - (A5
B R R R EN B &5 M %
BATHERREARENEREE
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BIEMFMARRR S B E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R R et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBHA  AARBIITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments to
IFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company.

— Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27,
Investment entities

— Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

— Amendments to IAS 39, Novation of derivates and
continuation of hedge accounting

— IFRIC 21, Levies

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“BRMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand, which is the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC (“PRC Subsidiaries”) carrying
on the principal activities of the Group. The functional
currencies of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong
and United States are Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and
United States dollars (“USD”) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 5 eR R B et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

®

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared
assuming the Group will continue as a going concern
notwithstanding the net current liabilities of the Group at
31 December 2014. The Group has unutilised banking
facilities of RMB15,446,636,000 as at 31 December 2014
to fulfil its future capital commitments and other financial
requirements. The directors are of the opinion that the
Group will have necessary liquid funds to finance its
working capital and capital expenditure requirements.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows

and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses

resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

(BRIEZBRHA - UAREIIR)

2 FEEFBE#E

(e)

(f)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B FS R M aE

(%)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBHA  UAARBEIITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
notes 2(r) or (s) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(i))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).
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B 5 eR R B et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes 2(h) and (n)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(i)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(n)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included
in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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BTSRRI (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(M)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries
and associates, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it
is determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair value is
evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification:

Investments in equity securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any dividends earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out in note 2(x)(vi).

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale equity securities. At each balance sheet date the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(n)). Dividend income from these investments is
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2(x)(vi).

When these investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 2(n)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits
to purchase/sell the investments.
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(%)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBHA  UAARBEIITR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1)

(k)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(m))
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(n)).
The depreciation policy is the same as that of property,
plant and equipment (see note 2(k)). Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 2(x)(v).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note

2(2)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Land, buildings and structures 20-50 years
— Machinery and equipment 3-20 years
— Motor vehicles 3-10 years
— Furniture, fixtures and others 3-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U}

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising from
a service concession arrangement when it has a right
to charge for usage of the concession infrastructure.
An intangible asset received as consideration for
providing construction services in a service concession
arrangement are measured at fair value upon initial
recognition by reference to the fair value of the services
provided. Subsequent to initial recognition the intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 2(n)). If the Group is
paid for the construction services partly by an intangible
asset and partly by a financial asset (see note 2(q)), then
each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is initially recognised at fair value of the
consideration.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable (see note 2(z)). Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(n)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 2(n)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U]

(m)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

— Concession assets 20-34 years
— Technical know-how 5-18 years
— Capitalised development costs 5-10 years
— Software and others 3-10 years

The estimated useful life of a concession asset in a
service concession arrangement is the period from
when the Group is able to charge for the use of the
infrastructure to the end of the concession period.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Leased assets (continued)

()

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases except for land held for own use
under an operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into by the Group,
or taken over from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note
2(k). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 2(n). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Leased assets (continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term.

(n) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Impairment of assets (continued)

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in associates accounted
for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see note
2(g)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 2(n)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount
in accordance with note 2(n)(ii).

— For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(n) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’'s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’'s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B ER R et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIESEHA - UARBIITR)

FE

(n)

=r
=

sTBUR (&)

BEERME (&)

()

BEEFFRERBEME
Wk B2 mE ()

HRIRE R AT
R EWERRRE
i 7t B & U R IR I
HbemEE R
EBERZEBEE
FmEEBERT R
BEZRENER
A &= (B4 & AR
ZEEEFEHZ
BBRANE) T
BWrATERE
R RKR S
mMEMIEREZHDO
ZHE-F2®
BEHAEURR
G (R R e
AFHER) BR B
ERIFHE A2 IRIE
AR BEFMG -2
MEEMARKRE
w8 TR IR B A% T
HEERBLRLUR
BREBEENBE
BREARETER
B R ©

fis 5 BB B 1B BUR
FEHEEMHRRD
A &8 L ERE
BERERREEZ
=EHAEH AlER
B 18 2 & DR E B
BoREBERBZE
B e fE & E 2 B
M & 7R B E A2
EEERBEERME
R E R BT &
HETE 2 B -



2014 F 155
EEREBREERDGERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSRRI (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBRHA - UAREIIR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ESFBER (&)

(CONTINUED)
(n)  Impairment of assets (continued) (n) EEREGE
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities (i) R EFRERBEMIE
and other receivables (continued) W 2z e (4E)

— For available-for-sale equity securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition cost
and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and bills receivables and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against the respective receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— investment properties;

— lease prepayments;

— intangible assets

— goodwill; and

— investment in subsidiaries and associates

in the Company’s balance sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill and intangible assets that are not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.
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BT R R B et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBHA - UAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(n) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(n) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’'s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing

the Listing of

Securities on HKSE, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with |AS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 2(n)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment

losses recognised in an interim

period in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale
equity securities and unquoted equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-
sale equity security increases in the remainder

of the annual

period, or in any other period

subsequently, the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income and not profit or loss.
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B RR M T (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(0)

(p)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in note 2(x)(ii). When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the balance sheet date.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the balance sheet
date are recorded at the net amount of costs incurred
plus recognised profit less recognised losses and
progress billings, and are presented in the balance
sheet as the “Gross amounts due from customers for
contract work” (as an asset) or the “Gross amounts
due to customers for contract work” (as a liability), as
applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by the customer
are included under “Trade and bills receivables”.
Amounts received before the related work is performed
are presented as “Receipts in advance” under “Other
payables”.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(n)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

The Group recognises a financial asset arising from
a service concession arrangement when it has an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for
the construction services provided. Such financial assets
are accounted for as trade and other receivables as
described above.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(w)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

®)

(u)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

()

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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(%)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBHA  AARBIITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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B RR M T (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:
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(%)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBHA  AARBIITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Income tax (continued)

(w) Financial

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.
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(BRIEZBHA - UAREIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

()

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income within trade and other
payables. The fair value of financial guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated
by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised
in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(w)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESFBEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and (w) EBHEHHNGEER BER
contingent liabilities (continued) REEE (&)

(ii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities (i) RMBEHEREEE
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of IMRAREEHKANARE
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the MEBEEEHRELERE
Company has a legal or constructive obligation NETEMT METH
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable ETgBERLEEN
that an outflow of economic benefits will be SNAE I A] 1 AT SR
required to settle the obligation and a reliable Ao EeRMEE
estimate can be made. Where the time value of ARz Efh B E
money is material, provisions are stated at the BB - MR EHER
present value of the expenditure expected to BEEKXN  BILZTERE
settle the obligation. TEAMBERIZZHRE

TR -
Where it is not probable that an outflow of i B BUE B M2 IR
economic benefits will be required, or the amount 2K R
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is EREREELTEMG
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the el ZETERE
probability of outflow of economic benefits is BUBBE MHELEF
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence m AN 2 g SR (E B BR
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non- N IR AREE R E K
occurrence of one or more future events are ERT—REZREAK
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless EHRRBEESERT
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is FE ZEETERE
remote. REBAE HELEBET
m AN 2 S SR (E BB
Hh o
(x)  Revenue recognition x)  WARER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:
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(BRIEZBHA - UAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(V)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax
(“VAT”) or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Service concession revenue

Revenue related to construction services under
a service concession arrangement is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the work
performed consistent with the Group’s accounting
policy on recognising revenue on construction
contracts (see note 2(x)(ii)). Operation or service
revenue is recognised in the period in which
the services are provided by the Group. Interest
income on financial assets is recognised in
accordance with note 2(x)(vii). When the Group
provides more than one service in a service
concession arrangement, the consideration
received is allocated by reference to the relative
fair value of the services delivered when the
amounts are separately identifiable.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Rendering of services

Revenue from design and consultant services
rendered is recognised in the consolidated
income statement in proportion to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the balance sheet
date.

Revenue from other services rendered is
recognised upon the delivery or performance of
the services.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Dividends

— Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

(v)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(viii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are initially recognised as deferred income and
are subsequently recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the vyear are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

2

(BRIEZBHA - UAREIIR)

FTESTBE(H)

(x)

(y)

W AT (M)
(viii) B FFEE
EAREFAAAIERER

% & W B BT 8 B I 1
& MERE P A R B - K

FEphieerEEdER
ERAMER - AEME
7 55 18] 7 32 1 85 B 70 B

XEENR-BEAE
R mEEEIRE N
RBRWA - AIERER
SEEEKRANEE
Y116 HE R A IR T W am
HigmEEW £ R
RIEBDNMER -

HEE]E

FANINER HRZ S AN
BERBE - AINEFHENE
KEERABRREERESR
AN IE RGBS o [ 1H e
ERERRER

MWM%@E&F?&$%§
MIFEBEERBENUR
HEX®E -

MARBIANEE RGEEH
MEBRENREARR S BE
B IMNEE RARIT A E Rih
MARY -BEEBERERTD
BEREEBREBRAMNKTING
ERBE/ARK - %?E%
ERZBRIN AR KER
R AFBRFEEmAE
SN -




170

2014 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B FS IR M A

(%)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(2)

(aa)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when
the above criteria for classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(aa)

(bb)

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought
up-to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising
from employee benefits, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
and investment properties. These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with
the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale,
are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the non-
current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(bb) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

2

FE

(bb)

=
=

sTBUR (&)

BB (&)

(b)

FE i R AR AR PA T 16 1 89
BT R—EEBER
18 75 BLR 55 [ R Bt 0

=
4K

(i) ZEBNAEE
HERF— S HE
Bk B (B & &
NI IY =P
U Y=
R ULAEE R ) -

(i) —HEBESMHE
BB
HEEEE (X
S—ERBA/KE
REIZEBEET

B B X Bz B

NG =R i

%)

(i) MEAETEHYAER

(v —mMEEsE=
FEEHA S0
% S_EEA
ME=HEBER

A -

(V) ZERAAKHE
HEAREEFRH
ENEEHES
% 1) T B8 A Bl BBt
‘BEMTE -

(vi)  F(a)Frat & @
ARSI R
HIEERE o

(i)  F_E#i(a)(i)hE
EMEAZERY
BRERENZE
ABER (HZ
FEEHOTAA)

BB BB RE A

\
=
=

7

1 A B R B H) B K
KB EEERZE AR
BRSSP AEE
FEZBBEARRER
EnxE -



2014 &8
HENEBRREBROERLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BT R R B et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(cc) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations are
sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates
that underlie the preparation of these financial statements.
The Group bases the assumptions and estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that the Group
believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making
judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from those estimates as
facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those polices
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
these financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of these financial statements.
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3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)
(a) Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

(b)

(c)

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of the
customers and other debtors to make the required
payments. The Group bases the estimates on the ageing
of the receivable balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition
of the customers and debtors were to deteriorate, actual
write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Construction contracts

As explained in accounting policies set out in notes
2(p) and (x)(ii), revenue and profit recognition on an
uncompleted project is dependent on estimating the
total outcome of the construction contract, as well as
the work done to date. Based on the Group’s recent
experience and the nature of the construction activity
undertaken by the Group, the Group makes estimates
of the point at which it considers the work is sufficiently
advanced such that the costs to complete and revenue
can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is
reached the amounts due from customers for contract
work as disclosed in note 24 will not include profit which
the Group may eventually realise from the work done to
date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total cost
or revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the
balance sheet date, which would affect the revenue and
profit recognised in future years as an adjustment to the
amounts recorded to date.

Provision for warranty

The Group provides warranties for its products for 2 to
5 years for defects and/or 10 to 25 years for guaranteed
performance after sales have taken place. The Group
estimates warranty costs based on the Group’s historical
cost data, industry data and an assessment of the
Group’s competitors’ accrual. The warranty obligation of
the Group will be affected not only by the product failure
rates, but also by costs incurred to repair or replace
failed products. If the actual product failure rates and
cost of replacement or repairing of failed products differ
from the estimates, the Group will need to prospectively
revise the provision for warranty costs which would affect
profit or loss in future years.
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BT R R B et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

®

Impairment losses for non-current assets

In considering the impairment losses that may be
required for certain of the Group’s assets which include
property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
lease prepayments, intangible assets, investments in
associates and unquoted equity investments, recoverable
amount of the asset needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling price because quoted market prices for
these assets may not be readily available. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to items such
as level of sales volume, selling price and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as sales volume, selling price
and amount of operating costs.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses and
tax credit carried forward and deductible temporary
differences are recognised and measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. In
determining the carrying amounts of deferred assets,
expected taxable profits are estimated which involves
a number of assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and requires a significant level
of judgement exercised by the directors. Any change
in such assumptions and judgement would affect the
carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be recognised
and hence the net profit in future years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment and investment
properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking
into account the estimated residual value. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly.
The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.
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B ER R T et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIESEHA - UARBITR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Income tax

The Group files income taxes with numerous tax
authorities. Judgement is required in determining the
provision for taxation as there are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determinations are
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. For
preferential tax treatments available for approved High
and New Technology Enterprises, in determining the
applicable tax rates for calculations of current income tax
and deferred income tax, after passed the substantive
approvals, the Group uses the expected tax rates that
are probably be approved by tax authorities according
to the tax rules and regulations enacted at the balance
sheet date. Where the final tax outcomes of these matters
are different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences may impact on the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the periods in which
the final tax outcomes became available.

Contingent liabilities

Management judgement is required in the area of
contingent liabilities particularly in assessing the outcome
of possible obligations arising from the transactions
as detailed in note 40. Management reassesses the
likelihood of the outcome of these possible obligations
at each balance sheet date. Where a change in the
probability that an outflow of economic resources will
be required to settle the obligation, a provision will be
recognised in the period in which such determination is
made.

Write-down of inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories
at each balance sheet date to determine whether the
inventories are carried at lower of cost and net realisable
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(0). Management estimates the net realisable value
based on all available information, including the current
market price of the finished goods and raw materials,
and historical costs. Any change in the assumptions
would increase or decrease the amount of inventories
write-down or the related reversals of write-down and
affect the Group’s profit.
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BT R R B et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and
sale of ignition equipment, wind turbines, solar cells and
modules and other related electric equipment for power
plants, construction engineering of desulphurisation,
water treatment, solar energy and other environmental
protection and energy conservation projects, rental of
desulphurisation facilities and provision of integrated
services relating to environmental protection, energy
conservation and renewable energy businesses.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied
to customers, net of VAT, revenues from construction
contracts, rendering of services, service concession
arrangement and rental income. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised during the
year is as follows:

(BRIEZBHA - UAREIIR)

4 WARZBHEE

(a)

A

AEBTIEREHAKE R
NEEK - KIGEE B MA T
BUEMIHE - A RBAR - KEE
I~ KB RE AN E At 3R 4R A BE
TiEmEaEmT  BimKkERE
BEREHERR  HENAH
ERRREBHENGA R -

WAEREFPHENEREE
BE (IRBER) ZEEA4
[l ~ 42 4 AR 75 B AR 75 5 F 169
FREBHRAMBERA - K
FRERNZERERNRAN
TEINBRWMT

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
Sales of goods (note (i) SHEmm (ML) 13,191,310 12,009,862
Revenue from construction contracts EiEARWA 9,961,554 11,083,039
Rental income from operating leases KEHENHEERA 1,804,696 1,648,069
(note (i) (K7 E£(i))
Rendering of services IR 237,072 182,342
Service concession arrangement Pl 75 5 5 HRE 1 2 A 410,981 497,043
revenue (note 45) (H1:t45)
25,605,613 25,420,355
Notes: Hiat -
(i) Revenue from sale of goods amounting to () HEmMBAFRARE

417,770,0007T (20134 :
A R #555315,0007T) &
MPBREEER (EE])
REE T @R s
EOBEEHmOEABEHEE
R HEEHHSEE -

RMB417,770,000 (2013: RMB555,315,000) is sale of wind
turbines to contractors who are engaged to construct
wind farms for China Guodian Corporation (“Guodian”)
and related parties under Guodian.
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B FS IR M A

(%)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBHA  AARBIITR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

The amount mainly represents income related to service
arrangements entered into by the Group with power
plants to operate the desulphurisation and denitrification
facilities for the treatment of sulphur dioxide and nitrogen
oxide generated by power plants during their electricity
generation. The Group acquires or constructs the
facilities and then maintains and operates the facilities
to provide pollutant treatment services to power plants
during the useful lives of power plants. The service
charge is based on the volume of electricity sold by
the power plant and a tariff determined by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC. These
arrangements are not in the legal form of leases, but are
deemed as operating leases based on their terms and
conditions.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by subsidiaries, which
are organised by business lines (products and services).
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments.

Environmental protection segment: this segment
provides environmental protection products and
services which mainly consists of sulphur oxide
control technologies, nitrogen oxide control
technologies, rental of desulphurisation and
denitrification facilities, ash removal with filer
bag, water treatment related technologies and
products.

Energy conservation solutions segment: this
segment provides energy saving products and
services which mainly consists of plasma ignition
and micro-oil ignition equipment and gas turbine
improvement services and construction of energy-
efficient power plants.
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B RR M T (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

— Wind power products and services segment: this
segment produces and sells wind turbine and its
components, provides related system solutions
and services to wind power operators.

— Solar power products and services segment: this
segment produces and sells solar cells, solar
modules and other solar products, constructs
solar power stations and provides related system
solutions and services to solar power operators.

The Group combined other business activities that
are not reportable in “All others”. Revenue included in
this category is mainly from the wind and solar power
generation and sale of other electric power control
system related products.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all assets with the
exception of interests in associates, other equity
investments, tax recoverable, deferred tax assets
and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include all liabilities with the exception of income
tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDEBRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) AEIEE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) DEEE BERERE
(continued) (#&)
The measure used for reporting segment profit BREEr 25,5 2BF|
is the gross profit. In addition to receiving HHEREEMN BT
segment information concerning the gross profit, KRG BEN DS
management is also provided with segment Boh - EBABEBUWE
information concerning depreciation and BRATENEE FE
amortisation, interest income, finance costs, WA WBKA - BE
impairment of assets, inventory write-down and WA FEMBRTRE
additions to segment non-current assets. DEEREBEENDF
>,
Information regarding the Group’s reportable RMUGEAEBEESRIT
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior BEBAEBEETE
executive management for the purposes of IR FR N ¥ 8 Z=20144F
resource allocation and assessment of segment M2013F 128318 IEF
performance for the years ended 31 December EM o EBEEIEH TG
2014 and 2013 is set out below: MENAEEZHD
HNEEWMT :
2014
Energy ~ Wind power  Solar power
Environmental  conservation products products Al
protection solutions  and services  and services others Total
B BE KB#
R BrrE  EGREE  ERRER et st
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
AREFR  ARETT  AREFZ  AREFZ  ARETT  ARETZ

Revenue from external customers  SMBEEUA 9,134,665 3,689,308 9,453,987 2,919,416 408,237 25,605,613
Inter-segment revenue AERUA 73,126 11,793 9,325 13,252 42,079 149,575
Reportable segment revenue ~ A2HAHKA 9,207,791 3,701,101 9,463,312 2,932,668 450,316 25,755,188
Reportable segment profit EER VRS 1,615,254 382,443 1,910,464 191,559 190,420 4,290,140

(gross profit) (£7)
Depreciation and amortisation & REH 484,624 24,391 202,611 321,034 73,932 1,106,592
Impairment of property, % BERRRAE - - - 524,866 - 524,866

plant and equipment
Impairment/(reversal of impaiment) &R 7 T £ o JE Ui 30 55,414 13,068 26,140 (1,229) 6,720 100,113

of rade and other receivables  JEE{E,/ (i EEE)
Inventory write-down FEHHE - - 6,000 23,181 - 29,181
Interest income FERA 61,053 50,180 10,394 7,358 5,550 134,535
Finance costs BHH A 395,310 10,161 395,419 344,060 5,655 1,150,605
Reportable segment assets 2RI HEE 19,202,025 4,613,692 19,076,991 9,649,508 2,382,734 54,924,950
Additions to reportable segment  £RFEALHH D 501,772 46,082 168,394 23,265 26,751 766,264

non-current assets during the year  JEEBAE
Reportable segment liabilities T2HAHEE 14,636,517 2,640,807 16,429,907 9,482,561 735,647 43,925,439
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(BRIESHHB - UARBIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARZIB®HE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) b) oIS (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) TEFE BERAE
(continued) (&)
2013
Energy  Wind power  Solar power
Environmental  conservation products products Al
protection solutions  and services  and services others Total
o BE i
R Brhg  ExkRE  EnRBH fEEf #ir
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
NEETT  NRETT  AEEFT AREFT ARETT  ARETR
Revenue from external customers  9M5& EIA 10,082,455 1,044,454 6,916,438 7,173,462 203,546 25,420,355
Inter-segment revenue PEIELN 88,203 — 7,706 130,000 33428 259,337
Reportable segment revenue ~ T2HAHUA 10,170,658 1,044,454 6,924,144 7,303,462 236974 25,679,692
Reportable segment profit EEE k) 1,600,968 209,959 1426477 386,353 160,824 3,784,601
(gross profit) (£7)
Depreciation and amortisation 7€ R & 438073 19,803 187,180 281843 61,027 987,926
(Reversal of impairment)fimpaiment IR R £ e U3 (4.756) (3,354) - 35,719 20,790 48,399
of trade and other receivables  E(FEEE) /HE

Inventory write-down FERA - - - 57,155 - 57,155
Interest income N 44,049 39,044 4,487 6,813 1,894 96,287
Finance costs BEA 257,818 2318 354,479 287,266 8,424 910,365
Reportable segment assets TERIPEE 18,204,746 3,263,765 17,604,507 11,293,857 1,960,214 52,327,089
Additions to reportable segment  £RFEALHA S 697,480 94,522 183,027 63,611 153,507 1192,347

non-current assets during the year  3ERENAE

Reportable segment liabilities  T2H4 HEE 14,028,266 1,101,104 14,867 941 9,315,961 1,231,626 40,544,898
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4

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(ii)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,

profit, assets and liabilities

WAR DR E (K)

(b)

2 EWEE ()

(i) HTE2#H7EHRA - F
B BEMNEEHHE

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARETFT
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue Al 2/ EBUA 25,755,188 25,679,692
Elimination of inter-segment revenue % 3B & Y A 3K 44 (149,575) (259,337)
Consolidated revenue & B A 25,605,613 25,420,355
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AR T
Profit F58
Reportable segment profit 25 B 4,290,140 3,784,601
Elimination of inter-segment S EE (FE) (11,957) 7,739
(profit)/loss E 1R 55
Reportable segment profit derived BEBIINTEFH 4,278,183 3,792,340
from Group’s external customers A] 2 ¥R 75 20 F)
Other revenue H A 319,603 395,471
Other net (losses)/income Hib (E18) WS F5E (27,625) 134,456
Selling and distribution expenses HENMDHEFAX (1,133,140) (765,790)
Administrative expenses THHAX (2,220,962) (1,631,453)
Finance costs B 78 B A (1,178,236) (934,924)
Share of profits less losses FE(REE & A &) 21,312 (50,675)
of associates IR R E 18
Consolidated profit before taxation A FEL A E 59,135 939,425
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,

BT R R B et (48)

(BRIEZBHA - UAREIIR)

WAR DR E (K)

(b)

2 EWHE (F])

(ii) HEHTEBUA - FE -

profit, assets and liabilities (continued) BEME B FHE (&)
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR F AR For

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AI2ERoBEE 54,924,950 52,327,089
Inter-segment elimination 73 EPfE K 5H (597,605) (492,747)
54,327,345 51,834,342
Interests in associates HEERNRINEE 386,867 411,214
Other equity investments HigEmit & 162,187 162,187
Tax recoverable A4 B % 1A 83,704 63,356
Deferred tax assets FEERIBEE 451,557 408,419
Unallocated head office and FOBBBRITHREE 1,517,389 1,727,077

corporate assets

Consolidated total assets SEHEEMBTE 56,929,049 54,606,595
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR For

Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities AI2RoEasE 43,925,439 40,544,898
Inter-segment elimination 73 &P [ K 58 (581,488) (511,589)
43,343,951 40,033,309
Income tax payable FERT TS HL 101,435 130,305
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 136,397 120,292
Unallocated head office and ROBABRITHEE 606,882 1,440,447

corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities StBaEseE 44,188,665 41,724,353
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iii)  Geographical information

The Group did not have significant business

operations outside the PRC,

therefore no

geographic segment information is presented.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B ER R T et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIESEHA - UARBITR)

RARD MBS ()
(o) ZEBEE ()
(i) HEEE
AN ER B 5O AP B RO

BEMERER Bt
WEEMREDHBER -

(iv)  Major customers (iv) EEEFF
Revenues from Guodian and related parties under HEENBEETENR
Guodian amounted to RMB12,452,649,000 (2013: BtHEREMNBASE S
RMB11,979,795,000). AR #12,452,649,000
7T (2013F : AR¥
11,979,795,0007T) °
OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSSES)/ 5 HMtW AR H A (BE)
INCOME W 2= R EE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT
Other revenue Hgr A
Government grants BT Bh 115,987 229,426
Interest income FLB WA 136,963 98,668
Dividend income from unquoted FLEmERTREREHKA 20,233 17,802
equity investments
Others HAith 46,420 49,575
319,603 395,471
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr ARETFT
Other net (losses)/income Hith (F#8]) WS F8E
Net gain on sales of raw materials R FHH B W R R 48,088 54,867
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries S BB N R F R 10,102 29,637
(note 43) (H17#(43))
Net gain on acquisition of control over ER 1S B 7 B 2 R W e 0 19,397 16,220
an associate (note 42) 58 (K15E(42))
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME -  MENZEEIER (99,083) (26,969)
and equipment (note (i) SFEE (M7E())
Available-for-sale securities reclassified HERHEEESFFERR — 51,984
from equity on disposal (note 12) WESKE(MiE12)
Net foreign exchange loss & X 18FRE (9,428) (3,892)
Others Hitb 3,299 12,609

(27,625)

134,456
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B 5 R R BT =t (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESHHB - UARBIIR)

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSSES)/ 5 HWAREM (EE)
INCOME (CONTINUED) Wi FEE (&)

Note: M -

0 The amount for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a net (i) HE2014F12A31BLFEN S

loss of RMB95,599,000 for the disposal of certain components
installed in the Group’s desulphurisation facilities as required by
the relevant environmental protection authority.

HEERBEEBRFREPINES
BRERKEAEERRRELNE
TEEMERNBEZFEARE
95,599,0007T °

FINANCE COSTS 6 BERAR
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr ARETFT
Interest on bank and other borrowings HARAEFANEBBREENERITR 1,092,476 967,253
wholly repayable within five years H At 8 5P &
Interest on bank and other borrowings HARAFRBREEMNRITR 136,411 139,842
repayable after five years H At 8 5 F &
1,228,887 1,107,095
Less: interest expenses capitalised into W BRI - BE &K (50,651) (172,171)
property, plant and equipment, and EBREENEEARYH
construction contracts FERFX
1,178,236 934,924

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 5.71%

per annum (2013: 5.57%).

fE R A B IR F ) E5.71% (20134 -
5.57%) fE&E AL ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHA  UAREITR)

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7 BAEIAE

BAFBE MG, (GEA)

(a)  Staff costs* (o) BIfa
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr ARETFT
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe ITEREMERN 1,111,033 1,057,140
Contributions to defined contribution AEMFGRIKRETEIAH R 107,561 102,373
retirement plan (note (i) (W #E6))

1,218,594 1,159,513

Note: Biat -

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC, the Company and its PRC Subsidiaries
participated in defined contribution retirement schemes
(the “PRC Schemes”) organised by the relevant local
government authorities for its employees. The Group
is required to make contributions to the PRC Schemes
at 17% to 20% of basic salaries of the employees. The
local government authorities are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.
In addition, certain subsidiaries and its staff participate
in a retirement plan managed by Guodian on a voluntary
basis to supplement the above-mentioned schemes and
the Group is required to make contributions at 5% to
10% of total salaries of the employees. The Group has
no other material obligation to make payments in respect
of pension benefits associated with these schemes and
supplementary retirement plan other than the annual
contributions described above.

(M)

RiEPEARS S ERE
B ARAREPENEB
RABREBIZMTHER
i 77 BURT #4440 R B
AR RS ([ E &
Bl - AEEAEHFEET
BHMMETEAFEMN
17%F20% 8 5 o & i
BT H R B B 2 a0 B 1 B
BB TIHEEZS ° 1IN
ETHBARIREBRIH
B2 MNEEEEMNRK
rElERY FaET I
o AEEEAHMEILR
% 5% E10%H 3 -
B bt 6 A RRASN - AR
EEREE M RIKEF
7B A58 L 5T B B TR K
SRR NFENEREE -
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 7  BiATRE (&)
(b)  Other items (b) HAbEA
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR
Amortisation# g
— lease prepayments — LA ER 19,283 19,878
— intangible assets —EREE 70,219 57,785
Depreciation® e
— investment properties — REEYE 10,060 10,571
— property, plant and equipment o EN S 1,030,500 923,220
Impairment losses NERENEi=!
— trade and other receivables — FEURAR B N H Ath FE U R IR 100,113 48,399
— property, plant and equipment — ME - BE K& 524,866 —
Auditors’ remuneration E:HAEN S
— annual audit services — FEETRE 13,785 13,485
— interim review service — P EAE RS 4,560 4,560
Operating lease charges* KEHEER
— hire of plant and equipment —HBELRXEEE 25,103 14,652
— hire of properties — MEMRE 25,525 29,623
Research and development costs Tt 2% Ak AN 259,005 205,295
Provision for warranty (note 34) BIRGEE (WiE34) 222,238 157,730
Rental receivable from investment TEMYENEYE® (35,636) (35,608)
properties
Direct outgoings of investment REHMENEERS 8,418 5,348
properties
Cost of inventories* (note 23(b)) FERA (B 7£23(b)) 10,534,736 9,757,928
# Cost of inventories includes staff costs, depreciation and # FERABIEEIRAR -
amortisation expenses and operating lease charges, MERBHBERAUREE
which amount is also included in the respective total HEBR ELBRANS
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 7(a) for BB AL LEXEBHE

B EF7@NSEAS
B o

each of these types of expenses.
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 8 EHRERANAEH
STATEMENT
Taxation in the consolidated income statement () EHBBEROBIEE:
represents:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARETFT
Current tax REABL B
Provision for the year NFE B 223,492 227,964
Over-provision in respect of prior years — LAfE & E & E B F (5,901) (3,359)
217,591 224,605
Deferred tax (note 33(b)) EAE B IE (f77233(b))
Origination and reversal of TRMERENESEREMD (21,949) (144,462)
temporary differences
195,642 80,143

The charge for PRC enterprise income tax for the
Company and the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC is calculated at the statutory rate of 25% (2013:
25%) on the estimated assessable profit of the period
determined in accordance with relevant enterprise
income tax rules and regulations, except for certain
subsidiaries of the Group, which are tax exempted or
taxed at a preferential rate of 12.5% or 15% (2013: 12.5%
or 15%) and a subsidiary of the Group which is a small-
scale enterprise and is subject to enterprise income tax
at 20% (2013: 20%).

A subsidiary of the Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%). Taxation for other overseas
subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate rate of taxation
ruling in the relevant jurisdiction.

AR B R AN S B R P B K LAY
WEARZEEMSMI LR
LRI RBECEMBSRIARE
TE K HP R 1A BT R BB M) IR
A TE B E25% (20134 : 25%)
HECAEEE TR KIE
12.5%3%15% (20134 : 12.5%
H15% ) B BB L BB A I B
DA AR —REBR/NEIDE
I $#220% (20134F : 20% ) LUk
EBRAMTE R BIBRI -

AEBE XK B R A K
16.5% (20134 : 16.5% ) B &
BRER - Ht N B A T
R E MRS b I3 /Y T A R R AR
TR o



8

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 8

2014 &8

HENEBRREBROERLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

BT R R B et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBHA - UAREIIR)

Bt ERAFAES (&)

Reconciliations between tax expense and (b) HEMAXHESHIABERRE
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FAREFENAEE :
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR
Profit before taxation AT E 59,135 939,425
Notional tax on profit before taxation at i A FI B #% I8 0 B 7% 7F B R 14,784 234,856
PRC statutory tax rate FTEMBERIE
Effect on non-deductible expenses DGR :1bd: 02 12,382 17,033
Effect of non-taxable income UM A R 2 (22,512) (16,284)
Effect of research and development R M MG E (42,904) (9,454)
bonus deductions
Effect of share of profits less losses of FE(EEE 2N B R E R E B E (5,328) 12,669
associates T2
Effect of PRC tax concessions FRETBEENTE (34,979) (156,434)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and AERHAREAFRBEER 312,434 21,237
temporary differences not recognised TREEZENTHESE
Tax effect of unused tax losses and REFARERATEE R (32,242) (25,414)
temporary differences not recognised WRNARERARBEERR
in previous year but utilised or ERMEZENTIBELE
recognised in current year
Over-provision in respect of prior years  LA{E E JE & i@ %l (5,901) (3,359)
Others Hh (92) 5,293
Actual tax expense ERMIEMRX 195,642 80,143
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9  DIRECTORS” AND SUPERVISORS" EMOLUMENTS O EEREENHMH

Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are as follows: EENEENHFMOT :
Directors’ Salaries,
and allowances Retirement
supervisors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2014
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Ezg 1% #% 20145
RESE RENEF g BURSHR ait

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTET  AREFTZ  ARRTZ  AREFZ  ARRTZ

Directors £
Mr. Yang, Guang (Chairman) B tEt(25R) - 360 199 56 615
Mr. Fei, Zhi (Appainted in May 2014) B BEA(0UESAER) - 360 199 56 615
Mr. Wang, Zhongau (Appointed in May 2014) TR E% 4 (201458 F#) - - - - -
Mr. Zhang, Wenjian (Appointed in May 2014) & X% 4 (201458 £ #) - - - - -

Mr. Feng, Shuchen BEEEE - - - - -
Ms. Wang, Hongyan TSR T - 421 130 72 623
Mr. Yan, Andrew B okl - - - _ _

Mr. Chen, Feihu (Resigned in May 2014) BREEE (Q014E5A5E) - - - - -
Mr. Ye, Weifang (Resigned in May 2014) BREEE Q0145 AER) - - - - -

Mr. Li, Hongyuan (Resigned in May 2014)  ZZ %4 (01455788 - 93 107 19 219
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Ms. Zhang, Xiaolu (Appointed in May 2014)  FEBL+(2014E53F%) 88 - - - 88
Mr. Qu, Jiuhui (Appointed in May 2014) BAREE (201485 3115) 88 - - - 88
Mr. Xie, Qiuye (Appointed in May 2014) HINFEL (014E5A1R) 88 - - - 88
Mr. Fan, Renda Anthony BlEELs 150 - - - 150
Mr. Lu, Yanchang (Resigned in May 2014) BB %4 (201455 A5E) 63 - - - 63
Mr. Zhai, Ligong (Resigned in May 2014) BUW A (201455 8 5) 63 - - - 63
Mr. Shi, Dinghuan (Resigned in May 2014)  REBES (014E578E) 63 - - - 63
Supervisors 2z
Mr. Shao, Guoyong (Appointed in May 2014) BB E %4 (201455 5) - - - - -
Mr. Xu, Xingzhou HEN L - - - - _
Mr. Chen, Jingdong (Appointed in May 2014) B2 & 4% 4 (201458 £ 5) - - - - -
Ms. He, Lili (Appointed in May 2014) BB L (014557 %) - 288 159 4 494
Mr. L, Wei FEMESE - 352 167 67 586
Mr. Chen, Bin (Resigned in May 2014) B OBEL (01455858 - - - - -
Mr. Guan, Xiaochun (Resigned in May 2014)  BREE %4 (201455 A5E) - 506 198 1 781
Mr. Gao, Song (Resigned in May 2014) 5 BERL(0145585E) - - - - -

603 2,380 1,159 3,94 4,536




2014 &8
HENEBRREBROERLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 R R BT =t (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESHHB - UARBIIR)

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' EMOLUMENTS 9 BB R EEHH M (&)
(CONTINUED)

Directors' Salaries,
and allowances Retirement
supervisors' and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2013
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
EZE I8 @y 2013%
REzE RENER BERAL Rire aif
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

NRETL  NEETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ

Directors EE
Mr. Chen, Feihu RRFEE - - - - -
(Chairman, appointed in August 2013) (ESR 2013F8AH)
Mr. Feng, Shuchen BHELE - - - - -
Mr. Yang, Guang B ik - - - - —
Mr. Ye, Weifang EERsE - 439 230 - 669
Mr. Li, Hongyuan ERERE — 484 253 85 822
Ms. Wang, Hongyan THREat - 431 201 79 711
Mr. Yan, Andrew B MLk — — — — —

Mr. Zhu, Yongpeng (Resigned in August 2013) 5k X% 4 (201358 A %) - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. Lu, Yanchang EEERE 150 _ _ _ 150
M. Zhai, Ligong Bk 150 - - - 150
Mr. Fan, Renda Anthony LERE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Shi, Dinghuan AER%E 150 _ _ _ 150
Supervisors Bz
Mr. Chen, Bin R BEE - - - - -
Mr. Xu, Xingzhou AN & - - - - —
Mr. Guan, Xiaochun BEETA — 485 252 85 822
Mr. Li, Wei T Bk — 311 233 70 614

Mr. Gao, Song (Appointed in August 2013) & B% 4 (2013%F8A E %) - - - - -
Mr. Qiao, Baoping (Resigned in August 2013)  BRT%4 (201358 A5E) - — - - -

600 2,150 1,169 319 4238
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10

11

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2013:
three) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other four
(2013: two) individuals are as follows:

FMERSHEA

FHESORLBEATR  HEf—f
(20134 : =fu) REE - HFHMEM
AEOFPHETT T R ER o HAb IO (20134 ¢
ML) B AR BFB T

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBFr

Salaries and other emoluments T & K H fth 2 B 1,685 817
Discretionary bonuses [NEEEEEAN 552 436
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE R 282 157
2,519 1,410

The emoluments of the four (2013: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

BV (20134F © W) BB &= H M
MEA R FHEE DT -

2014 2013

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A

Nil to HKD1,000,000 =7 % ¥1,000,0007T 4 2

LOSS/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 11
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss/profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of RMB982,147,000 (2013: a profit
of RMB99,734,000) which have been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

BEERARAAEZRRDN
53 Vi b

HERARAREZBRRNAHEER
FIEPBEEEERARAMBREFT
H R B 18 A R #5982,147,0007T (2013
& FE AR #99,734,0007T) °

Reconciliations of the above amount to the Company’s (loss)/ L 2 B|BADFKRF (BE) /FIH
profit for the year: B
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT ARETFT
Amount of consolidated (loss)/profit RARFERRPEIANESB (982,147) 99,734

attributable to equity shareholders dealt
with in the Company’s financial statements

(&18) /F 8

KA DR A RS B

Final dividends from subsidiaries and 53 B RO LA BT B BR AR FE AR I A AR 216,176 62,152
associates attributable to the profits of FHEMNREWEB QR LS
the previous financial year and approved NEIRHARAR B
during the year
Impairment loss on investment in a subsidiary #HIEB QAR EHRIEE % (178,206) —
Company’s (loss)/profit for the year RRARARE (F518) /FE (944,177) 161,886

(note 37(a)) (K7:£37(a))
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OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 12 Hhiza Wz
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETFT
Exchange differences on translation of REPBEIRINERMBEREREE 97 (607)
financial statements of operations HE N E5
outside the PRC
Available-for-sale securities: A EE S
Changes in fair value recognised during EFBRANAABEE — 75,942
the year
Reclassification adjustments for amounts HEETMNESRAE
transferred to profit or loss
— gains on disposal (note 5) — WEWEE (HiE5) — (51,984)
Net movement in the fair value reserve REMEFEEREPEANEFR — 23,958
during the year recognised in other REEREENFE
comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income Hihir & e 97 23,351
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 SR (EE) EF
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based tﬂxgﬂi & TE) SRAESERE
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of EEANAATETERRBREY Eﬁg

the Company of RMB393,374,000 (2013: profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of RMB557,095,000) and the
weighted average of 6,063,770,000 ordinary shares (2013:
6,063,770,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

/\E%393,374,000m (20135 : BB

RARBEBEBRBRENFBEARKE
557,095,0007T) LA} 7K F [Z 3 174 4D
38 AR /9 b0 4 7 15 £46,063,770,000/%
(20134 : 6,063,770,000/% L3@AL) -

RE 220144 K2013F12A31H 1L 6
ER ARRTGEREEBEE S
A% o
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y¥- -BWERRXE
The Group REH
Land, Machinery Furniture,
buildings and and Motor fixtures ~ Construction
structures equipment vehicles  and others in progress Total
14 BF A %B
REEY  KSRRE HE Rt ERIE it

RUBOOD  RMBO0O RMB000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000
ARRTT  ARETT  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETT ARETR

Cost: RE:

At 1 January 2013 H2013E1 818 4,428,551 6,499,861 181,384 308,222 2,814,340 14,232,358
Additions il 6,507 48,145 17,111 65,475 944 575 1,081,813
Transfer from construction in progress HRIEREN 573,880 1528,163 - 3,946 (2,105,989) -
Transfer to investment properties (note 15)  E{EREWME (Hi15) (61,645) - — — - (61,645)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEHBAR - - 656 3 - 694
Disposals e (1,309) (168,436) (5,121) (1,015) — (175,881)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEWBAT - - - - (82,944) (82,944)
Clagsified as assets held for sale (note 29)  ENBAREREEE (H229) - - (109) (201) (12648) (12958)

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 72013E12R31A R2014E1 418 4,945,984 7907,733 193,921 376,465 1,057,334 14,981,437

Additions £ 5,824 65,656 13,731 111,662 451,930 648,803
Transfer from construction in progress HRTIREA 113,244 826,277 - 127 (939,648) -
Transfer from invesiment properties (note 15) E{EREEME (Hi15) 41,022 - - - - 41,022
Acquisition of control over and associate VBB ERHE (W4 - 2,862 2,208 - - 5,070
(note 42)
Disposals e (3441)  (168675) (2,320) (5,488) - (799%)
At 31 December 2014 H2014E12A318 5,102,633 8,633,853 207,540 482,766 1,069,616 15,496,408
Accumulated depreciation and ZitFERAERL:
impairment losses:

At 1 January 2013 201351418 323,023 852,530 76,000 84,136 — 1,335,689
Depreciation charge for the year TEEHEE 170,142 670,702 25,428 56,948 - 923,220
Transfer to investment properties (note 15) ~ BIERAME (K 15) (11,450) - - - - (11450)
Written back on disposals HEMRE (836) (34,792) (3.271) (780) - (39,679)
Classified as assets held for sale (nofe 29)  BAEBRESERE (1229 - - (14) (31) - (49)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 72013128318 k201441 A1A 480,879 1,488,440 98,143 140,273 - 2,207,735
Depreciation charge for the year TEEHEE 191,491 743,542 29,020 66,447 - 1,030,500
Impairment loss (nofe (iv)) HERX W) - 524,866 - - - 524,966
Transfer from investment properties (note 15) BIEREENE (K13 4,070 - - - - 4,070
Written back on disposals HEMED (1,368) (71,487) (1,946) (4,814) - (79,615)
At 31 December 2014 H2014E12A318 675,072 2,685,361 125,217 201,906 - 3,687,556
Net book value: REFE:

At 31 December 2014 H2014E12A318 4,421,561 5,948,492 82,323 280,860 1,069,616 11,808,852

At 31 December 2013 H013512A31A 4,465,106 6,419,293 95,778 236,192 1,057,334 12,773,702
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y% BERZRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
The Company b /N
Land, Machinery Furniture,
buildings and and Motor fixtures  Construction
structures equipment vehicles ~ and others in progress Total
1% EF B %E
REEN  BERRB ot REf RRIE At
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

ANEETT  ARETT AEEFT AREFT  ARETT  ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2013 201351718 696,151 544,366 10,346 93,000 5515 1,349,378
Additions b4 1,865 427 580 375 141,862 145,109
Transfer from construction in progress ARIREA - 147,317 - - (147,377) -
Transfer to invesiment properties (note 15) ~ SEREIENE (H:215) (4,255) - - - - (4,255)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 #2013%12831H k201451 F1R 693,761 692,170 10,926 93,375 - 1,490,232
Additions i - - 26 3,922 20,821 24,769
Transfer from construction in progress AEIREA - 20,821 - - (20,821) -
Transfer to investment properties (note 15)  E{EREWME (Hi£15) (6,670) - - - - (6,670)
At 31 December 2014 H2014512A31R 687,091 712,991 10,952 97,297 - 1,508,331
Accumulated depreciation: ZithE:
At 1 January 2013 201351 A1A 43,382 19,859 4987 3,262 — 71,490
Depreciation charge for the year TEEHEE 22828 26,745 1374 1357 - 52,304
Transfer to investment properties (note 15)  EEREMIE (H:t15) (121) - - - - (121)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 12013128318 k201441 F1A 66,089 46,604 6,361 4619 — 123,673
Depreciation charge for the year TEENER 22,746 37,050 1,386 1,535 - 62,717
Transfer to investment properties (note 15)  E{ERE ML (Hi15) (190) - - - - (190)
At 31 December 2014 HO04E1DRIE 88,645 83,654 4 6,154 - 186,200
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2014 H2014512A318 598,446 629,337 3,205 91,143 - 1,322,131
At 31 December 2013 #2013512A31R 627,672 645,566 4565 88,756 — 1,366,559
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14

PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(iii)

(iv)

The Group’s and the Company’s plants and buildings are located
in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group is in the process of applying
for the ownership certificates for certain of its properties. The
aggregate carrying value of such properties of the Group as at
31 December 2014 is approximately RMB467,892,000 (2013:
RMB652,029,000).
Group is entitled to lawfully occupy or use these properties.

The directors are of the opinion that the

The Group leases out a number of items of machinery and
equipment to power plants under operating leases, details of
As at 31
December 2014, the aggregate net book value of these assets
amounted to RMB2,956,118,000 (2013: RMB2,723,712,000).

the lease arrangements are set out in note 4(a)(ii).

Due to the Group suffered consecutive losses from the
manufacturing and sale of thin-film solar products business in the
solar power products and services segment, the Group assessed
the recoverable amount of the related property, plant and
equipment of the thin-film solar production lines and as a result
the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment was
written down to their recoverable amount of RMB457,328,000.
An impairment loss of RMB524,866,000 was recognised in
“administrative expenses”. The estimates of recoverable amount
were based on value in use, determined by the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the property,

plant and equipment with a pre-tax discount rate of 13.83%.

14 Y% - BERRHE (&)

Bt

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

AEEBRADRNEBELETHU
R E -

%2014%12)%315 CAREBEIERE

ETEIIRERET - R20145F
mﬂma-$%@mm@%¥@ﬁ
A AR #467,892,0007T (20134 -
652,029,0007T) c EEMR A &
EEBREENARERLEDE -

AEENELEHEREREMATE

Fies RBE  ERHEERHMNE
&2 5K sE4(a)(i) » B2014512A8
31H WEEEMNEEFERLEA
AR #2 956,118,0007T (20134 :
AR#2723,712,000T) °

AR B TEE E AR L E @ AR
DEBZHEE ARG REE @R E R
EBREEE AEEHEER
SEEEREERBENYE  BE
BRI e S BT T A
HEREBEEYE  BERBENE
EHoEMREREATRESEARE
457,328,000 - HEE KX ARE
524,866,000 2 £ [1TH A X ] #
BR-HAKESENGET RN
FREEAKEN  ZERAEER
RARM L2 - BB KRR
BRAKRBERNREREN
BERERBANTATRER
13.83% °
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15

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REMEYE
The Group KEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AREFT
Cost: RN :
At 1 January W1A1H 452,204 390,559
Transfer to property, plant and equipment A Y% - BE &R E (41,022) —
Transfer from property, plant and equipment % - BE REHE A — 61,645
(note 14) (Kiat14)
At 31 December W12A31H 411,182 452,204
Accumulated depreciation: ZIH I E
At 1 January ®1A18 48,083 26,062
Depreciation charge for the year KEEHESE 10,060 10,571
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BAME  BENMERE (4,070) —
Transfer from property, plant and equipment #% - iE RBREE A — 11,450
(note 14) (Hiat14)
At 31 December ®12A31H 54,073 48,083
Net book value REFE 357,109 404,121
The Company AAT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr ARETT
Cost: R :
At 1 January R1A1H 1,069,220 1,064,965
Transfer from property, plant and M BEREEEA 6,670 4,255
equipment (note 14) (K15t 14)
At 31 December M®12A31H 1,075,890 1,069,220
Accumulated depreciation: 2t E
At 1 January W1A1H 90,739 60,342
Depreciation charge for the year KEEWES 30,452 30,276
Transfer from property, plant and W - BERZEBA 190 121
equipment (note 14) (Ktat14)
At 31 December ®12A31H 121,381 90,739
Net book value BRTE FE 954,509 978,481
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15

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

All the investment properties owned by the Group and the
Company are located in the PRC.

The fair values of the investment properties of the Group and
the Company as at 31 December 2014 were RMB635,446,000

(2013: RMB725,425,000) and RMB990,918,000 (2013:
RMB1,064,258,000), respectively.
(a)  Investment properties leased out under operating lease

The Group and the Company lease out investment
properties under operating leases. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 1 to 15 years, with an option to
renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are
re-negotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted upon
the expiry of lease terms to reflect market rentals. None
of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s and the Company’'s total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are receivable as follows:

The Group

15

BREME ()

AEBERARBFAENREEMES
IR E -

R2014%4128318 AEBERARQ
ANBREUEMERABEI B AA
R #635,446,0007T (20136 : AR M
725,425,0007T) & A R #990,918,000
7T (20134 : AR#51,064,258,0007T) °

(a)

RESCEHEHEANKRENY
S

AEERARARINGEERENR
HIREEME - —RYBHEE
B9 B1-15%F » B Hi 2 18 7] DA
B EREHFERMEREE
EREHAA - AR 2 1&
—RBEMSHSETHE-
FBEREGRHTFEXREMR

ERABENRERERT
AN 52 B R K 1 B ROR R U B
EHRENKEARELT

rEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARETFT
Within 1 year 1FR 14,543 15,891
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FRESFR 2,901 2,901
17,444 18,792
The Company AT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr ABRETFT
Within 1 year 1FR 43,803 43,811




15

2014 &8

HENEBRREBROERLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BT R R B et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBHA - UAREIIR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Fair values of investment properties

(V)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s and the Company’'s investment
properties measured at the balance sheet date
on a recurring basis for disclosure purpose,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

15 REMHEWE (F|)

(b)

REMMEIAEE

(i) RABEER
TRERTAEBMA
RAINEERBRAR

BEREZEMNEEREFEDN
BREMMENRAAE
B - Wiz CE B85 3,
EREANFIBHEIIAA(E
B EIFHEED B
“ErREEER 2
REEFEERHERE
SHE AT E R e E A
BENABREENER
MERFEEE DR - A
LN

— F1IERMEE:
ERCEERESE PN
BIEETHED
NRrfEE - B
EZAMEREE
HBENERT
B ARERED
WE -

— FoBAR LA
& oMt A&
BHTTEND
REE  DTH
AIREKRB R
FERAAIBER
ETHABEDN
B R A8
B A ERE
ABBERAGTHE
mEHENE A
Eig

—  F3EAMEE:
ERAABED
EEHAREE
THENARIE

B
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15 REMYE (&)
(b)  Fair values of investment properties (continued) b) BREHWELAAEEGE
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) RABEER (&)
The Group AEE

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2014 categorised into
R2014F12A31B AABEHE A2 A

Fair value at
31 December
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R20144F
12A31H
AREE F1BR H22ER $3I/AR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT ARETR ARETFT

Recurring fair value EENARERTE
measurements
Investment properties REMME 635,446 — 635,446 —

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2013 categorised into
R2013F12A3B AR BENE  THA:

Fair value at
31 December
2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R2013F
124318
AAEE F1ER F2ER FIEM
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT ANRBEFT ARETFT AREFIT

Recurring fair value EENARERTE
measurements
Investment properties REMEME 725,425 — 725,425 —
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Fair values of investment properties (continued)

(V)

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Company

BT R R B et (48)

(BRIEZBHA - UAREIIR)

15 REMHEWE (F|)

(b)

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2014 categorised into
R2014F12A31BAABEHE X2 A

Fair value at
31 December
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R20145F
12A31AH
AREE F1BR H2ER HEI/H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Recurring fair value ERNAREENE
measurements
Investment properties REMME 990,918 — 990,918 —
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2013 categorised into
R2013512A31B R A BEE - DA :
Fair value at
31 December
2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
72013F
12A31H
AREE FIBR E2ER £3ER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFIT AREFIT
Recurring fair value EENAAERTE
measurements
Investment properties BEEE 1,064,258 — 1,064,258 —

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements

The fair

value of investment

properties is

determined using market comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square meter basis
using market data which is publicly available.

(ii) HEE2ERAABE
B RSN
BARE

BREUEMENRAEE
RRB2ERMNTS
BIERPALEMEAEF
TAEBRRBERZ &N
EE BRTIBLBORR
HEE ©
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16 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 16 FAMSTHBEER
The Group EE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBFor
Cost: R :
At 1 January ®1A1H 977,395 974,707
Additions N 1,619 17,263
Disposal of a subsidiary HEWB AR — (14,575)
At 31 December M®12A31H 979,014 977,395
Accumulated amortisation: Sty
At 1 January »1A1H 60,422 41,180
Amortisation for the year KEZHES 19,283 19,878
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMRBRR — (636)
At 31 December ®12A31H 79,705 60,422
Net book value REFEE 899,309 916,973

Lease prepayments mainly represent prepayments for rights to
use land, which is all located in the PRC, for own use properties
with lease periods of 25 to 50 years. There were no unpaid lease
prepayments as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

ENETwHERETES L MFERETR
N FRAEER T RAPE - &
BERYHE MEHA25-50F - B
20144 2013%F12A318 S~ F &
KIERBEN L HERK -

As at 31 December 2014, the Group was in the process
of applying for registration of the ownership certificates for
certain of its land use rights. The aggregate carrying value of
such land use rights of the Group as at 31 December 2014
is approximately RMB1,300,000 (2013: RMB1,300,000). The £ AR®1,300,0007T) c EE R
directors are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully B NEBEA RS EM(A SRE i
occupy or use these land. =44 o

R2014% 128310 AEBEE ASE
Tt {F RN IR EEE - R2014%F
12A318 - REEMILE i A #E
BEEKN B AR1,300,0007T (2013
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17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BEEE
The Group &
Concession  Technical Development Software
assets  know-how costs and others Total
BEEEE BERM MREA BHRHEM &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT ANRETT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Cost: B :
At 1 January 2013 #2013F1A1H 935,842 105,407 206,940 31,807 1,279,996
Additions 40 41,180 7,011 101,699 8,326 158,216
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y B I B A 7 38,988 — — — 38,988
At 31 December 2013 and W2013F128318 1,016,010 112,418 308,639 40,133 1,477,200
1 January 2014 201451R1H
Additions #m 25,829 1,062 101,603 10,898 139,392
Acquisition of control over MBS N E)EE - — 25,243 787 26,030
an associate (note 42) (f5#42)
Disposal k= (9,517) - (3,469) (13) (12,999)
At 31 December 2014 W2014%12831H 1,032,322 113,480 432,016 51,805 1,629,623
Accumulated amortisation: ESE £
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1H1H 46,984 39,202 13,121 9,690 108,997
Amortisation charge for the year REEBES 30,823 9,523 13,045 4,394 57,785
At 31 December 2013 and N2013F12A318 & 77,807 48,725 26,166 14,084 166,782
1 January 2014 20141 A1H
Amortisation charge for the year REEBES 37,522 9,927 17,105 5,665 70,219
Disposal HE - - - (5) (5)
At 31 December 2014 W2014%12831H 115,329 58,652 43,271 19,744 236,996
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2014 W2014%12831H 916,993 54,828 388,745 32,061 1,392,627
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12A831H 938,203 63,693 282,473 26,049 1,310,418
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17

18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17 BEEE (&)
Concession assets represent the rights the Group received SR EERAEEZANEFEE
for the usage of the concession water treatment plants for the BRSKEERNGCER - FHREE
treatment of water. The concession assets are amortised over EERTEEEA L2 BEEITHE -
the operating period of the service concession projects.
The amortisation charges of RMB46,612,000 (2013: EHWHERPHOIEERA] & I1T
RMB47,929,000) and RMB23,607,000 (2013: RMB9,856,000) are BHEYIEETHBREREE
included in “cost of sales” and “administrative expenses” in the B R ARE46,612,0007T (2013
consolidated income statement respectively. F: ANR#47,929,0007T) * AR A
R #23,607,0007T (20135 : AR ¥
9,856,0007T) °
As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s interest-bearing R2014F12A31H  AEBNE T
bank and other borrowings were secured by concession assets BRANHEMERANGHFEEEFER
(see note 30), which had an aggregate net book value of W (RMFE30) ERESFEBIEAA
RMB564,503,000 (2013: RMB529,015,000). R #564,503,0007T (201346 : AR ¥
529,015,0007T) °
GOODWILL 18 B&
The Group TEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARETFT
At 1 January 2013, ®R2013F1 /818 - 57,591 57,591
31 December 2013 2013F 128318 &
and 31 December 2014 201412 A31H
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’'s cash-generating units PHE SR E T 5 275 K 4& L 528
identified according to operation and operating segment as Z oM AEBIRSEAS T

follows:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TFT AR TFT

Environmental protection RIR 57,591 57,591
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GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 18 ®2 (&)
The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based BeESBE TR o &5 % E A
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash BEFEMEE BEEBEMNTER
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by BARREEEMNEB AT HENN
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond HEEMRSRELN - BBAFEHN
the five-year period are extrapolated using zero growth rate. The HeneRASEXRELE -BE R
cash flows are discounted using discount rates ranging from EBEAFERABR12.9%E16.0%H
12.9% to 16.0% (2013: 12.9% to 16.0%). The discount rates T (20134 : 12.9%E16.0% ) ° AT
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant FHAMTRXABATIRE - T
segment. A E e EER R -
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 HHBARINWKRE
The Company AAT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARKT T

Unlisted shares, at cost JELETRG, - KA E 5,448,579 5,410,630
PRC listed shares, at cost PR ETRG  RRATE 14,114 14,114
5,462,693 5,424,744
Less: impairment loss B OREER K (1,223,110) —
4,239,583 5,424,744
Market value of PRC listed shares PR EmRD B TE 1,492,727 1,352,987

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2014 which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. All of the PRC subsidiaries are
limited liability companies.

MR2014F12A31H » AL B X4 -
EESABEAEIEFENWNE AR
RS ERIT - FiE R EHE QA
HEBRETRQF -

205
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19 HHWEIRANRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

e 334
Place of
establishment/ Issued and fully Group’s Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital ~effective interest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BRTALY EEEH
AER AL/ HRHNER EXRR HALRRE ANEARRE IERR
Beijing Guodian Longyuan The PRC RMB1,613,000,000 100% 100% —  Provision of desulphurisation and
Environmental Engineering 7 AR %1,613,000,0007 other environmental protection
Co., Ltd. engineering services
FRESERRRIEERAT RERERAGRRIERE
Jiangsu Deke Environmental The PRC RMB80,000,000 67.46% — 67.46%  Production and sale of environmental
Equipment Co., Ltd. s AR 80,000,000 protection equipment
THERBREBARLA BRABNEEEHE
Beijing Longyuan Environmental The PRC RMB33,750,000 51% — 51%  Provision of desulphurisation and
Engineering Co., Ltd. s AR 33,750,000 other environmental protection
FREFRRIRARAT engineering services
REMHERAMRRIRRE
Zhoushan Longxi Environment The PRC RMB33,340,000 36.21% — 71%  Design and construction of
Engineering Co., Ltd. s AR #33,340,0007 environmental protection projects
RUEERRIZERAA RREBMRTRET
Bengbu Guodian Longyuan The PRC R\B30,000,000 100% - 100%  Operation of environmental
Environmental Development Co., Ltd. & AR #30,000,0007 protection facilities
HERZERRREEARAT RRAMAEE
Jiangsu Longyuan Catalyst Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Production and sale of selective
IHERENHFRAT # AR 50,000,0007 catalytic reduction catalyst
ERIEEREAHNEERYE
Guodian Longyuan Nanjing Membrane ~ The PRC RMB25,000,000 84% - 100%  Production and sale of membrane,
Technology Co., Lid. g AR 25,000,000 water treatment equipment and
BERRERRRERAT electric equipment
BAH KREZERERREN
EERBE
Nanjing Longyuan The PRC RMB101,000,000 60% - 60%  Provision of environmental protection
Environmental Co., Ltd. g AR%101,000,0007 engineering services
BRERERERAA RIERRTERH
Puyang Guodian Longyuan Water The PRC RMB10,000,000 70% - 70%  Operation of water
Treatment Co,, Ltd. g AR10,000,0007 freatment projects
EREEERKBERAA KEBEENEE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

19 HHEBLRANKRE (F)

Proportion of ownership interest

Gk 334
Place of
establishment/ Issued and fully Group’s Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital ~ effective interest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BRTALY EEEN
AAR A/ ARNER EyRR HALERE ANBARRE IERR
Yixing Guodian Jinghui Environment The PRC RMB12,000,000 100% 100% —  Production and sale of selective
Equipment Co., Ltd. s AR 812,000,000 catalytic reduction catalyst
ERESRERRAEERAA ERMECERENENEERRE
Jiangsu Guodian Environment The PRC RMB36,000,000 100% 100% —  Production and sale of selective
Catalyst Co., Ltd. s A& 36,000,000 catalytic reduction catalyst
THASERENHERRA ERMEERENENEERRE
Guodian Technology & Environment Hong Kong 22,000,000 100% 100% —  Sale of desulphurisation equipment
Group Hong Kong Corporation Limited &% ordinary shares BERENEE
BERREBERARLA 22,000,000%
Beijing Lucency Environment and The PRC RMB500,000,000 100% 100% —  Construction and operation of water
Technology Co., Ltd. s AR #500,000,0007 freatment projects
IRBFRRRREERAR KREBEMGIREE
Dalian Delang Water Treatment Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB20,000,000 51% — 51%  QOperation of water treatment projects
REERKBERLA G AR20,000,0007 KEBEE Mg
Shanxi Xinyuan Environment Protection ~ The PRC RMB13,000,000 51% — 51%  Construction and operation of water
Resources Development Co., Ltd. PE AR 13,000,000 treatment projects
WEFRRRERREARELLA KREBEMGIREE
Taiyuan Lucency Sewage The PRC RMB102,000,000 80% — 80%  Design and installation of sewage
Treatment Co., Ltd. s AR #102,000,0007 treatment equipment
REFHATKEEERAT FKEERENRTERE
Dalian Economic and Technical The PRC RMBA53,442,000 50% 50% —  Construction and operation of water
Development Zone Drain s AR 853,442,007 freatment projects
Management Co., Ltd.
RERERNERRERERAA KEBERNBLELE
Guodian Galaxy Water Corporation The PRC 300,000,000 shares 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of water
Limited PE of RMB1 each treatment projects
BERTKBROERLA 300,000,000%% - KREBEMGIEEE
BRAREIT
Guodian Galaxy Water The PRC RMB15,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of water
(Shanxian) Co., Ltd. PE AR 15,000,000 treatment projects

AERAH (%) ARAT

KEEREHHIEAE
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19 HHWEIRANRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

e 334
Place of
establishment/ Issued and fully Group’s Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital ~ effective interest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BRTALY AEEN

ARER AL/ HRNER EXRR HALRRE ANEARRE IERR

Guodian Galaxy Water The PRC RMB60,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of water
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd. kel AR #60,000,0007 treatment projects

AERTKE (BH)ERRA KEREENBIREE

Guodian Galaxy Water The PRC RMB21,409,200 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of water
(Dezhou) Co., Ltd. kel AR 21,409,207 treatment projects

BERTKE (BM) ERRA KEREEMBIREE

Guodian Galaxy Water The PRC RMB32,550,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of water
(Changle) Co., Ltd. kel AR 32,550,000 treatment projects

AERTKE (24 ERAA KEREEMBIREE

Guodian Galaxy Water The PRC RMB12,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of water
(Caoxian) Co., Lted. kel AR 12,000,000 treatment projects

AERTKE (EH) ERAA KEREEMBIREE

Galaxy Water (Tengzhou Mushi) The PRC RMB13,250,000 70% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
Co., Ltd. kel AR 13,250,000 treatment projects

Rk (RNAR)BRAT KEREENBIREE

Guodian Galaxy Water (Qingdao The PRC RMB48,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of water
Development Zone) Co., Lted. kel AR 48,000,000 freatment projects

AERTKE (BERER)ERAT KEREEMBIREE

Jining Galaxy Water The PRC RMB51,710,400 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of water
Treatment Co., Ltd. kel AR 51,710,400 treatment projects

EERAAKERLA KEREEMBIREE

Guodian Galaxy Water The PRC RMBA47,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of water
(Tengzhou) Co., Ltd. kel AR 847,000,000 treatment projects

BERTKHE (kM) BRRA KEREEMBIREE

Zhucheng Galaxy Water The PRC RMBS50,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of water
Treatment Co., Ltd. kel AR 850,000,007 treatment projects

EHRTSKREERAT KEREENBIREE

Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB1,695,903,400 70% 70% —  Research and development of wind
Co., Ltd. kel AR 1,695,903 4007 turbine technology

AERAENRNERAT i it LS
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19 HHEATNRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

Gk 334
Place of
establishment/ Issued and fully Group’s Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital ~ effective interest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BRTALY EEEN
AAR A/ ARNER EyRR HALERE ANBARRE IERR
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB220,000,000 70% — 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Baodmg) Co,, Ltd. HE AR220,000,0007 BANHEERRE
ERABNBN (RE)ARAA
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB260,000,000 38.77% — 55.38%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Baotou) Co., Ltd. HE AR260,000,0007 BANHEERRE
ERABNBN(BE) ARAA
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB150,000,000 70% — 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Lianyungang) Co., Ltd. Bl K 150,000,000 BABHEERHE
ERAHNRI(BER) ARRA
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB105,000,000 70% — 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Chn‘eng) Co,, Ltd. HE AR105,000,0007 BANHEERNE
ERABNBN (L) BRAA
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB50,000,000 59.50% — 85%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Yixing) Co., Ltd. Bl AE 50,000,000 BABHEERNE
ERABNBN(ER) ARAA
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB5,000,000 70% — 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Changchun) Co., Lid. TE AR 5,000,007 BN EEREE
ERRBNEN (RF)BRAA
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB24,000,000 42% — 60%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Weifang) Co., Ltd. TE AR 524,0000007 BN EEREE
SRABNRN (8 ARAA
Guodian United Power American LLC. United States USD1,000,000 70% - 100% Sale of solar cells
%8 %711,000,0007 AEREDNHEE
Guodian Solar Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB1,483,000,000 100% 100% - Production and sale of solar cells
BERNERLA hE AR H1,483,000,0007C ABHEINEEENE
Guodian Zhaojing Optoelectronics The PRC RMB300,000,000 51% — 51% Production and sale of solar cells
Technology Jiangsu Co., Ltd. G A 300,000,000 AGEHEINEERYEE

AEXSAEHRIHARLA




210

2014 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I IE R M T (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHA  UAREITR)

19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19 HHWEIRANRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

e 334
Place of
establishment/ Issued and fully Group’s Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital ~ effective interest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BRTALY AEEN
ARER AL/ HRNER EXRR HALRRE ANEARRE IERR
Guodian Solar System Technology The PRC RMB20,000,000 50% - 50%  Construction of solar power
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (nofe (i) HE AK20,000,0007C generation system
BEAR#RIRR (L) AB#BEZ00BTIRR
BRAR (Wi
Guodian Longyuan Power Technology The PRC RMB244,727,000 100% 100% —  Provision of energy conservation
and Engineering Co., Ltd. kel AR 244,727 0007 engineering services
AEERENRNIRARELLA REHETRRE
Guodian Longyuan Energy Saving The PRC RMB100,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of energy conservation
Technology Co., Ltd. kel AR %100,000,0007 engineering services
SERSHRNBRAR RIESETRER
Beijing Long Wei Power Generation The PRC RMB40,000,000 60% - 60%  Production and sale of steam turbine
Technology Co., Lid. HE AR 40,000,000 ARENEERRE
IREREERITERLA
Yantai Longyuan Power Technology The PRC 513,216,000 shares 23.25% 23.25% —  Production and sale of thermal
Co., Ltd. (note (iv)) kel of RMB1 each energy equipment
AERENRNRS 513,216,003 ANRBNEEREE
ERRA W) ERAREIT
Guodian Longyuan Technologies United States USD2,000,000 23.25% - 100%  Production and sale of igniters and
USA Corporation EdE %712,000,0007 other electric equipment
BAZREBERRENEERAE
Beijing Huadian Tianren Power Controling ~ The PRC RMB24,232,100 90% 90% —  Production and sale of variable-pitch
Technology Co., Ltd. kel AR 824,232,107 control system for wind turbine
FREERCENEHRNERLT BANRERASRIZR
Guodian Longyuan The PRC RMB14,932,900 51% 51% —  Production and sale of wind turbine
Electrical Co., Lid. kel AR 14,932,900 components
AEERERERAA BAEREHEERHE
Beijing Guodian Zhishen Control The PRC RMB53,900,000 53.15% 53.15% —  Production and sale of electric
Technology Co., Ltd. kel AR #53,900,0007 power related products
(“Guodian Zhishen °) (note (ii) ENRERERNEERSE

FREER R RITERANR
([BEER)) (0
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BT R R B et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Except for Guodian Technology & Environment Group Hong
Kong Corporation Limited, Guodian Longyuan Technologies
USA Corporation and Guodian United Power American LLC,
the English translation of the names of other entities is for
identification only. The official names of these entities are in
Chinese.

This company was acquired through business combinations in
2014 (note 42).

The Group appointed and has the power to appoint the directors
of this company to govern the financial and operating policies of
this company so as to obtain benefits from its activities since the
establishment of this company.

The Company is the biggest equity owner of this company and
no other equity owners individually or in the aggregate had
the power to control this company according to the articles of
association. Historically, the Company controlled the operation
of this company by appointing senior management, approving
annual budget and determining the remuneration of employees,
etc. The Company has agreements with certain shareholders
of this company, whereby such equity owners have agreed to
vote in concert with the Company since the establishment of this
company. The PRC lawyer of the Company confirmed that these
agreements are valid under relevant PRC laws. Considering the
above mentioned factors, the directors are of the opinion that the
Company controlled this company during the years presented.

(BRIEZBHA - UAREIIR)

19 HBEARNWKRE (F)

it

0]

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

R Guodian
Environment Group Hong Kong

Technology &

Corporation Limited, Guodian
Longyuan Technologies USA
CorporationlA & Guodian United
Power American LLCH)Z X %78
2O HM R ZIBERRENZ
B ZERRNEREB AP XE
T e

R4 BBEBEFRETZA
&) (RLHIsE42) ©

ZRBIKSLAR - REEAE F6
T UERETRZARNNERAX

&%~ ) O B 755 AR 2 BUR L A T
BN A RS R B P B Y as

ARBRZRNRRANERNAE
E BREZARNAAER  TF
ARk R BB NIERZA
A EMERAAE - EZ R RE
£ ARRBRBERSREEA
CFERERBLREERESFH
P EHZARMNEEEZEES
© BRZN B AR - AN E R
ZARME TIRRERE 7 ha R
BEWERE  WERRREEAR
ARH—BERER - ARRNPE
RENRER - LEMBEP BERR
TAERN -ERLRRX E=F
PMRR EREFRA - AREY
ZAEREESE -

mo

\
/

s
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19

20

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(v)

19

The following table lists out the information relating to subsidiaries

of the Group which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).

The summarised financial information presented below presents

the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

HERARNRE ()
Wi - (4

(v) TRE A S E R A M
BARMEBEEETTIHE TK
FIAMBE M HEE R ARMBERE
HHEAEE -

Guodian United
Power Technology Co., Ltd.

Yantai Longyuan
Power Technology Co., Ltd.

BEHEBHAEMERAT EAERENBMRAERAR
2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT AREFT AR®TFT ANEBTFT
NCI percentage FEFE R R = b O 30.00% 30.00% 76.75% 76.75%
Current assets TEEE 13,300,100 9,903,273 2,770,077 2,627,737
Non-curent assets ERBEE 1,277,745 3,461,383 395,958 315,730
Current liabilities REaE (11,422,025)  (10,130,989) (973,248) (873,273)
Non-current liabilities FRBARE (578,844) (844,303) (20,908) (24,681)
Net assets BEFE 2,576,976 2,389,364 2,171,880 2,045,513
Carrying amount of NCI FEREREESE 773,093 716,809 1,666,918 1,569,931
Revenue WA 8,756,955 6,300,772 1,613,581 1,371,834
Profit and total comprehensive AFEEMBEREENREE 24,155 306,727 170,100 210,690
income for the year
Profit allocated to NCI NRIE 2 O 2otk b 7,247 92,018 130,552 161,705
Dividend paid to NCI ERTHERERNRE — — 32,824 21,883
Cash flows from operating activities RETFHELR 1,902,743 (1,085,637) (65,866) 134,969
Cash flows from investing activities REZHRER 11,790 481,147 (289,401) 227,447
Cash flows from financing activities METBRER (1,909,142) 1,072,777 39,654 (59,085)
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20 HWHEAANRE
The Group rE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fx AR For
Share of net assets JEIEEEFE 385,667 410,014
Amounts due from associates i Rl/N NG 1,200 1,200
386,867 411,214
The Company ¥ NN
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR For
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRG - BEAAE 35,941 63,116
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BTSRRI (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

The following list contains only the particulars of material
associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose
quoted market price is not available and established in the PRC,
which principally affected the results or assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2014:

20

(BRIEZBRHA - UAREIIR)

HBEQARNKRE (&)

TREYHE T HARNERE2014F12A31
HRNEESEEEBEFEFENERX
BENRNFE TAELEARNA
REMSRENAREE ETAR] I
BRI o

Proportion of ownership interest

FEERRLA
Group’s
Place of Issued and fully effective  Held by the Held by
Name of the company establishment paid-up capital interest ~ Company

subsidiaries  Principal activities

BRTHERE  AREN  @HERF HWE
RAER R BRNER  ENER BE  DAKE TEEE
Beijing Longyuan Cooling Technology The PRC RMB50,000,000 60% 60% —  Production and installation
Co., Ltd. (note (ii)) HE AR ®50,000,0007 of cooling equipment
(tRERS ARMERDR) Wit) RAEENEERRSE
Guizhou Longyuan Wongfu Environment The PRC RMB250,000,000 55% 55% —  Operation of environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. (note (ii)) # AE250,000,0007T protection facilities
(EMERERRRMBERRA) (W) BRRERERLE
Notes: Bzt -
(i) The English translation of the names is for identification only. The 0) NENEXELBEAERZE &
official names of these entities are in Chinese. LRNRIMIEX BB AP XL -
(ii) According to the articles of association of these companies, (ii) BEZZEATNLATNEZR  BRNE

the resolutions in relation to material financial and operating
decisions have to be passed by three-fourth of directors. As
the Company only has rights to appoint less than three-fourth of
directors of these companies, the Company does not have power
to control the financial and operating policies of these companies
although the Company owns more than half of equity interests
and voting power in these companies.

AU BREERARNAZZTEND
ZZMESRB - ARARAIESR
BEGZEARLROAD 2 =WE
= AREERRAFHALERA
BYBOERRRRE  AREH
ZENTNMBRESHETASR
YEGIHE -
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

20

Summarised financial information of the material associates,

adjusted for any differences

in accounting policies,

and

reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial

statements, are disclosed below:

HBEQARNKRE (&)

BEABERRNMERBEL (BEA
EEABENEZRET T HE  XH
MEAHMBHREANEE SR WE

mF -

Beijing Longyuan
Cooling Technology

Guizhou Longyuan
Wongfu Environment

Co., Ltd. Technology Co., Ltd.
L HEERL A AT BEMNEREBRR
BERAT NEERAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Gross amounts of the associates: NS R
Current assets REEBE 508,278 843,739 113,320 21,935
Non-current assets ERBEE 103,183 111,198 1,168,233 589,016
Current liabilities mENEE (463,530) (775,457)  (1,031,553) (360,951)
Non-current liabilities FnEas (22,766) (16,309) — —
Equity = 125,165 163,171 250,000 250,000
Revenue KA 609,169 620,784 — —
Profit and total comprehensive REFNEEGE W HBTE 10,612 11,385 - —
income for the year
Dividend received from DU E AR Z A 29,171 13,886 — —
the associates
Reconciled to the Group’s ASNEAREEY
interests in the associates: BENRIMIRE
Gross amounts of net assets of & NR EEERLTR 125,165 163,171 250,000 250,000
the associates
Group’s effective interest FEBER#EE 60% 60% 55% 55%
Group’s share of net assets of KEBEEBMENRFEE 75,099 97,903 137,500 137,500
the associates
Carrying amount in the REFMBRENRESE 75,099 97,903 137,500 137,500

consolidated financial statements
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 20 HEEQATHNEE (&)
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually BRI EEAREE ANTISITE2EEA
material:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFR ARETFr
Aggregate carrying amount of £ & Ot IS R R E R FEE KB & 173,068 174,611
individually immaterial associates in NAMEFTRESE
the consolidated financial statements
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REBRGLERE QTN
share of those associates BETe8
Losses from continuing operations REFELENEE 14,945 (57,506)
Other comprehensive income H s Kam — —
Total comprehensive income malsssass 14,945 (57,506)
An associate of the Group is loss making and the Group’s AEE—-FREE 2R BEREEBR
share of the accumulated losses of that associate has R REBEEEZBEATNREES

exceeded its interest in the associate. In accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(g), the Group discontinued
to recognise its share of losses of the associate. The current
year unrecognised share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate is RMB14,119,000 (2013:
RMB43,174,000). The accumulated unrecognised share of losses
of an associate as at the balance sheet date is RMB57,293,000
(2013: RMB43,174,000).

BEBBAEEYEZBEFMIEE -
BB F2(g)F ZIBA M 5T BUR - K
SECETHEREEZBEAAPH
BERMNE AFEHZEE QAR
BREBMBEBBRENYEZHE D
AR EN ST A ARKE14,119,000
70 (20134 + A R #43,174,0007T) °

REEBBEXRARTHZBER AN
KREREE DA ARKS7,293,000
7T (20134 : AR#43,174,0007T) °

OTHER EQUITY INVESTMENTS 21 HitERRE
The Group AEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ABETFT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost JEFTRERES IR AGTE 162,187 162,187
The Company AN
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr ARETFT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FELTRREFS  BRKAE 156,070 156,070

215
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22  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 22 HMERBEE
The Group EE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFR AREFT
Long-term trade receivables REAFEUCER SR « (A7)
due from: (note (i)
— related parties under Guodian — BETENBEES 777,991 783,144
— third parties —%=h 178,973 24,228
Less: current portion of long-term B I HA FE W R A B AR ER (D (174,725) (171,906)
trade receivables
782,239 635,466
Long-term service concession receivables — FEURE =5 RG4S Fr i K 57 1,165,472 1,150,349
due from third parties (note (ii)) FE MR IE (K122 (i)
Less: current portion of long-term service W BRSRERET R R HARE U (37,888) (30,813)
concession receivables FIB /BN ER 1D
1,127,584 1,119,536
Long-term retention receivables REIEWEREFKIB « (B £3i))
due from: (note (iii))
— related parties under Guodian — EETNEN@EES 190,306 161,294
— third parties —EB=5 1,991,902 2,014,730
2,182,208 2,176,024
Long-term loans to third parties (note (iv)) RELEE=TH 14,930 14,411
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L L (R
Non-current financial assets EnBEeRMEE 4,106,961 3,945,437
Long-term prepayments RHITE R 11,507 14,294
Deductible VAT (note (v)) AARIR B (A A (V) 536,308 647,508
4,654,776 4,607,239
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(BRIEZBHAB - LAREIITR)

22 HtERBEE (H)

The Company P/ NN
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR B For
Long-term trade receivables REAFEUCER SR« (B73E())
due from: (note (i)
— related parties under Guodian BETEMNER S 51,207 108,109
— third parties —F=h 10,328 —
Less: current portion of long-term B R EAFE U BR SRR B ER ER 1 (49,860) (49,860)
trade receivables
Non-current financial assets ERBEMEE 11,675 58,249
Deductible VAT (note (v)) AT B E R (BTt (v)) 28,739 33,585
40,414 91,834
Notes: HKiat -

(iii)

Long-term trade receivables represent trade receivables of
certain construction contracts which are repayable by instalments
over a 3 to 8-year period.

Long-term service concession receivables due from third
parties represent the amounts contractually and unconditionally
receivable in connection with construction services under
concession arrangements (note 45).

Long-term retention receivables represent retentions of sales of
wind turbines which will be received when the retention period
elapses.

A loan to third party represents an unsecured interest-free loan
which is repayable by instalments from 2015 to 2034.

Deductible VAT represents the input VAT in excess of output
VAT. Input VAT is recognised for the purchase of manufacturing
raw materials and components and acquisitions of machinery
and equipment used for operation. Input VAT will be deductible
from output VAT payable for goods to be sold in subsequent
years.

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

£ 3 e WOR SRR 3-8 I ) H]
EReETRESRE TR EEE

e
A °

JE U 28 = 77 AR 7% 55 e = ER PR UK
BRERFTEERETHRERS
T 2 40 7 I 4 A4 10 JE U 3R IE (B
545) °

EHEKRERSFIAEERDR 2
BRFRENENEHEERERIR

RELE=ZFNERAEEROT
HEEN  ZEERHEN20154FE
2034F H HAEE -

AR ER IR EH B R
FIREMA Y - ERIBEHNE
BAEERRME R A REE &
ERAMSERERERER  ETHIEE
MR R EFEHEEMES TR
SHIRIBE R E -
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22

23

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

22 HtERBEE ()

Notes: (continued) Hia - (48)
(vi) All non-current financial assets of the Group and the Company (vi) AEBRARRNATAERE S
are neither past due nor impaired. BEMAKRBE - FAREERE -
(vi)  As at 31 December 2014, long-term service concession (viii B E2014%F12A318 ' W&
receivables of the Group amounting to RMB547,486,000 (2013: WITERIEAERMETERY
RMB709,240,000) was pledged as collateral for bank loans (see BREHFTERABRKRIARE
note 30). 547,486,0007T (20135 : AR
709,240,0007T) (FLHI3E30) °
INVENTORIES 23 ®FEH
(@) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet comprises: (a) EHEEABRTHNEERNE:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARETFT
Raw materials R # 1,215,392 1,243,307
Work in progress EE® 1,062,019 568,161
Finished goods K Gh 2,221,754 2,148,714
Spare parts 1 4,802 4,686
4,503,967 3,964,868
(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as by HEEHUEXRTERAEERN
an expense and included in the consolidated income FEBENT :
statement is as follows:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Carrying amount of inventories sold & H7FEMERA S5
Write down of inventories FEMOR

10,505,555 9,700,773
29,181 57,155

10,534,736 9,757,928
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24 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS
FOR CONTRACT WORK

24

(BRIEZBRHA - UAREIIR)

W, ENRESREF
MIRBEE

The Group NEEF
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFT
Contract costs incurred plus FEFTEEARBEBEESRMKAE 29,590,915 21,737,717

recognised profits less recognised

losses in connection with
construction contracts in progress

Less: progress billings

o TIREE N

B ERF B #RNEX

(27,377,843) (19,822,577)

2,213,072 1,915,140
Gross amounts due from BB IESREP IR EE 3,486,111 2,673,962
customers for contract work (BT a2 cii) 24 iii))
(notes (ii) and (iii))
Gross amounts due to customers ENEESERRPRIBERE (1,273,039) (758,822)
for contract work (note (iv)) (B at(iv))
2,213,072 1,951,140

Notes:

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

Gross amounts due from customers for contract work represent
unbilled revenue for contract work and are presented as assets
in the consolidated balance sheet. Gross amounts due to
customers for contract work represent the amounts billed in
advance of the contract work delivered and are presented as

liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

The gross amounts due from customers for contract work
of the Group include amounts of RMB2,748,184,000 (2013:
RMB1,872,246,000) due from related parties under Guodian.

As at 31 December 2014, except for amounts of RMB123,375,000
(2013: RMB99,304,000) which are payable to the Group after the
retention period of construction contracts, all of the remaining
gross amounts due from customers for contract work of the
Group are expected to be recovered within one year.

Included in the gross amounts due to customers for contract
work are amounts of RMB758,636,000 (2013: RMB471,081,000)
due to related parties under Guodian.

(i) Y EESREPHABEEAR
TRETRERENRA  EAGH
EERBERTIREE - BNURE
EREPHRARBERCRRESRR
ZREERIRENESHE BEESR
BERATIBERE -

(if) AEEEKZEART P RIEAE
BIE FEYE S T B A B B 7 ULy
5 AR #2,748,184,0007T (2013
& AR¥1,872,246,0007T) °

(iii) M2014%F12H31H8 - BEEARE
THEREMZ BEMGEREER
AR #123,375,0007T (20134 : A
R #99,304,0007T) 2 5h + AN & E
EUREARBPRBRAENE
FIgRERF « FEEHEE—F 2 AUE -

(iv) BEERNREESREP RIARE
ZM’J%iH B E T & ) B

# 5 1E A A R #758,636,0007T

(2013¢ : AR#E471,081,0007T) ©
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(BRIEZBHA  UAARBEIITR)

25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

25 BUWRIFKREE

The Group EE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR For
Trade receivables for contract AR TERERERER
work due from:
— Guodian S 91,723 168,953
— related parties under Guodian — EET BB 2,612,109 2,829,027
— associates — BERNT 6,039 69,036
— third parties — %=k 5,005,557 3,666,092
7,765,428 6,733,108
Bills receivable for contract AERIEMERERE :
work due from:
— related parties under Guodian — BEETEREE S 1,287,553 1,016,907
— third parties —E=5 384,236 168,391
1,671,789 1,185,298
Trade receivables for operating KETHEREWERE
leases due from:
— related parties under Guodian — BEETERNBEEG S 370,193 347,941
— third parties —%=F 15,924 238,832
386,117 586,773
Trade receivables for sale of HER M EIRERBEH
goods and rendering of FEMWAR R = (B 73(ii))
services due from: (note (ii))
— Guodian — EE 4,469 3,186
— related parties under Guodian — BET BT 2,597,080 1,053,122
— associates — BN A 3,322 2,246
— third parties —F=5 7,976,821 8,955,912
10,581,692 10,014,466
Bills receivable for sale of goods and SHENMmEEERBH
rendering of services due from: FEM TR -
— related parties under Guodian — BB T B R 495,283 5,509
— associates — B A A 31,199 700
— third parties —5%=5 1,008,251 1,160,863
1,534,733 1,167,072
21,939,759 19,686,717
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RIZEREAE (268,386) (182,958)
21,671,373 19,503,759
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25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 25 RUWERIRKRERE (&)

The Company N

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ABRBTIT

Trade receivables for contract ARIEAERERER
work due from:
— related parties under Guodian — BETENBEES 76,416 90,311
— third parties —%=h 43,787 50,801
120,203 141,112
Trade receivables for sale of goods and  $5& 7 7 MIRHERIEHY
rendering of services due from: JE W AR 3R -
— subsidiaries — BtE R A 29,620 609,140
— related parties under Guodian — BEETENBEES 318 1,160
— third parties —%=5 120,850 84,532
150,788 694,832
Bills receivable for sale of goods and BB ARMHEER®E R 54,797 43,356
rendering of services due from a RIEREEKREE
subsidiary
325,788 879,300
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RIEBR B (16,328) (12,128)

309,460 867,172
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25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Trade and bills
discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers and factored
trade receivables with recourse totalling RMB856,710,000 (2013:
RMB1,229,899,000). These receivables were not derecognised
as the Group remains exposed to the credit risk of these

receivables of the Group include bills

receivables. The carrying amount of the associated bank loans
and trade payables amounted to RMB834,239,000 (2013:
RMB1,046,949,000). As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of
the transferred assets and the associated liabilities is the same
as their carrying amount, with the net position of RMB22,471,000
(2013: RMB182,950,000).

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of the Group
amounting to RMB192,960,000 (2013: RMB823,546,000) was
pledged as collateral for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (see note 30).

All trade and bills receivables (net of impairment losses for
doubtful debts) of the Group and the Company are expected to
be recovered within one year.

C))

Ageing analysis

As at 31 December 2014, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables, based on invoice date (or date
of revenue recognition, if earlier) and net of allowance

25 BWERMERE(E)

Hiat

(i)

(if)

RNEBMERERRZEBIER
BRI EEERGHERN
ER URTERENERER
R %%k ARK¥856,710,000
7T (20134 : AR #1,229,899,000
TT) © iE L E U AR FRORN 2 4R R A R
IHHER - AAREBEN Y ELER
BERMBEEGERER - HAR
TERRENERNEESEAA
R 834,239,000t (20134 : AR
#1,046,949,0007T) ° 2014412
A31H EREENAAEBEKH
GEEREEESEER  FE2E
A AN R #22 471,0007T (20134 -
AR #182,950,0007T) °

MR20146 128318  XEBEA
ERRITREMEKIP Y ML H
fiE Uy Bk 3 B A R #5192,960,0007T
(20134 : A R #823,546,0007T)
(RMFE30) °

REBERDFH A EIRRESE
BHBRREZEROBRAEER) B KR
—F2RE -

(a) BRERZDHT

MR20145 128310 - A& B @&
AR ERHALEZEHHARE
WER R R E i (B RIEZR#E

for doubtful debts of the Group and the Company is as &) BERRS T T -
follows:
The Group KEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR For
Within 1 year 1E R 19,032,456 18,318,199
Between 1 to 2 years 122K 2,270,952 765,033
Between 2 to 3 years 2E3F R 255,303 322,316
Over 3 years 3FELE 112,662 98,211
21,671,373 19,503,759
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25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(BRIEZBRHA - UAREIIR)

25 BUWERMKEZRE(E)

Ageing analysis (continued) () ERERZD T (&)
The Company AN |
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARE T
Within 1 year 1F R 277,386 809,530
Between 1 to 2 years 1229 K 27,878 52,349
Between 2 to 3 years 2E3FR 3,951 3,175
Over 3 years 3F L 245 2,118
309,460 867,172
Trade receivables are required to be settled in JEUWBR SR IZ & R -
accordance with contracted terms and are generally due — MR RRAS PR BRI A AL g
immediately without credit upon the issuance of invoice. EERVARE AR AEEH
Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in ERAREOFMAHRA 2R
note 38(a). ££38(a) °
Impairment of trade and bills receivables (b) EWERREREENEE

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade and bills receivables directly (see note 2(n)

(1))

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during
the year, including both specific and collective loss
components, is as follows:

JE U BR R I AR B0 R B S 1R
WEREABEER BRIEREER
BETAARERDZKIE £
WIEFZT  AEEGHERE
AR 5K K 22 % B (8 /B 18 I 88
(BB sE2(n)(0)) °

4 4 5 1 B A0 B 8 ) R B
BHEHDT :

The Group rEH
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR® T
At 1 January ®1A1H 182,958 135,474
Impairment losses recognised R R EEE 124,268 71,576
Reversal of impairment losses B BB m (37,842) (24,092)
Uncollectible amounts written-off AT Uk 5] 3K B % 8 (998) —
At 31 December ®12A831H 268,386 182,958
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25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 25 ERUWERIRKRERE (&)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables EWERRZENRE (&)
(continued)
The Company AAT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AREFT
At 1 January R®1A1H 12,128 12,128
Impairment losses recognised ERE R EEE 4,200 —
At 31 December M®12A31H 16,328 12,128

The Group’s and the Company’s trade and bills
receivables of RMB470,463,000 (2013: RMB193,107,000)
and RMB24,728,000 (2013: RMB12,128,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were
in financial difficulties and management assessed that
the receivables are expected to be unrecoverable.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts
of RMB195,370,000 (2013: RMB136,948,000) and
RMB16,328,000 (2013: RMB12,128,000) were recognised
by the Group and the Company respectively.

AEBERNQREBBTE A
EREMNERERRZES 5
A N R #470,463,0007T (2013
F: AR #193,107,0007T) £
AR %24 728,0007T (20134 :
AR #12,128,0007T) ° # &
RIEEE A& B R E A B IR FRIE T
BEREEVBERENEFREE
BEITRABHEEBUGRIETH
gEmE - At AEBMBELRA
AN R RIBREHET AR
#195,370,0007T (20134 : A
R #136,948,0007T) B2 A R &
16,328,0007T (2013F : AR
#12 128,0007T) °
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25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

(BRIEZBRHA - UAREIIR)

25 BUWERMKEZRE(E)

(c)

I EBENERRER R RE

BRIk M5 I ER AL E
BN ERERRMEZEER D
o

The Group REH
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEREFTT ARETFT
Neither past due nor impaired BE R B HR TR R B 3,452,669 2,402,938
Within 1 year 1FER 14,953,119 16,039,955
Between 1 to 2 years 13224 2,238,159 709,382
Between 2 to 3 years 2E3F 200,123 229,927
Over 3 years 3FEL E 40,380 59,514
17,431,781 17,038,778
20,884,450 19,441,716

The Company b /N
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETFT
Neither past due nor impaired B oK %80 2R 71 R (B 104,657 93,216
Within 1 year 1F A 138,910 716,314
Between 1 to 2 years 1224 23,678 52,349
Between 2 to 3 years 2E3F 3,951 3,175
Over 3 years 3FEM 245 2,118
166,784 773,956
271,441 867,172

Aged receivables that were not impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there were no recent history
of default and have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

RELRENRKEREBEER
HRZEPHEE ZEEFP&
MRBRENES - EALE—
ERBRENR ZLHE - RIE
BELR EEERE ZF
BRERAREREG HERE
ERFLEEAREE YAEL
REARIDBAR AT A 2 E @ o
R R H Ll BRERSE A
1) o

225




226

2014 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B ER R et (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIESEHA - UARBIITR)

26

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 26 #%4& FBEHNREREME
RECEIVABLES W =g
The Group KEH
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEB®FT AREFT
Prepayments to sub-contractors (note (i) 40 BRETEN K (A2 ())
— related parties under Guodian — BET B 17,962 84,011
— third parties —%=H 1,100,596 1,141,092
Prepayments for purchase of inventories B FEMNENK
— related parties under Guodian — BET B 851 2,602
— associates — B — 1,164
— third parties —%=5 830,500 429,815
Deposits for construction contracts’ EiEARMNIKIZESR
bidding or performance (note (ii)) BRVRES (M 7))
— related parties under Guodian — BET B 110,288 106,374
— third parties —%=5 120,276 141,066
Other deposits Hitze 8,335 14,543
Advances to staff METHER 20,026 24,496
Advances to B
— associates (note (iii)) — Bt R E (B i) 460,287 350,359
— third parties —%=5 14,157 11,350
Interest receivables FEWH S B
— associates — BenE 80,585 4,659
— third parties —%=5 19,961 5,433
Dividends receivables FERAR S 8
— related parties under Guodian — EHETENEE S 3,500 —
— associates — Bt A — 13,886
Consideration receivable from a related FEWRE TBNBEE TS 100,000 100,000
party under Guodian for the disposal HEBSARNEE
of an associate
Consideration receivable for the disposal EWRHEDE KE X
of property, plant and equipment FAHEHRIA
— related parties under Guodian — BET B — 103,742
— an associate — Bt A 205,745 —
— third parties —%=5 103,742 —
Compensation receivables FE U BE (B 3K 141,152 69,987
Others Hith 64,691 75,550
3,402,654 2,680,129
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RIFEREAE (19,332) (5,645)
3,383,322 2,674,484
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 26 %€ FENFERHEME
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) Wk (8&)
The Company AAT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFT
Prepayments to sub-contractors X4 B E e AR R
— subsidiaries . N 1,156 —
— third parties —%=h 8,571 54,834
Advances to subsidiaries NG EAE 8,142,584 7,969,229
Dividends receivable from JE B9 % B,
— subsidiaries — B AR 181,155 50,750
— related parties under Guodian — BEETEH AR 3,500 —
— associate — BT — 13,886
Consideration receivable from a related JEUWEE BRI EE T H 100,000 100,000
party under Guodian for the disposal HEBENFNYEE
of an associate
Others Hih 7,668 16,294
8,444,634 8,204,993
Notes: B -

(iii)

The balances represent prepayments to the sub-contractors
in connection with the Group’s construction contracts. The
prepayments will be settled upon the delivery of goods and
services by the sub-contractors.

The balances represent deposits placed with customers for
contracts bidding or performance of contracts in progress. The
deposits will be released to the Group upon the completion of
the related bidding or contract work, where applicable.

Advances to associates of RMB443,000,000 (2013:
RMB329,000,000) and RMB16,388,000 (2013: RMB19,779,000)
as at 31 December 2014 are unsecured, bear interest at 6.00%
(2013: 6.00%) per annum and 6.60% (2013: 6.60%) per annum,
and are repayable from 28 April 2015 to 12 October 2015
(2013: 25 December 2014) and 27 December 2015 (2013: 27
December 2014), respectively. All other advances to associates
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(if)

(iii)

ZHEEERAEENEES R
RO BEXMNHENK - DBEX
NEMRRE 2% RIEEBENK

s
wE o

ZHEARBRAREEREREYN
MXNEEFPNRES - BERER
FARIRTI 2% ZRESA
RIRERAEE -

M2014% 128310 B AR
443,000,0007T (20134 = A
R #329,000,0007T) & A R ¥
16,388,0007T (2013%F : AR
19,779,0007t) F 2. %E 5 7l /£6.00%
(20134 : 6.00% ) * 6.60% (2013
F:6.60%) 25 B RIER
201594 A28 R £2015F 10812
A (20134 : 2014F12825H) &
20156128278 (20134 : 20144F
12A27H) BEMREZIHI A
Hb4a B & A RIM B9 EEM
THEEEREER 2 BANE AR

Eo
A °
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26 DEPOSITS,

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against deposits, prepayments and other receivables
directly (note 2(n)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful
accounts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, is as follows:

26 B FEANREREGE
Wk E (8)

(a)

B2 BANREREMER
IR E

%e - A BN R H M E R
BRI E R ABER - BRIE
NEBMRAHLET T gel B %
RECERBEEZT BIEE
BHEEe BARBREM
JEUR R IE R E R B E (R
MEEE2(n)(0)) °

4 MR 8 R
mEBIT

The Group EHE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT
At 1 January M1 A1H 5,645 4,730
Impairment losses recognised REREEE 14,389 1,015
Reversal of impairment losses BB EEE R (702) (100)
At 31 December ®12A31H 19,332 5,645

The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other
receivables of RMB7,372,000 (2013: RMB904,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to the counterparties that
were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that the receivables are expected to be unrecoverable.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of
RMB7,372,000 (2013: RMB904,000) were recognised by
the Group.

For other balances of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables, management is of the opinion that the
counterparties are with good credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable.

AEBHEEERNFTEAE R
EMZSE BHREBERERK
I8 & A R #7,372,0007T (2013
F 1 904,0007T) c WERFEARE
BB B FE R IE T B R TR R BR
BREMBENEFBEEEET
ERBEEUWGKIBIET T8
g IS N e o B
BREE T AR 7,372,000
(20134 : 904,0007T) °

BREMZE  ANRERE
MENKE BEEERS Y
TEBRENEREE IR
B BN RIE KA R K
BAATERNE -



27

28

2014 &8
HENEBRREBROERLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 R R BT =t (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESHHB - UARBIIR)

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS 27 ZREIEFER
Restricted deposits mainly represent guarantee deposits, cash SREEFEFIERARESTFR  E
pledged as collateral for bills payable and loans. Majority of NEBELREZRBEENEKFRS K%
these restricted deposits are expected to be released within one TR TFRFEFER —F 2 NER
year. PR 4l ©
CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND 28 HRITERRERERS
The Group NEHE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETFT
Cash in hand BEFRS 319 582
Cash at bank RITIEK 1,855,092 2,517,192
Cash at Guodian Finance Corporation REGEERAR ((BEHK]) 1,269,396 1,682,914
Limited (“Guodian Finance”) R ETER
3,124,807 4,100,688
Representing: BFE
— cash and cash equivalents — BeRREEED 2,456,107 3,633,688
— deposits with banks over three — VIR EIEE =@ A L8 668,700 467,000
months of original maturity RITIFR
3,124,807 4,100,688
The Company
AAT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFor
Cash in hand BiFRE — 61
Cash at bank RITHERK 52,060 530,987
Cash at Guodian Finance BYBHHER 434,810 154,801
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBReEEY 486,870 685,849
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29 DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD FOR SALE 29

In 2013, the Group committed to plans to sell its entire equity
interests in two wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group within
the environmental protection segment. The Group has started
to make an effort to negotiate with potential buyer in 2013.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of those subsidiaries are
presented as disposal groups held for sale. The sales were
completed in 2014.

(a) Assets and liabilities of disposal groups held for
sale

At 31 December 2013, the disposal groups were stated
at carrying value comprised the following assets and

FEGENHEAR

R2013F N EE B ABEITE L E M
XERRRDBOEENB AR ZA
BHEZRETE - R2013EARE @D 5
REEBENERETHN Bt %
EHBRARMNEEREBEY RAESE
FENHEAR ZELESHER
2014F 52K °

o) FHEGENHEARNZEE
kEE

R2013%F12A318 * B A&
EREEAKNTEHSHARI LR

liabilities. HE? R -

RMB’000

AR For

Property, plant and equipment Y HE REE 12,913
Other non-current assets HIEnHEE 126,721
Trade and other receivables & S BR B N L Ath Y R IE 50,726
Inventories FE 32
Assets held for sale BEFEERE 190,392
Borrowings EE (110,000)
Trade and other payables JE 5 BR 2N N L fih B A~ 2O (5,029)
Liabilities held for sale BESEER (115,029)

(b) Cumulative income or expenses include in other
comprehensive income

There are no cumulative income or expenses included in
other comprehensive income relating to these disposal
groups.

b) FARMEEKREPHRE
W 35 K% B 32

H {2 2 W28 o 30 M B A B3R
5 ) 40 510 B 40 B 5 as
P -
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30 BORROWINGS 30 B
(@) The long-term interest-bearing borrowings (o) REASSEREHE:
comprise:
The Group KEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMF T AR®T T

Bank loans RITER
— secured (notes (i) and (jii)) — AR (B2 0) K i) 1,387,440 1,701,061
— unsecured — 2,176,630 1,581,230
Other loans from third parties KEAFZTHEHMER 68,037 —
(unsecured) (E|H)
Corporate bonds (note (ii) NaEES (B atei) 4,055,645 4,049,525
7,687,752 7,331,816
Less: current portion of long-term B REAE AR HAEf 5 (2,601,018) (599,033)
borrowings
5,086,734 6,732,783
The Company S
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFR AREFT
Bank loans (unsecured) RITER (EIER) 947,500 550,000
Corporate bonds (note (ii) RNRMES (B £0i)) 4,055,645 4,049,525
5,003,145 4,599,525
Less: current portion of L REAE KA RN HA &R (5 (1,891,258) (190,978)

long-term borrowings

3,111,887 4,408,547
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30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(a) The

long-term interest-bearing borrowings

comprise: (continued)

Notes:

0]

(iii)

Secured long-term interest-bearing borrowings as at 31
December 2014 were guaranteed and/or secured by
concession assets (note 17), trade and bills receivables
(note 25), long-term service concession receivables (note
22) and income stream of certain subsidiaries. Secured
long-term interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December
2013 were guaranteed and/or secured by concession
assets (note 17), property, plant and equipment (note

(note 16),
long-term service concession

14), lease prepayments trade and bills
(note 25),

receivables (note 22) and income stream of certain

receivables

subsidiaries.

In August 2012, the Company issued corporate bonds
of RMB4,000,000,000, which comprise 3-year corporate
bonds of RMB1,200,000,000 issued at par and with
a coupon rate of 4.30% per annum, 5-year corporate
bonds of RMBB800,000,000 issued at par and with a
coupon rate of 4.65% per annum and 10-year corporate
bonds of RMB2,000,000,000 issued at par and with a
coupon rate of 5.15% per annum. All corporate bonds
are guaranteed by Guodian. The effective interest rates
of the bonds are 4.52%, 4.85% and 5.24% per annum
respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, two bank loans of the Group
totalling RMB750,000,000 (2013: RMB900,000,000) are
guaranteed by Guodian.

30 & (&)

(a)

REGEERERE

(iii)

()

M20146 128310 » K #
Eﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁkﬁxﬁﬂ%
K/ sk LA B %%%ﬁ%éfz
(P 5E17) Eﬂﬁlﬁﬁm

& (M &525) ~r§uﬂzﬁﬁ%%
B R K A U sk B (MR
2) ETFTHBLARZH
B K18 - 20135128
1A HEANRBATER
RAZERR AR
A E (ME17) -
ME - BB RRE (M
14) ~ TN LT E % (
$16)  EWEREER
(M 5%25) \%M&’i%%%%
K HA U ke (KT FE22)
RETHERQR 2B E
R

N2012%F8 A7 + &N A A
BOARBEFARE
4,000,000,0007T * B &
HEZRTH=FHARIE
% AR #1,200,000,000
7T - REFFEHF4.30% ;
REHEZHTNAFHEAR
f& % A R #800,000,000
7T REFFER4.65% ;
REEZHTNTFHAR
& % A K #2,000,000,000
7T BEFFERE515% o
FEARESBEEE
Ro-UWEBHENERFR
RSP B4.52% - 4.85% K
5.24% °

M2014%F12A318 -
EAAEBEMERITHE
AR #750,000,000
7t (2013F : AR %
900,000,0007T) HR L HE(R o
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30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

30 MR (&)

(b) The short-term interest-bearing borrowings b) EHEEEREE:
comprise:
The Group rEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR For
Bank loans RITER
— secured (note (i) — |\ (W aE0) 311,100 892,694
— unsecured — EI 8,745,500 10,185,490
Other loans HiER
— Guodian (unsecured) — BE (EEH) 65,080 300,000
— related parties under Guodian — BET B
— secured (note (i) — | (W a2) 300,000 200,000
— unsecured — I 60,000 600,000
— third parties (unsecured) — E=H (EEH) — 500,000
Private placement notes MAREEEHELA 1,373,438 —
(unsecured) (note (ii)) (AR (K72 i))
Current portion of & HA & Z B0 BV HA BB 10 2,601,018 599,033
long-term borrowings
13,456,136 13,277,217
The Company SR
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT AR For
Bank loans RITER
— secured (note (i) — |8 (W) — 200,000
— unsecured — EIKA 2,300,000 3,580,000
Other loans BB
— Guodian (unsecured) — BB (EEH) 65,080 300,000
— related parties under — BEETERREE (EER) 60,000 600,000
Guodian (unsecured)
Private placement notes AR EEEHELAR 1,373,438 —
(unsecured) (note (ii)) () (K7 70i))
Current portion of RAEME KRB BVERER 19 1,891,258 190,978
long-term borrowings
5,689,776 4,870,978
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30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30 fER (&)

(b) The short-term interest-bearing borrowings (b) EHTEEREE: (E
comprise: (continued)

Notes: Bt -

(i) Secured short-term interest-bearing borrowings as at (i) M2014F12A31H « K i
31 December 2014 were guaranteed and/or secured MEHEEERAEIER
by income stream of certain subsidiaries and trade and &/QM S TFHEB AR
bills receivables (note 25). Secured short-term interest- WEBERERERRZE
bearing borrowings as at 31 December 2013 were (Mf7E25) YEH 3 - 72013
guaranteed and/or secured by income stream of certain ¢12)5] 318 - HHH) 52 8
subsidiaries and trade and bills receivables (note 25) BEEIAEZERR/ X
and bank deposits (note 27). LA%:FWE AR B

JE W BR AR R SRR (M 5E25)
RARITE R (M 5E27) EHK
e

(i) The Company issued the first and second tranche (i) AR R DRI R20145F6 A
of private placement notes with total face value of F2014F 1 BT T 56—
RMB750,000,000 and RMB600,000,000 in June 2014 HME —HALAREES
and November 2014 respectively. Both tranches have METAE BEEEES
the maturity period of one year and were unsecured and Bl & A & #750,000,0007T
issued at par. The coupon rate and effective interest rate A R #600,000,0007T ©
are 5.30% and 5.62% per annum respectively for the first EMAMA AR S EH R
tranche of private placement notes and are 4.55% and ETEREIABRE A —
4.86% per annum respectively for the second tranche of F BER REAEME
private placement notes. BT -F—HAAREE

BREILANFEEZAEN

EFERRFE S 5 /55.30%
M5.62% B —EAFL AR
EEERETIANFES
EFNENEEFNEDRA
4.55%714.86% °
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(BRIESHHB - UARBIIR)

30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30 fE (&)

(c) The interest rates per annum on borrowings are as (c) BERERRMT :

follows:
The Group EH

2014 2013
Long-term R
Bank loans RITER 4.82%-7.81%  4.86%-7.86%
Other loans HihEX 7.07% —
Corporate bonds NGIIEE 4.30%-5.15%  4.30%-5.15%
Short-term SR
Bank loans RITER 4.80%-7.22%  4.80%-7.22%
Other loans HiER 3.75%-5.80%  3.75%-5.80%
Private placement notes MAREEEHETLA 4.55%—5.30% —
The Company AN

2014 2013
Long-term R
Bank loans RITER 5.54%-6.55% 5.54%
Corporate bonds NGIIEE - 4.30%-5.30%  4.30%-5.15%
Short-term EH
Bank loans RITER 5.04%-6.30%  5.04%-6.60%
Other loans HiER 3.75%-5.80%  3.75%-5.80%
Private placement notes AREESBRETA 4.55%-5.30% —
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(BRIEREHA  UAREITR)

30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(d)

30 & (&)

The long-term borrowings are repayable as follows: (d) RHEEXEBXREBERWOT:
The Group NEHE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR For
Within 1 year or on demand 1 N gk E SR BNE R 2,601,018 599,033
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F A FR2FE R 983,055 2,530,495
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FE LA F{B5FIAR 2,269,383 2,490,100
After 5 years 54 1,834,296 1,712,188
7,687,752 7,331,816
The Company b N
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM T AR For
Within 1 year or on demand EANEE=S SRV 1,891,258 190,978
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F A EE2FE A 167,654 1,798,544
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA FESF AR 1,179,167 1,009,315
After 5 years 54 F 1,765,066 1,600,688
5,003,145 4,599,525
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TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The Group

AT X 3
B 7% 3= B =T
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIEZEHA  UARBIITR)
31 BNERRRERE

EMH

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ABRBTIT

Bills payable to: BT RAR -
— sub-contractors and — DB REEHLER 36,521 103,369
equipment suppliers
— raw material suppliers — R ER 4,604,905 4,550,158
4,641,426 4,653,527
Trade payables to: JEAT BRI -
— sub-contractors and — HBEkEEHERD :
equipment suppliers:
— related parties under Guodian — BETENBEES 83,946 22,108
— associates — BtE R A 5,571 31,974
— third parties —E=7 6,182,116 4,643,211
6,271,633 4,697,293
— raw material suppliers: — BB RER
— related parties under Guodian — BEETERNMEE S 121,431 121,570
— associates — Bt A 2,215 570
— third parties —8%=5 7,128,865 6,665,905
7,252,511 6,788,045

18,165,570 16,138,865
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31

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 31 ENRIRRERE(E)
The Company b N
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT ABRETT

Bills payable to raw material suppliers HEMBEERNENZE& — 398,854
Trade payables to sub-contractors HopmkREBEHRERD
and equipment suppliers: JETBR X -
— related parties under Guodian — BEET B — 1,588
— subsidiaries — KB A 8,717 206,246
— associates — B R R 240 240
— third parties —%=F 39,718 76,075
48,675 284,149
48,675 683,003

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all trade and bills payables
of the Group and the Company are repayable on demand
except for bills payable which are repayable within 6 months. All
trade and bills payables are expected to be settled within one
year.

20144 k20136128318 * Br 6
BMANEEENENERE N K&
EMARRNMERNERREERE
FEHFBERELBEE - TERTATE B
NERREBBE—F 2R -
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(BRIEZBHRB - UARKTIR)

OTHER PAYABLES 32 HESRE
The Group EE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFR ARMTFor
Interest payables FEAFIE
— Guodian — HE 97 41,325
— related parties under Guodian — BEETENBEES 1,155 —
— third parties —%=h 24,181 21,211
Payables for staff related costs FET B TH B AR 82,810 64,783
Payables for other taxes JE A~ o Ath B I8 244,342 275,040
Payables for acquisition of property, BEVE BMERZHEAR
plant and equipment and land use rights 3 {55 PR RE Y FE T FRIE
— related parties under Guodian — BEETBEN@E S — 83,725
— third parties —EB=7 634,299 899,727
Guarantee deposits JEHRFE S - 79,100
Deposits from sub-contractors (note (i) DEBEXNNEE (HE) 330,388 211,549
Retention payables (note (ii) FE R & 5RIB (BT a2 (i) 145,172 146,326
Advances from (note (iii)) IR (KT a2 (i)
— Guodian — EE — 300,000
— related parties under Guodian — BEETENBEES 527,363 —
— third parties —%=h 138,000 138,000
Dividends payables JFEAH AR B,
— third parties —EB=7 29,633 14,467
Other accruals and payables HihTEiR & B B BB
— Guodian — BE 2,195 14
— related parties under Guodian — BEETENBEES 12,003 77,022
— associates — BtE R A 45,092 8,468
— third parties —%=h 119,313 119,083
Financial liabilities TRAR 2,336,043 2,479,840
Receipts in advance (note (iv)) TEM SRIE (K725 (iv))
— related parties under Guodian — BEETEN@EES 1,335,404 71,146
— associates — g QA 238 7,200
— third parties —%=h 1,065,469 731,510
2,401,111 809,856
4,737,154 3,289,696
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32 OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

32 EHtEMKE (&)

The Company b N
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFR ARETFT
Interest payables FEAFIE
— Guodian — @HE 97 25,200
— related parties under Guodian — BETENBEES 92 —
— third parties —%=h 7,474 6,777
Payables for staff related costs & B TH 8K A 3,207 2,545
Payables for other taxes JE A E A IE 14,390 34,653
Payables for acquisition of property, BEWME WMEREEAR
plant and equipment and land use rights + Hh(F FA #E R FE S 3R0B
— subsidiaries — B AR 150,148 —
— third parties —%=h 15,128 16,033
Guarantee deposits FERFE S — 79,100
Advances from subsidiaries (note (v)) KB R R ES BB (M i£(v)) 633,404 268,400
Other accruals and payables HihTEiR & B B BB
— Guodian — & 467 _
— related parties under Guodian — BETENBEES 179 26,202
— third parties —EB=7 18,537 75,514
Financial liabilities TRAR 843,123 534,424
Receipts in advance TE U SR IE
— subsidiaries — KB AR 18,347 18,347
— third parties —%=h 3,435 3,047
21,782 21,394
864,905 555,818
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OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) The balances represent deposits from sub-contractors for
contract bidding. The deposits will be released to sub-
contractors upon the completion of the related bidding.

(ii) Retention payables represent the amounts due to equipment and
construction contractors which will be settled upon the expiry of
the warranty period.

(iii) All amounts are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed terms
of repayment except for amounts totalling RMB118,000,000 (2013:
RMB418,000,000) as at 31 December 2014 which bear interest
rates ranging from 3.75% to 6.00% (2013: 3.75% to 6.00%) per
annum.

(iv) Included in the balance are amounts of RMB2,720,000 (2013:
RMB18,335,000) advances received from customers for which
the related construction works have not commenced as at the
balance sheet date.

(v) All amounts are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed terms
of repayment except for amounts of RMB30,000,000 (2013:
RMB50,000,000) of the Company which bear interest rate of
4.30% (2013: 5.40%) per annum.

All of the other payables of the Group and the Company are
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year
or are repayable on demand.

32

(BIEREHB - UARKIIR)
Hft FE 4 KR ()

() HICHEERARRBES BEK
Bl e  MMBBERZ & &
SR ERD A -

(i) ENEREFBERERH 2K
AIE T 45 3808 St TACB BBV RRIE

(iii) 2014124318 F | K B3.75%
6.00% (20134 : 3.75%6.00% )
AR #118,000,0007T (20134 = A
R #418,000,0007T) Z 51 * FT B 3Kk
BFHREE  EEBBERRTENR
gq o

(iv) ZREREREPERIMOAR
#2,720,0007T (20134 : AR ¥
18,335,0007T) AW K 1B - R E &
BEXBHZA BEREIREY
RFET -

v) B A QA A R#30,000,0007
(20134 : AR #50,000,0007T)
%Wﬁém 30% (2013%F : 5.40%) 2

A HMREE AT BR
I,E s A &ﬂzﬂﬁ,ia}-‘ifmrﬂﬁ o

TEJK%@E@$ B P A H At FE 5
I —F 2 REEB R RN -
HIRHER 2RI

241




242 2014 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI ot

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BIEREHI - AARKIITR)
33 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE 33 &SHfEEEEBRINRE

SHEET b
(@) Tax payable/(recoverable) in the consolidated () EHHEEEBRPENS(F
balance sheet represents: W) BiE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYFT ARETFT
Net tax payable at 1 January M1A1BENTIE SR 66,949 22,928
Provision for the year (note 8(a)) NEF A (M1728(a)) 223,492 227,964
Over-provision in respect of N FERERTR (5,901) (8,359)
prior year (note 8(a)) (1 z#8(a))
Income tax paid BRI TSR (266,809) (180,584)
Net tax payable at 31 December MW12A31 8 B R IEF5E 17,731 66,949
Representing: BFE
Tax payable JE TSR 101,435 130,305
Tax recoverable Al [ 7% 18 (83,704) (63,356)

17,731 66,949
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33 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE 33 A #EEESBXTPHME

SHEET (CONTINUED) B (&)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) ERIMNECHEEERE
&
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) AHEERABRTRANEL
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the BIEEE (BE) AREAE
movements during the year are as follows: EE B LB R T Frat
Unrealised
Provision for profits on
impairment intra-group Deferred  Provision for Intangible
Deferred tax arising from of assets  Tax losses transactions income warranty assets Others Total
SERE
EE RAAER
BEHERR HERE HEsR MRE BEUE ERERHB EREE At &it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(note (i)) (note (i)
ANEEFL  ARETLT  AREFT  ARETLT  ARETT  ARETr  AREFT AR
() (Hrattiy)
At 1 January 2013 36,806 31,357 13,454 34,785 109,107 (91,621) 20,207 154,095
R2013E1A1H
Acquisition of control 25 — - — — (9,747) (708) (10,430)

over an associate

DEHEAAEE

Credited/(charged) to profit 5177 51,756 9,874 16,889 40,056 (6,684) 27,394 144,462
or loss (note 8(a))

A/ (HR) B8 (Hit6(a)

At 31 December 2013 42,008 83,113 23,328 51,674 149,163 (108,052) 46,893 288,127
and 1 January 2014

Ro013F12A318 &
2014F1A1A

Acquisition of control over 5,824 - - 1,588 7,904 - (10,232) 5,084

an associate (note 42)

DEBERAER N H2)

Credited/(charged) to profit 16,308 15,996 18,381 (3,641) (58,234) (10,279) 43,418 21,949
or loss (note 8(a))

A/ (R B (H7:28(a)

At 31 December 2014 64,140 99,109 41,709 49,621 98,833 (118,331) 80,079 315,160
R2014F 128318
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33 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BAIANCE 33 & EESEEBXRPHMAE
SHEET (CONTINUED) B(E)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) EEIANEEHREEERS
(continued) & : (&)
Notes: Htat -
0) Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses (i) R AT AR EINF IR
are related to subsidiaries that were established in EEMEENELEHEE
recent years. They are now progressing to their normal B BT R AR LAY [ B
production stage and are deriving profits. Accordingly, NRAEM EEMERF
it is considered probable that sufficient taxable profits BRIEE S ALE ERMIL
will be available in the future to utilise their unused tax F 86 2 4 FIDE o M8 FE 3
losses before they expire. REBRAIEETFLREN
B FE 40 B R R - 48 AT BA
155 A3 LA AT 2R 1 A A9 BT K30
FRBEE -
(i) Deferred tax liabilities in respect of intangible assets (ii) BREREEMEANE
arose from the temporary differences in development LEMEHEaBERBNHAE
costs and concession assets. BN BT R A E A
MEEMELED -
Reconciliation to the consolidated balance sheet AHEEHEEERER
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR For
Net deferred tax asset recognised REEAGBERPERN 451,557 408,419
in the balance sheet BEETRIEEEFRE
Net deferred tax liability recognised REEAGBERPERN (136,397) (120,292)
in the balance sheet BEERIEBEFRE

315,160 288,127
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33 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET (CONTINUED)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(v), the Group and the Company have not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of unused
tax losses and certain deductible temporary differences
of RMB1,452,717,000 (2013: RMB331,950,000)
and RMB1,235,238,000 (2013: RMB125,071,000),
respectively, as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses or the temporary
differences can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. As at 31 December
2014, the expiration of tax losses of the Group and the
Company, if unused, is as follows:

(BRIEZBHRB - UARKIR)

33 AHEERBRINME
Bt (&)

(c)

AERWIELED REE

B4R M T2(v)F 1R E M 5
FAEBERARAKRERL
RAFAMTENBIEBEEE
HEAE NN EREEZES R A
A R #1,452,717,0007¢ (2013
& AR #331,950,0007T) &
A R #1,235,238,0007¢ (2013
& AR#125,071,0007T) &
EMIBEE AATHEBRE
EEREEEEN HRTR
AEEETUERLEXRTA
TR TE B 18 5 RS 14 2= B A B 4N
FAE - 20144128318 -
AEBERAQNRARFANHEE
EEOEBRESRIWT

The Group EE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETF T
2015 — 28,683
2016 9,812 9,812
2017 77,113 122,256
2018 80,455 81,401
2019 724,867 —
892,247 242,152

The Company EAT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AEREFT
2015 — 28,683
2017 — 9,376

—_ 38,059

245
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33 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BAIANCE 33 & E&EEEEBXRIHMAE
SHEET (CONTINUED) B(E)
(d) Deferred tax liability not recognised (d) KREZNEZEHELE
At 31 December 2014, taxable temporary differences R2014F12A31H » @R
relating to undistributed profits and PRC statutory i@~ A BB QR AI RS
reserves of subsidiaries and associates amounted to EFMEERFPEEIEAELSHD
RMB3,850,555,000 (2013: RMB3,133,581,000). No AR EREEZEREAARE
deferred tax liability was recognised in respect of 3,850,555,0007T (20134 : A
these taxable temporary differences as dividends from R #3,133,581,0007T) ° @R
subsidiaries and associates are not subject to PRC HEEMNH R EZER  KE
income tax and the Group has no plan to dispose of REMBELEFRHIEEE BA
these subsidiaries and associates in the foreseeable B AR ML N A BRER
future. RETFHNPRMEH - B
ERFERMAR  AEETE
FMEFEILELERB AT &
SR/
34 PROVISION FOR WARRANTY 34 HREBE
The movement of provisions for product warranty during the year AEEERERSBEHNELWT
is as follows:
The Group AEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FoT ARETFT
At 1 January ®W1A1H 622,767 589,741
Acquisition of control over an associate E{SHE & A m i b RE (fat42) 31,616 —
(note 42)
Additional provisions made BN 222,238 157,730
Provision utilised B REE (204,410) (124,704)
At 31 December »W12A31H 672,211 622,767
Less: current portion of provision for warranty ¥ : B 1F & B &) BN EAER (5 (108,260) (107,653)
563,951 515,114

Under the terms of the Group’s sales agreements, the Group
will rectify product defects of wind turbines, steam turbines and
distributed control system products arising within one to five
years of the date of sale. Provision is therefore made for the best
estimate of the expected settlement under these agreements
in respect of sales made within one to five years prior to the
balance sheet date.

REAEEHEBZGHRE  Em
B H B ZR1-6F N EME - T %
DI AR RRE LM EmBRPE - K
SEBETRE- AU REEESR
BREHZAMI-6FANEE - RIE
WA T O FEHEN SR KEMF
TR T B
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PROVISION FOR WARRANTY (CONTINUED) 34 BEREEMEE)
In addition, the Group’s photovoltaic modules typically sold AN REBR KA G B EIRMH2FE
with a two or five-year warranty for defects in materials and SESFERNEMB REETEREE R
workmanship and a ten and twenty-five year minimum power B BT RX M BB IREEE 4L
output warranty, against declines of more than 10% and 20%, KB B10%E20% 9 Bl {2 #£10
respectively, of initial power generation capacity from the date FRSFNHZ/NEEELER - EHR
of delivery. The Group has the responsibility to repair or replace BCHRET BEEEFNENR K&£H
solar modules, at customers’ option, under the terms of the EEAHBERERAGREAENT K&
warranty policy. The Group maintains warranty provision to cover B HEERBENEENEFIREYG
potential liabilities that could arise under these warranties. IR -
The amount of the provision takes into account the Group’s BEAEBONFERNBELESIALRE
recent claim experience and the experiences of other companies tAREREUERERLR  #
for similar products and is only made where a warranty claim is FHEEREE WEHRUIEESE
probable. BRERM BRI -
DEFERRED INCOME 35 EEWEH
The Group KEME
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETFT
At 1 January W1A1H 428,263 331,239
Additions N 98,496 123,040
Credited to profit or loss FFAERE (23,628) (26,016)
At 31 December ®12A831H 503,131 428,263
Deferred income mainly represents government grants relating BEWH T EBITEHRTE TERAYE -
to the construction of property, plant and equipment, as well as WEREEREEMEL - A RBERE
technology research funding related to environmental protection BIRIREENRMMMZRES  BiEE
related assets, which would be recognised as income on a BEAMEEENEERSESHEHRN
straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the relevant HRAWA HRAECEWENZED
assets. The deferred income recognised is included in “other HEESHWESROTEMIA & o
revenue” in the consolidated income statement.
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 36 H#MIERBER
The Group NEH
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F AEBETFT
Long-term retention payables to third parties ERE=FEHERS 50,488 103,944
Other non-current financial liability HiIEnHomas 6,370 6,370
56,858 110,314
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37 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 37 EBEXR - -REERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEFZARDBONEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AU RERBERPIIETARE
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated B & ot & AEE D R B
equity is set out in the consolidated statements of U EREARGENADHBR - K
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the NEEDSEXBHNFI R
Company’s individual components of equity between the FRE/LIBF RO T P -

beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Retained

PRC profits/

Share Capital statutory Fair (accumulated
capital reserve reserve  value reserve losses)  Total equity

BHRE/

Bx Bxih TEIEARE AARERE  (RHER) BEAR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ANRBTL  ARETL  ARETL  ARETLT  ARETT  ARETT

Balance at 1 January 2013 6,063,770 805,682 82,272 (23,958) 338,678 7,266,444
2013F1 A1HEE

Changes in equity for 2013:

013FEHE

Profit and total comprehensive — —
income for the year

AEENBREA NGRS

Appropriation — — 17,314 — (17,314) —

Eik

Dividends approved in respect of — — — — (121,275) (121,275)
the previous year (note 37(b)(ii)

st EFERENRE WE37b)i)

23,958 161,886 185,844

Balance at 31 December 2013 6,063,770 805,682 99,586 — 361,975 7,331,013
and 1 January 2014
2013512318 k201451 R1A A

Changes in equity for 2014

NUFERZL:

Loss and total comprehensive — — — — (944.177) (944,177)
income for the year

AEEEBRRGRUREE

Appropriation — — 29,746 — (29,746) -

HE

Dividends approved in respect of — — — — (103,084) (103,084)
the previous year (note 37(b)(ii)

st L ERERRNRE (HH7 b))

Balance at 31 December 2014 6,063,770 805,682 129,332 — (715,032) 6,283,752
2014F12A31 B 85
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37 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 37 ¥R - #EKKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b)  Dividends b) BE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) KEFEENER Az K
Company attributable to the year RRE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT AEBTT

Final dividend proposed after
the balance sheet date of RMB
nil per ordinary share (2013:
RMBO0.017 per ordinary share)

REEBERBREEERD — 103,084
BE BREBBRARE
T 7 (20134 : H%
T mAR A R #0.0177T)

The board of directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2014.

AABEESETEHIK
2$H £2014%12H31H
IEFERERE - NE

The final dividend proposed after the balance EBEXRBERIKARE
sheet date has not been recognised as a liability BB REEEBEER

at the balance sheet date.

PR R EE -

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (i) TR LR R G —
the Company attributable to previous financial BB EEERRF S
years, approved during the year 118985

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT ABEETT

Final dividend in respect of R &L E I XY 103,084 121,275
the previous financial year, A FRHRERE
approved and paid during FlRAR®0.017T

the year, of RMB0.017 per share
(2013: RMB0.02)

(20134 : AR™0.027T)
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37 CAPITAL,

(CONTINUED)

()

(d)

Share capital

Registered and issued share capital

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

37

BEX - ke (FE)

(c) B

CEMEBITHRE

No. of shares

Lz
‘000 RMB’000
FR AR For
Ordinary shares, registered, EEM - RITEEZHHZE
issued and fully paid: VEFER :
Domestic shares of RMB1.00 each BERRD SERAR¥1IT
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013, M2013F1A18 - 4,754,000 4,754,000
and 31 December 2014 201312 A31H
K2014%12H31H
H shares of RMB1.00 each HEE  BRAR¥1RT
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013, M2013F1A18 - 1,309,770 1,309,770
and 31 December 2014 2013F12A318 &
2014412 A31H
Total A&t
At 31 December 2014 and 2013 MR20144F & 2013F12A31H 6,063,770 6,063,770

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

All ordinary shares rank equally with

Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Capital reserve

regard to the

Capital reserve mainly represents share premium,
contributions from Guodian, and the difference

between

the considerations of acquisition or

disposal of equity interests from/to non-controlling
equity owners and the carrying amount of the

proportionate net assets.

LERSAEAGREBRTER
HHEE  BEREARAE
BLEE - REEE-BE
BERERRNNBEEZER
B -

(d) REHERAR
(i) EXEE

EXRFRIZRERN
wE BB AR
FIEEBR RSB ER
B ERanHER
HEFEEREESRZ
B ZERE -
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37 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 37 ¥x& - f#ERKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) #HEEERBZGE)
(ii) PRC statutory reserve

(e)

According to the Company'’s Article of Association,
the Company is required to transfer 10% of its
net profit as determined in accordance with
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC to its
statutory reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before distribution of a
dividend to equity shareholders. This reserve fund
can be utilised in setting off accumulated losses
or increasing capital of the Company and is non-
distributable other than in liquidation.

(i) FEEELAES

BREARAN(ARE
BYHRE ERARQA
HIRER E 2R &
EREEHNFANEN
10%8# &K QB H)EE
AL HEAESH
ERAB R E BT B A A
50% ° WA B AT M i am R
RO E Z A - 2
ZREE - mAEeH
LARBEAAFMNER
ETEIERIEE  WAR
TBEZINBEITHR -

(iii)  Exchange reserve (iii) BN
E.xchange reselrv.e comprises all foreigr? exchange BE 3 k45 B SEAR SR I 2
dllfferelnces arising from the trgnslatlon of the oY) B & B Ik I
financial statements of operations that have B3 AR AL S
functional Clurr.ency other than. the RMB WhIICh ) 2 75 1 B 75 3R 5 B B
arel C.Jealt with in a.ccordance with the accounting EAMFAGE SR .
policies as set out in note 2(y).

(iv) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net charge in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies notes 2(i) and 2(n)(i).

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, the net profit after tax of the Company for
the purpose of dividends payment will be the lesser
of (i) the net profit determined in accordance with the
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC; and (ii)
the net profit determined in accordance with IFRSs. As
of 31 December 2014, the retained profits available for
distribution are RMBNil (2013: RMB361,975,000).

(e)

(iv) RXAEERE

ARhEBERESERE
TR M RE2() & 2(n)
(EENREEABRER
HOHLEEEFNR
REBERFEY-

REH D EM

BRIBEARBRNCABER) « 1
BRE SRR RBIFIEFF
HEAUTMEZ FRHESE
(VR AR B & 5t 22 Bl R 4R 1
FEEFAE: (VRBEEg
BT R 5 2RI FEE AR AE o
MR2014F 128318 At 5
ENBGEAHEEAARBE T
(2013%F : A R #361,975,000
TT) °
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37 CAPITAL,

38

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(f)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to financing at a reasonable costs.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of liability-to-asset ratio, which is calculated as total
liabilities by total assets. The liability-to-asset ratio of the
Group and the Company were 78% (2013: 76%) and 61%
(2013: 59%) respectively.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach
to capital management during the vyear. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below:

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
bank and in hand, trade and bills receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables and other non-current
assets. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

37 EX - EERKRE ()

38

(f)

EXER

AEEEAEENTZAER
2 REREBROKEHE M &R
BEERRRAEHNKARE
BE UNEREAKERFEL
EEVRE N - HET AT DA KR A B
a5 B R BR [0 S 3 (7] E 4 A 2
M TR -

AEEBEGHY BFHEEL
ERAKENEREE AR
= 8 SRR BT 1R 4 A A
REHEK S IR FE - R
AEEAAEBRUNERESL R
2 YIRREELS T
HBANEENEARERE -

AEERBAERHEELE (IR
EERERIUNEELETE)
EREAEEMNERERE K~ E
EEAQNGNBEYEELEX
DR E78% (20134 : 76% ) £2
61% (20134F : 59%) °

RERBAKBENERNERTT A
BEBRERE - ARAHEAE
o] Bt /&8 R B9 R A ] S50 SR
HEE B AR Z R o

MBEBEERAABE

AEENERXBBEFFLERGER -
MBES  MEUREERR -

N 5= 8] T i 0 18 55 oL B DA % 7R R [ Y
M SRR E R R T AT -

(a)

ERAR

AEENERRARTIERNT
R=6: RIOTEFREEFR
T BUEREEER B2
BT SRR B EL At B OEROR - A
REMIERBEE -EHED
BYTEREERE  THE
ZERARER -
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and in
hand are deposited in the stated owned/controlled PRC
banks which the directors assessed the credit risk to be
insignificant.

In respect of trade and bills receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables and other non-current
assets, individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The Group
generally requires customers to settle trade receivables
in accordance with contracted terms and other debts
in accordance with agreements. Credit terms may be
granted to customers, depending on the nature of
business. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer
rather than the industry in which the customers operate
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the balance sheet date,
33% and 19% (2013: 28% and 20%) of trade and other
receivables was due from Guodian and related parties
under Guodian, the Group’s largest customer, and the
five largest remaining customers respectively.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in note 40, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the balance sheet date is
disclosed in note 40.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
and other non-current assets are set out in notes 25, 26
and 22 respectively.

(BRIEZBHRB - UARKTIR)

38 MBEABMEERAAEME

(&)

(a)

=R Rk (8)

REBRFRAMRITERR
EFReHFRNTEEE,/
ZHWRTT BEEMFEAR
HERRBRTK

AREURERRREE &
B SRR R H b B WOk IR L E
MIERBDEE CHMAERP
EITT EBE AR - P
HEFBENIHRBEXINE
SERBATNSNEES  XEE
TEPHMARER UREP
BEMAEMMHBEEBEERR -
wEL AEEEREPRR
B RGEFEERYERNR - IR
RipFEBRESBEMRK R
BEBLEE AEEHRTEP
—ENNRERBR - BE
REBE T ME P UWEERY) -

AEEMEARBREIEXEE
BMEFMABBRIFE WMt
CXHEBEFPARETENY
2 AY - EAEEEEME
BENEFE  EARKMNSE
FERGEN - NEEABX
B 9 53lE33%8E19% (2013
F 1 28%EHI20% ) MY JIE U AR 3k &
HiEWRIERERBEE RE
BETEMNEHRF (AEEEKX
NEP) MEHHRIAKREP -

BRE 40P A EBEREN S
BMERZIN REBERRBHRET
MESFEAREEREZEHR
SHHEMER REEBEXR
B SLSRERELENREAXR
ERERE B 7EW 409
TTHRE-

HEKERIRZRE - E® A
ERE R E A EURRIE - &
HtEnoEERBANANER
ERRR - 2 BITEHE25 - 26
LA K22/ 31T T 1 ER o
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of sufficient
funding and flexibility by utilising a variety of bank and
other borrowings with debt maturities spreading over
a range of periods, thereby ensuring that the Group’s
outstanding borrowing obligation is not exposed to
excessive repayment risk in any one year.

The Company is responsible for the Group’s overall
cash management and the raising of borrowings to
cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB1,083,420,000 (2013: RMB262,856,000).
With regards to its future capital commitments and
other financing requirements, the Group has unutilised
banking facilities of RMB15,446,636,000 (2013:
RMB19,940,861,000) as at 31 December 2014. The
directors are of the opinion that the assumptions which
are included in the cash flow forecast are reasonable.
However, as with all assumptions in regard to future
events, these are subject to inherent limitations and
uncertainties and some or all of these assumptions may
not be realised.

38 MHEABMEERAIAEBE

(&)

(b)

REBESER

RREBEAEEAEG RANER
B2URESERE AKE
RAZTEOHRTREME
o EBIBARRAS B
KMEARBNERET TS
BEME R NER —EFE -

ARRBEARENERES
IR NMOm TR RS H KA
fEREE - REBEAKENI K
B AREEHEZRPE
EREARBESHFLM
BRASBEAARANE S
B AETEZSRBBETAES
EENESARRE - EMmis
RESERMAREHNRS

AT -

REEBEBEXRHB £A4%H
mEFERHABEAARE
1,083,420,0007T (20134 : A
R #262,856,0007T) ° @R A&
EBMAKRNESEAERE M
BBk R20145F128318 -
AEBEXRPARITEEAAR
#15,446,636,0007T (20134 :
A R%19,940,861,0007T) ° &
=MRE ReRBETHBE
BHRAEM - Am  BRXE
REHNAERIGEGASY
BEARHMERTHEEME Kt
EFTA AR RIS T B

“EER -
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 38 Hi¥RBEERAAEE

VALUES (CONTINUED) (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REESEE(E)
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRIETHREEABRHA
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and BzH AEBEKARAIEN
the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which EemBENFISBERAR
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows KEEARAMEBERESR (8
(including interest payments computed using contractual BREBEARMNERAFENTER
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance BOOREREHRE A
sheet dates) and the earliest date the Group and the BEEAEABRHPHFI RS
Company can be required to pay: HOFMERE) ARAJEE
KAEBRAQNRZ NGRS
HEf:
The Group AEE
2014
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BERAERRERY

More than More than
1yearbut 2 years but

Within 1 year less than less than More than Carrying

or on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
1R 1H0E 265k

BREA 264 SEHT SENE CE) kESHE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFL  ARBFT  ARBTRZ  ARETT  AREFT  AREFR

Long-term borrowings (note 30(a)) 144,403 1,294,735 2,315,600 2,715,243 6,469,981 5,086,734
REERMH3006)

Short-term borrowings (note 30(b)) 13,856,006 — - - 13,856,006 13,456,136
BBERHHE00)

Trade and bills payables (note 31) 18,165,570 - - - 18,165,570 18,165,570
ERERREE (Wits1)

Other payables (note 32) 2,336,043 - - - 2,336,043 2,336,043
EHERE (Hit52)

Other non-current liabilities (note 36) - 31,614 25,244 - 56,858 56,858

Rt FRBEE (Hi36)

34,502,022 1,326,349 2,340,844 2,715,243 40,884,458 39,101,341
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR 38 BIBEBEERA
VALUES (CONTINUED)

38

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

(&)

b) REBESERH)

REE

The Group (continued) AEE (&)
2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ERXURRER
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but
Within 1 year less than less than More than Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
15/ 1EM £ 2EL L
RS 2EHT SENT 5 E ait RE2E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFT  AEEFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFR
Long-term borrowings (note 30(a)) 175,766 2,781,711 2,756,776 2,683,329 8,397,582 6,732,783
RBRR(Hits0@)
Short-term borrowings (note 30(b)) 13,670,890 — — — 13,670,890 13,277,217
BEBER Witson)
Trade and bills payables (note 31) 16,138,865 — — — 16,138,865 16,138,865
ERERREE Witsr)
Other payables (note 32) 2,479,840 — — — 2,479,840 2,479,840
Bt ENTE M H2)
Other non-current liabilities (note 36) — 110,314 — — 110,314 110,314
Bt ERBARE Hits6)
32,465,361 2,892,025 2,756,776 2,683,329 40,797,491 38,739,019
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 38 Hi¥RBEERAAEE

VALUES (CONTINUED) (%)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REESEE(E)
The Company b/ NN
2014
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARARRRERM
Within More than More than
1 year 1 year 2 years
or on but less but less More than Carrying
demand than2years than 5 years 5 years Total amount
15RE 1E0E 2E0 L
ZXREH 2EHT 56T 5N L Rt RELHE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  ARBFT  ARBTRZ  ARETT  AREFT  AREFR

Long-term borrowings (note 30(a)) 24,205 202,971 1,381,233 2,520,011 4,128,420 3,111,887
REBERWH306)

Short-term borrowings (note 30(b)) 5,817,995 — - - 5,817,995 5,689,776
RHER W H300)

Trade and bills payables (note 31) 48,675 - - - 48,675 48,675
ERERREE W31

Other payables (note 32) 843,123 — - - 843,123 843,123
Bt ENTE M H52)

6,733,998 202,971 1,381,233 2,520,011 10,838,213 9,693,461
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR 38 BIBEBRETERA
VALUES (CONTINUED)

38

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

(&)

b) REBESERH)

REE

The Company (continued) AT (&)
2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ERXURRER
Within More than More than
1 year 1 year 2 years
or on but less but less More than Carrying
demand  than2years  than 5 years 5 years Total amount
15/ 1EM £ 2EL L
RS 2EHT 5ENT 5 E ait RESE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFT  AEEFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFx
Long-term borrowings (note 30(a)) 30,166 1,905,962 1,204,218 2,441,154 5,581,500 4,408,547
RBER (Hits0@)
Short-term borrowings (note 30(b)) 5,015,789 — — — 5,015,789 4,870,978
BEBER W)
Trade and bills payables (note 31) 683,003 — — — 683,003 683,003
EREHREE Wits1)
Other payables (note 32) 534,424 — — — 534,424 534,424
Bt ENTE M H2)
6,263,382 1,905,962 1,204,218 2,441,154 11,814,716 10,496,952
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR 38 Bi¥EKREERAIAEE

VALUES (CONTINUED) (&)

(c) Interest rate risk ) R=EEEB
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from long- REBWMAMZERRIERAR
term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates REAE R - ZBFIEERER
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. EERBERNBEESAMNEKRRAR 2

—F °

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of BTEBARERBNFXRERE
fixed and variable rate borrowings in order to manage its AEETFHRES W EZEETE A
interest rate risks. During the year, however, management ERFEHEREFHAS - A
of the Group did not consider it is necessary to use m: AEBEEBEERRBEARSF
interest rate swaps to hedge their exposure to interest. FEZEBANREE  HihR

£ [8 6 F) K AR o

(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIEEX
The following table details the profile of the TERFEIEHTEES
Group’s net borrowings (interest-bearing financial BERAARNEENFER
liabilities less interest-bearing financial assets) BR(EESREBER
at the balance sheet dates. The detailed interest EETREE) - M
rates and maturity information of the Group’s 30T T AEEERA
borrowings are disclosed in note 30. FEARF R LA RAE AR o
The Group NEME
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT ABEBTT

Net fixed rate borrowings: EEFEFMER

Borrowings I 10,936,301 9,988,855
Less: bank deposits W SRITES (BIESREFEZR) (668,700) (467,000)
(including restricted
deposits)
loans and advances BERRER (16,388) (19,779)
10,251,213 9,502,076

Net floating rate borrowings: FEj I RFE K :

Borrowings B 7,606,569 10,021,145

Other payables H fth fE 1 3038 118,000 418,000

Less: bank deposits (including j& : $R177F 2 (B35 X R #1177 50) (2,960,678) (4,016,328)
restricted deposits)

loans and advances BERRBR (443,000) (329,000)

4,320,891 6,093,817

Total net borrowings FE B 14,572,104 15,595,893




260

2014 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI ot

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESEHB - UAREIITR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

38

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

()

(ii)

Interest rate profile (continued)

38

MHERABEERAAEE

(&)

()  RI=EEE ()

()  FEER )

The Company b N |
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AEBETT
Net fixed rate borrowings: BEEREFMER -
Borrowings B 5,662,164 5,749,525
Less: loans and advances o B MR (2,469,063) (3,211,852)
3,193,101 2,537,673
Net floating rate borrowings: ST EF|RFEHE K :
Borrowings B 3,139,499 3,530,000
Other payables Hh JE < 5/ IR 30,000 50,000
Less: bank deposits (including J& : $R17FER (486,870) (685,788)
restricted deposits) (BEZBRHIEFEZH)
loans and advances BERREK (5,447,007) (4,354,970)
(2,764,378) (1,460,758)
Total net borrowings FE LA 428,723 1,076,915
Sensitivity analysis (i)  BBESHF

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates of net floating borrowings, with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s
loss after tax would have increased/decreased
and retained profits would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB34,510,000
(2013: profit after tax and retained profits would
have decreased/increased by RMB42,256,000).
Other components of consolidated equity would
not be affected by the general increase/decrease
in interest rates.

M20145 128310 - &
SR EBFRERNF
KR ERR T #1100
EEZ EMmAeEgsE
RETE REBNFH
BEEBERTHRE
B FIBAE B, 18
£ # AR #34,510,000
7t (20135 : Bit& F 78
MBERESETER,
# & AR 42 256,000
TT) c AR HAD
MR B D T g ZEIF %R
ERTHABEE -
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

()

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the balance sheet dates
and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at the balance sheet date. The impact
on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated
equity is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense or income of such a change in
interest rates.

The estimated 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management's assessment
of a reasonable change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2013.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables and
payables, as well as borrowings and cash at bank and
in hand that are denominated in a foreign currency,
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Euros
("EUR”), USD and HKD.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from cash at bank, receivables, payables
and borrowings which are denominated in EUR,
USD or HKD. Depreciation or appreciation of
these foreign currencies against Renminbi would
affect the financial position and operating results
of the Group. The Group did not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.

(BRIEZBHRB - UARKTIR)
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

()

(ii)

Recognised assets and liabilities (continued)

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the
PRC government may at its discretion restrict
access to foreign currencies for current account
transactions in the future. Changes in the foreign
exchange control system may prevent the
Group from satisfying sufficient foreign currency
demands and the Group may not be able to
pay dividends in foreign currencies to its equity
shareholders.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated
using the spot rate at the balance sheet dates.
Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

38 MBERBEERAAEBE
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR 38 EBiEKBEERAAEBE

VALUES (CONTINUED) (%)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) d) E®EERREGE)
(ii)  Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) E¥EgHO(E)
The Group TEE
2014 2013
UsD EUR HKD usD EUR HKD

xn B et S G ki
RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB0O0  AMBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARBTR ARETA ARRTZ ARRTL ARETT ARETI

Cash at bank and in hand BOERRERRS 5,785 339 88,732 5617 691 265462
Trade recelvables EIE 14,930 85,363 20,24 14,930 17,760 21,786
Trade payables TR (77,721) - (267) — (7,104) —
Other receivables Ef WA 62 131 4,738 2,486 834 299
Other payables EfERFE (10) (844) - (78754) (844)  (79352)
Net exposure FHA (56,954) 84989 113444  (55721) 11337 208,19
The Company ARH
2014 2013
usp EUR HKD usD EUR HKD

xR B et xn B ek
RMB000 ~ RMB0O0 ~ RMB000  RMBOO0  AMBO0O  AMBO0O
ARBTR ARBTA ARETZ ARRTT ARETT ARETT

Cash at bank and in hand BUEAREFRS 197 338 30,782 382 249,816
Trade receivables EUER - - 20,241 - 21,786
Other payables EfERTE - - - - (79,100)

Net exposure FH0 197 338 60,023 — 382 192,502




264

2014 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI ot

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BIERHHI - AARETIR)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR 38 HBi¥EKREERAAEBE

38

VALUES (CONTINUED) (#&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) d) E&E®¥EREE)
(iii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BEAEZH

The followings are the related foreign currency

TRIE T AFE AR

exchange rates to RMB during the year: SNEEER A RS 7 S B B
=
2014 2013

Reporting Reporting

Average date spot Average date spot

rate rate rate rate

HEAR wmEH

FIE =R REEX FHEX I B & &

usb e 6.1428 6.1190 6.1896 6.0969

EUR BT 8.1255 7.4556 8.2396 8.4189

HKD g 0.7924 0.7889 0.7979 0.7862
A 5% strengthening of RMB against the following ARSI T EES%

currencies would have increased/(decreased)
the net profit after tax and retained profits by
the amounts shown below. Other components of
equity would not be affected by the strengthen of
RMB against foreign currencies.

B THE - BLIROFFIE K&
BEMES LR (T
B) M TRME -
RE =R A E A A R AR 12 T
EXIARBHAERI
BHEmgE -

The Group REH
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT
usD ETT 2,449 2,368
EUR BT (3,556) (480)
HKD koo (4,481) (7,874)

(5,588) (5,986)
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR 38 EBiEKBEERAAEBE

VALUES (CONTINUED) (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) d) E®EERREGE)
(iii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued) (i)  BBE W ()
The Company AAT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFR AR T
usb ETT (7
EUR BT (13) (14)
HKD B (2,251) (7,219)
(2,271) (7,233)
A 5% weakening of RMB against the above ARBHEEN Ll E%

currencies would have had the equal but opposite
effect on the above currencies to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remain constant.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the balance sheet dates
and had been applied to the Group’s exposure to
currency risk for financial instruments in existence
at that date, and that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the
next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2013.

5%MEZE  WRAA
HtmBERFTEZ Al
HEME®EERRE
AROEE YESE
W EFFATY -

{fE 1 b i R 5 4T
R BRI
HAEKEEABRAR
EAREAFENDR
TAMNEERAKRKO
BRI AR RET
2 LHEMEREE

1 -

FI7 B it &) [ RO B 1505
EEEEBHET—EE
BEXRAETRERAE
B IE R & (bt & 12 T
i o DT F A R20134F
B2 T H AR e
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2014 and 2013 except the following financial
instruments, for which their carrying amounts and fair
value and the level of fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement, are disclosed below:

The level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

38 MBERBEERAAEBE

(&)

(e)
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AN 52 BRI AN 1 B) DA PR A B g4
KAFENERIANERS
FEE E2013F12A318 M
2014F12A31HM A A BENR
BEAMER  BUATEET
B BN 55 ik (E B BT 75 3R
SRBB1IHEI A nBEER]
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AR R E AR E
EMMBEEMRETE DN
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAR 38 EBiEKBEERAAEBE

VALUES (CONTINUED) (#&)
(¢)  Fair values (continued) e} 2AREEE)
The Group EE

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2014 categorised into
R2014F12A318
MEEGE 55!

Carrying Fair
amounts at value at
31 December 31 December
2014 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
20145 R20145
12A31H 12A31AH
REEA AAEE F1ER FoB& FEIB/H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARBTFT AREFT

Long-term receivables 2,136,478 1,920,975 - 1,920,975 —
RERYUE

Fixed rate long-term bank loans (140,000) (137,299) — (137,299) —
EEAERBRITER

Corporate bonds (4,055,645) (4,051,614) (4,051,614) - -
RAREH

Other non-current liabilities 56,858 53,640 - 53,640 -
At En®aE

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2013 categorised into
#2013F 124318
LREEHE U A:

Carrying Fair
amounts at value at
31 December 31 December
2013 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
20134 1201346
12A31H 12A31H
EREE DREE F1ER H2EMR FIER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARKTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Long-term receivables 2,190,435 1,987,839 — 1,987,839 —
REENGR

Fixed rate long-term bank loans (117,300) (111,537) — (111,537) —
EE R ERBRITER

Corporate bonds (4,049,525) (4,031,960) (4,031,960) — —
RAEF

Other non-current liabilities (110,314) (104,528) — (104,528) —

HipERBAR
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 38 B EBEERAAEE
VALUES (CONTINUED) (%)
(e) Fair values (continued) e} 2AREEGE
The Company ENNE
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2014 categorised into
R2014512A31A
AABEGE YA E:
Carrying Fair
amounts at value at
31 December 31 December
2014 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
20145 R2014%
12A31H 12A31H
REER ARERE F1BR F2ER FIBH
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREF7 AR® T AREFT AREFT AREFT
Corporate bonds (4,055,645) (4,051,614) (4,051,614) — —
RAESH
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2013 categorised into
R2013F 127311
AREEFE UDA:
Carrying Fair
amounts at value at
31 December 31 December
2013 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
20135 1R2013F
124318 124318
EREE ARER E1ER E2ER EIEH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT ANRETFT ANEETFT ANRETFT ARETFT
Corporate bonds (4,049,525) (4,031,960) (4,031,960) — —

REMES

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value

measurements

The fair values of financial instruments in Level 2 are
estimated as the present value of contractual future
cash flows, discounted at from the relevant interest rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China as at the

balance sheet date.

EF2ERAAEBEFETR
REFHE T EM B AR

FEREMIARAARBER
ERARARRNER S REMEL
RIEATPRHARBITNELE
EREXRBAAMEARRLIR
MERE L OREREE TR -
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(9)

Master netting or similar agreements

In December 2013, the Group has entered into an
agreement with a supplier in connection with the
compensation receivable from the supplier in respect
of substandard equipment purchased by the Group.
According to the agreement, the compensation
receivable from the supplier and the Group’s outstanding
trade payables due to the supplier are aggregate into a
single net amount that is payable by the supplier. The
agreement meets the criteria for offsetting in the balance
sheet as the Group has currently legally enforceable right
to offset recognised amounts.

The following table sets out the carrying amounts of
recognised financial assets that are subject to the above

agreement.

The Group

(BRIEZBHRB - UARKTIR)

38 MBEMREERQAEME

(&)

(9)

FHREEIELUH R

R2013F 128 * A EE W —
HERMBENGTEEEMAE
VBT EEE  AEE
HZHERET —EHp# R
Bazthe  BRZEERARE
B B 7N 5 | FE S R L IE T Y
RN EA A —EIRMER
ZEMFE AR AEEAR]
B V25 5E AT 5 il AR 44 0 4 1) LA 4B
KEBRNSE  ZHEFE
REEBEBERPHEENGE -

TRIE bt T 2 #ER
EREEMKEEE -

REH

Gross amounts

of recognised

Net amounts

Gross amounts financial liabilities of financial assets

of recognised
financial assets

set off in the
balance sheet

presented in

the balance sheet

REE
BEERPH REE
EEZNER KN E AN BEXRPITRH
EEZHEHE SHEEzER SREEZFH
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥FT AR TFT ARMFT
31 December 2014
#2014 12A31H
Deposits, prepayments and 324,000 (182,848) 141,152
other receivables
BE - RN R E th IR
31 Decmeber 2013
20135 12H31H
Deposits, prepayments and 298,982 (228,995) 69,987

other receivables

B - B RR R E YRR
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39

COMMITMENTS

Commitments for the construction and acquisition of property,
plant and equipment outstanding at 31 December 2014 not

39 HEiE

B TSR P R 5 B B9 7R 20145 12 A 31
AERNEERBEEYE BELRE

provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RE ARAFEYEW T AT at
The Group EE

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AR For
Contracted for SRS 502,323 1,807,998
Authorised but not contracted for BEERRTY 481,036 8,551
983,359 1,816,549

At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

MR2014F12A318 + RB 7] B2 R 1
REME  RREMHKEBEMK
REINT AL

The Group AEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFT AREFT
Within 1 year 1R 60,002 51,405
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FBESFER 13,904 16,317
73,906 67,722

The Group leases certain buildings through non-cancellable
operating leases. These operating leases do not contain
provisions for contingent lease rentals. None of the rental
agreements contain escalation provisions that may require
higher future rental payments.

AEEBEBTARENKEHEERE
ERLEBT ZRKEHEARTES
BRXEHESHGER - HESRF I
TEEHRAIEFEIMNE ZENE
& RERH IR EIR -
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(a)

Guarantees issued

B TS RR M ot

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZBHRB - UARKTIR)

40 HAEAE

At 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company
issued financial guarantees to banks in respect of the
bank loans granted to related parties and provided
bid and performance guarantees to customers and the
Company’s subsidiaries for construction contracts and

sale of wind turbines as follows:

(a)

BERHE

MR2014%F12A31H » ARIETT
w) A B 5 1R A MO B SR AN SR
B RARAEAESRITEL S5
BR ANEBERAARBENRE
HEERKRKEEMRAETR X
AR R HIBT B R B E K IR E

NERERMT A
The Group AEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AR¥TT

Bid guarantees provided to:

AT A B A AR R

— related parties under Guodian — BETEMEES 4,530 24,004
— third parties —F=F 29,583 90,496
Performance guarantees provided to: A4~ A FHE M B L HER ¢

— related parties under Guodian — HETBREH 280,396 158,260
— third parties —%=F 1,280,727 752,316
1,595,236 1,025,076

The Company ¥ /N
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ABRBTIT

Performance guarantees provided to
subsidiaries

RHITERBRENEOER

303,861 323,221

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the

Group under any of the guarantees.

BEEERMEXRA - EFMR
REEETERABERERSE
HimERRE -
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40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Litigation contingencies

(i)

(if)

A subsidiary of the Group was named as the
respondent in an arbitration regarding disputes
relating to a research and development
cooperative agreement in the Singapore
International Arbitration Centre (“SIAC”). As stated
in the notice of arbitration dated July 16, 2013 and
the statement filed by the applicant on November
25, 2013, the applicant asked for compensation
of approximately RMB324.0 million plus interest
and cost from the subsidiary of the Group for its
alleged breach of contractual obligations. The
subsidiary of the Group has denied the claim in
the response dated 30 July 2013 and submitted
the defence statements and counterclaims on 27
January 2014. Up to the date of these financial
statements, the arbitration is in progress. The
arbitration hearing commenced in December
2014 and it is expected that the decision will
be made in April 2015. Based on all facts and
circumstances and legal advices, management
of the Group is of the opinion that the subsidiary
of the Group has duly executed the rights, duties
and obligations as set forth under the agreement
and is not liable to the claim from the claimant.

During 2014, a subsidiary of the Group was
claimed by its suppliers for overdue payables
with additional interests and penalties in a few
lawsuits. The subsidiary is now negotiating
with the suppliers to settle the lawsuits and up
to the date of these financial statements the
subsidiary reached settlement agreement with
certain suppliers to repay the overdue payables
without any additional interests and penalties and
resolved the respective lawsuits. In the opinion of
management of the Group, taking into account of
the result of the resolved lawsuits, the subsidiary
will be able to settle the remaining lawsuits without
interests and penalties. The aggregate interests
and penalties claimed by the suppliers for the
unresolved lawsuits is about RMB5,830,000.

40 HEAE (R
EREEE

(b)

(i)

(i)

AEE—KHBRARE
| 3 ik BB R &
D—TEERARASES
B FHEOMEBOWS
R 1% 52 B KR2013%7A
16H %2013%11H25
BRHEgEBRMERE
ME - BEAREARE
EffEARERABLY
TV ERFEBBHAR
#324,000,0007T I Fft
IMEREAE - FBHEUA
AL A B 1B 2K - 182013
F£7H308 © &~ &£ E [t
BAGEL B ELRZ
I R2014F1 B 27
HREXTEREMRB
SKE M E - B E M F
EmEREZH - ZIAF
HDEETH - (P E
BEDN2014F12A B
M FBETE R 1K2015
FAREHE R - 2R
FEEEBRIERE
HOALEEEREERA
AEBNBAREZA
B1T7TARBATERE
M omBMEE BA
HEHFEANRERAEER
f£o

R2014%F » REBEH —
R M B A A E— LR

P EEERRNEE
HA A0 & T BR AR B A0

R BT - HH B
27 B A B RS 1
BARR FMRR - BE
GEHBREFEA
4 PO E T
{4 8 73 L RO 96 153 5 -
BB - 2B A
0 )55 8 £ 1
R - 71 8B % A F
BN - ABRE A
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ERE  AREERE
5 EHERREN
R T B4 00 35 HA P B T
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{3 3 1 K R 0 3R
BT 11 3% B 2 R R B
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40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Litigation contingencies (continued)

In addition, the Group is the defendant in certain lawsuits
as well as the plaintiff in other proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of business.

While the outcomes of the above contingencies, lawsuits
or other proceedings cannot be determined at present,
management believes that any resulting results will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial position,
operating results and business of the Group. No provision
has been recognised by the Group for these claims.

41 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Transactions with related parties

The Group is part of a larger group of companies
under Guodian and has significant transactions and
relationships with Guodian and related parties under
Guodian.

Principal transactions which were carried out in the

(BRIEZBHRB - UARKTIR)

40 HBEEME(E)

41

(o) ERAREEE(H)

IS - AR S [BiE 2 R R R
MO E  ARELERBEL
ERREPHEMFRETFNR

=

WA LS EIE - FRRE
fiok TR Fr # 5 B BT 4 0%
RESE - 18 IR B AR A 4T Bk
B 5 R AR B B
BIR S E R R
BRI E - KERKRA I
E R S e = R

EXBBHERS

(o) HEEHIHRXS
AEEREE T%Mmy
- HET T%
W%WEZﬁEEEKQ%E
REEHE -

EEBEBBRETEER TN

ordinary course of business are as follows: HEMFEFE2XH5M A
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETFT
Sale of goods to HEBRT
Guodian ES 11,768 6,502
Related parties under Guodian BE TEAEE S 3,705,673 4,553,665
Associates /N 4,241 15,469
Construction service provided to 12 HEZERE T
Guodian HE —_ 199,987
Related parties under Guodian BETBHOEE S 7,056,997 5,506,538
Service provided to RURE T
Related parties under Guodian BlE T B 35,434 103,758
Associates SR /N — 2,161
Lease to HEF
Related parties under Guodian ERNELLE v 1,642,777 1,609,345
Lease of investment propertiesto FHEREMWETF
Related parties under Guodian BETNENEES — 1,872
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4]

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

41

EXBABLIXS (A)

(o) EHEBIHXZ (K

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBFor
Purchase of goods from BEEmB
Guodian X E — 500
Related parties under Guodian BETEREE S 180,511 158,691
Associates iR/ 4,788 48,536
Purchase of equipment from BERER
Related parties under Guodian BETBHOEE S 449,773 507,892
Service provided by RERME
Guodian 5 1,271 1,731
Related parties under Guodian BETBHOEE S 26,569 39,774
Working capital obtained from AEE¢mEH
Guodian = 200,000 —
Related parties under Guodian BETBHEE S 527,363 —
Working capital repaid to HERABEST
Guodian = 500,000 —
Working capital provided to REAEESF
Associates i AE/NE] 113,928 233,704
Working capital repaid from HERABEESH
Related parties under Guodian HETEHNER A — 447
Associates i AE/NE] 59,000 21,207
Loans received from BXEWAE
Guodian 5 65,080 1,500,000
Related parties under Guodian BETBHEE S 800,000 800,000
Loans repaid to EEERT
Guodian = 300,000 1,200,000
Related parties under Guodian BETBHEE S 1,240,000 200,000
Interest expenses FEEH
Guodian = 10,441 51,508
Related parties under Guodian BETBHEE S 57,356 14,895
Interest income FEWA
Related parties under Guodian HETBHEE S 3,559 850
Associates iR/ 39,623 14,175
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EXBABLIXS (&)

|

41 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41
(CONTINUED)

(o) EHEBIHXZ (K

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR Fr
Net deposits (withdrawn from)/ (XE) A/
placed with ERER
Related parties under Guodian BETNENEKS (313,518) 1,354,085
Capital investment in EXRET
Associates S E/NE] 35,000 —
Capital investment from EXERAR
Related parties under Guodian ERNELEL v 132,487 —
Dividend paid to TRBREF
Guodian £ 40,419 46,541
Related parties under Guodian ERNELEL v 48,419 54,583
Dividend received from WEKRE R
Related parties under Guodian ERNELEL v 19,920 17,494
Associates S E/NE] 29,943 15,502
(b) Outstanding balances, including commitment, with (b) BHRAEE T NERREE BIEENE

related parties

Bfif5¥22 24 - 2526~ 28 »
30 - 31EA32¥ B Hsk 77 Y R BB 3
177 F4BERA -

Details of the outstanding balances with related parties
are set out in notes 22, 24, 25, 26, 28, 30, 31 and 32.

20145128310 - A& EHE
FIHVIE R TS R HERR
MY BB T NOERRDAT

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s commitments with
related parties that have been contracted for but not yet
been recognised in these financial statements were as
follows:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFR AR FT
Sale of goods to HEBRT :

Related parties under Guodian ERN =k 6,077,290 8,585,710

Construction service to RUHEBERET

be provided to

Related parties under Guodian ETEN@ERS 7,790,844 8,014,148
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41 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement plans organised by relevant local government
authorities and Guodian for its staff. As at 31 December
2014, there was no material outstanding contribution to
post-employment benefit plans. Details of the defined
contribution retirement plans are set out in note 7(a).

(d) Transactions with other government-related
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic regime currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC
government and numerous government authorities and
agencies (collectively referred to as “government-
related entities”). Guodian, the parent and ultimate
holding company of the Company, is a PRC state-owned
enterprise and these government-related entities are
also considered as related parties of the Group in this
respect.

Apart from transactions with Guodian and related parties
under Guodian mentioned above, the Group conducts a
majority of its business activities with other government-
related entities in the ordinary course of business. These
transactions are carried out at terms similar to those
that would be entered into with non-government-related
entities.

The Group prices its services and products based on the
commercial negotiations. The Group has also established
its approval process for sales of goods, provision of
services, purchase of products and services and its
financing policy for borrowings. Such approval process
and financing policy do not depend on whether the
counterparties are government-related entities or not.

41

EXBABLIXS (A)

(c)

(d)

REBRFCR AT B HERK

AEESINT FEEBRITEE X
BHEABABHSEREHER
RIKET 8] - R2014F 12 A 31
H ERAKREFEIET 8
BERRIZAHRK M 5E7()
HAEHIORKRFTEETTHF
MR AR o

EFEEMBFEAEERZ
NS

FEARLE R AL ERES
2T EELEERPEBUA
REBRFHEAREEERNL
RS B A EHRERT
EnER(AEAIBAEHRE
B -BEAERQRANT QA
REEERAR) ZFENE
BhFx WEBRNHBERRA
IR A A LB AR T -

B bt 82 B0 E K BT 6 B
FZRNZZ 2 ELEREE
BBES  AEEKEHMDEB
ABEREMBTEBERR
S ol TR 5 E T RN E
FBFHBERNR S ENA
KL

AEBRETSARAGHY
MR REREE - AR EWHE
E RERE ERERBH
BE AKECBEYTEMRE
B S3ES T B E R 7 E R
BEBK - WHRBRHERF ME
ERRUNERRZETER
EBTRFERE -
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41 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Transactions with other government-related entities
in the PRC (continued)

Having considered the potential for transactions to be
impacted by related party relationships, the Group’s
approval processes and financing policy, and what
information would be necessary for an understanding of
the potential effect of the relationship on these financial
statements, the directors are of the opinion that further
information about the following transactions that are
collectively significant is required for disclosure:

— Sales of goods and provision of construction
services;

The Group sells its goods and provide construction
services to a wide range of government-related
power companies and manufacturing enterprises.
These transactions individually are not significant
to the Group.

— Deposits and borrowings;

The Group deposits most of its cash in
government-related financial institutions, and also
obtains short-term and long-term loans from these
financial institutions in the ordinary course of
business. The interest rates of the bank deposits
and loans are regulated by the People’s Bank of
China.

— Purchase of materials and receiving construction

services; and

The Group purchases materials and receives
construction services from a wide range of
government-related manufacturing enterprises
and construction contractors. These transactions
individually are not significant to the Group.

(BRIEZBHRB - UARKTIR)

41 EXBBLIXS (&)

(d)

RPEHMBAFERER
BHXZ (&)

ZRIEBTBRERZHE
EXE REENFEHIERF
REEBR A RRT A
RV BRENEETE
FENEE EEMRAR Y
REABEREREZNUETR
7 HEREE-THNFHBRE
8

— EYHEREIRHEN

A

AEB RS BBTARE
BENRAREEDEH
EEMALRHEEZER
%o WERHEAME
HBAEELTEK -

—  FERRERK:

AEBENABOREHF
R T AR B R £ B
B BELEEEBERE
TR AT REEE
BERAREAER R
TERRERMEHF
B ARBITHIE

— S E RS TR
%R

AEB RS BBTARE
HECEXBEMHLM
FEREBAHBREERE
BERZEERY - LE
BB ZEMME AR
SETEKN-
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41 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41 EXKBEAIXRS (&)

(CONTINUED)
(d) Transactions with other government-related (d EBEFEHtKFEEEREZ
entities in the PRC (continued) BHRS (&)
— Service concession arrangements; — PR 75 TR L HE
The Group entered into a number of service RNEE B HE i BUT %
concession agreements with local governments T Z BRI RS
to construct and operate water treatment plants ®COEBFHERZ2A
during the concession period. All transactions BEBERAREEK
under the service concession arrangements were BR IR R o AR 7% RF BT RE
made with local governments and carried out at ZHETHMERSHR
terms set out in the respective service concession i 5 BT EH A - B
arrangements. EEBNSITELHEF
BETRIHITHRR
(e) Key management personnel remuneration le) EEEBEABHM
Key management personnel are those persons holding FTEEBABSREHEEMERMC
positions with authority and responsibility for planning, BEBENEEM Al HENE
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, S BE A RIS ARE
directly or indirectly, including the Company’s directors. HOEEMEA - BIEARQA
WEEM -
Remuneration for key management personnel, including ERTEEEAENHFHN
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed T BEMRFIREEN T
in note 9, and certain of the highest paid employees as HARBEEMNESTE UK
disclosed in note 10, is as follows: faE1oh HRENE TEHMRS
HEE :
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFT
Salaries and other emoluments ITEREMES 5,034 4,780
Discretionary bonus BIFIEAL 1,938 2,167
Retirement scheme contributions RORET B 742 709

7,714 7,656
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ACQUISITION OF CONTROL OVER AN
ASSOCIATE

Guodian Zhishen in which the Company had 46.85% equity
interest as at 31 December 2013, was an associate of the
Company. Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the
Company and a shareholder of Guodian Zhishen in January
2014, the shareholder agreed to vote in concert with the
Company, including decisions regarding financial and operating
policies. In addition, pursuant to an equity transfer agreement
dated 31 December 2013, the Company acquired additional
6.3% equity interest in Guodian Zhishen from the shareholder
for a consideration of RMB10,773,000 in cash. The Company’s
equity interest in Guodian Zhishen increased from 46.85% to
53.15% upon the completion of the equity transfer. As a result
the Company has controlled Guodian Zhishen since 1 January
2014 and Guodian Zhishen has become a subsidiary of the
Company since then.

Taking control of Guodian Zhishen is expected to improve
operating results of Guodian Zhishen with the Group’s expertise
in research and development of electric power related products.

In the period from the date of acquisition to 31 December 2014,
Guodian Zhishen contributed revenue of RMB221,494,000 and
profit of RMB12,137,000 to the Group’s results.

Consideration transferred

The fair value of the total consideration transferred on acquisition
date was RMB10,773,000.

42

(BRIEDHHB - UARKIIR)
W BB B I 2

HELDRXREARNAMNBE QTR &
ZE2013% 128318 Ik » AR RIEFHZ
A A)46.85%H) #E 7 © IR2014F1 8
AAREHEEEE RN —BRREN
W ZREREEARAKFFEARNDF
RE- DN (DEVBNEEREK) : B
AN ABIBEN2013F 12831 A s E 52
2 AR A ARY10,773,000
TR Z B RSB EE REEING.3%H
Mo BRI BREREER  AQF
£ Bl 8 B R B # % 2= £ 46.85%1%
MZE53.15% ° A It * B2014F1 818
B ARRNFAESHES R MEE
BREAMEKARRRNHERR -

RAREHEESREHRAEEF
REAENHEBEMMETENER
BRENMEREERNERLS -

AWk EE z B2 ER2014%F12 831
H AEELERERPRERRNE
A B AR #221,494,0007T @ FI;E
A AR #12,137,0007T °

HREE

WEAEENEEEN ABEEAA
R #£10,773,0007T °
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42

ACQUISITION OF CONTROL OVER AN 42
ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The following summarises the recognised amounts of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

W RE B B 2 = ()

ERANENEENRBNAS

AT R S B EUS #) & B M AE R

BENCHRATHE -

RMB’000
AREFT
Property, plant and equipment W - BEK&EE 5,070
Intangible assets mVEE 26,030
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE 5,084
Inventories FE 102,615
Trade and other receivables JFEE 5 B SR B Lt JE UG SR IE 231,565
Restricted deposits PR HIFE R 4,485
Cash at bank and in hand HRITERREFRSE 64,564
Borrowings EE (25,000)
Trade and other payables JE A BR 3R e EL At JE A< 3R78 (211,797)
Provision for warranty BIRE T (31,616)
171,000

Goodwill (K
RMB’000
AR Fr
Total consideration BEE 10,773
Non-controlling interests, based on their BIBEHFWBETNEEMBEZBER 80,114

proportionate interest in the recognised amounts SRS A NS ORI R
of the asset and liabilities of the acquiree

Fair value of existing interest in Guodian Zhishen EHREERARAEREANAAEE 80,113
Fair value of identifiable net assets AHRFEENAAEE (171,000)

Goodwill 4]

)l

The measurement of fair value of the Group’s existing 46.85%
interest in Guodian resulted in a gain of RMB19,397,000
(RMB80,113,000 less RMB60,716,000 carrying value of the
interest in Guodian Zhishen at the acquisition date), which has
been recognised in “other net income” in the consolidated
income statement.

AEBHBEEL XA A H46.85%
WREZUNAANEBTFEEELET A
R #19,397,000t M 25 (A R ¥
80,113,000 )8 7A U B B B & 28 IR 1
@R EE A R%60,716,0007T) -
ZeBOEAMHRERAO TE Ml
SRR RRER -
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ACQUISITION OF CONTROL OVER AN 42 WHEKEB AR (&)
ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)
Acquisition-related costs WEEEER
The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of RMB291,000 AEEEL THEHEAEBAKER
relating to external consulting fees. These amounts have been B8 & A ARE291,0007C - ZE 4B
included in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated AT EHFREFERPH TS & -
income statement.
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 43 HEHEAT
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed R2014F12A31H ILEAf - AE B
of three subsidiaries. The total consideration for the disposals EHEE=RENBRAR - HEMEBE
amounted to RMB86,102,000 fully satisfied by cash. & B A R¥86,102,0007T * BH IR
B
The Group retains 45% equity interests in one of the former HE® ANEBHEZEY —KEKEB
subsidiary, which becomes an associate of the Group after the NEBBSRNER  TEZWE R
disposal. A AAREEMEE QT -
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the subsidiaries ZMBARIZEERBERREES
as at the date when control was lost are as follows: ZHREESZEMT -
RMB’000
AREFT
Property, plant and equipment ME - RENERE 12,159
Other non-current assets HM3ERBEE 126,720
Trade and other receivables JRE 5 B2 EL A jE R 114,938
Inventory 75 32
Cash at bank and in hand RITFERREFR S 37,180
Trade and other payables JE AT BR R B2 B i JE < SR IE (60,029)
Borrowings B (110,000)
121,000
Total consideration HEER 86,102
Fair value of the retained interest as an associate EAEBE R MERBESNAAER 45,000
Carrying amount of net assets WHEMB AR Z FEENREEE (121,000)
in subsidiaries disposed of
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries recognised RE Pl s 3= 7 B b W2 5 58 P AR A 10,102

in other net income in the consolidated income
statement (note 5)

i Y A R s R R (AAE5)
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44 NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS

(a) Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year ended

44 EHBETREROME

(a) BE2014F12831BLLFE

31 December 2014 o) PN T g
RMB’000
AREFT
Cash consideration payable FETIR & Y (B 10,773
Consideration pre-paid in prior year LARTF ETE$E (10,773)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired MENReRREFEY 64,564
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in AWENE S RESZEWERA 64,564

respect of the acquisition

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31

(b) BE2014%F12A310 LFE

December 2014 MEBARIMNEE
RMB’000
ARETFT
Cash consideration received e E|ER & 1B 86,102
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEMNREERRSCEED (37,180)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in  FEEREEMNESRESZEWERA 48,922

respect of disposals

45 SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT

The Group entered into a number of service concession
agreements with local governments (the “Grantors”) to construct
and operate water treatment plants during the concession
period, which is normally for 20-30 years of operation. The
Group is responsible for construction and maintenance of water
treatment plants during the concession period. At the end of the
concession period, the Group needs to transfer water treatment
plants to the Grantors at nil consideration. With respect to these
service concession arrangements, the Group has evaluated and
assessed that these arrangements fall under the scope of IFRIC
12, Service Concession Arrangements (“IFRIC 12”).

45

RIS Fr R B

AEEEMTHRF ((REFD T T
ZHEMRB R E DR ERFEAR
ZR BEERREEKBER &
HAMR — AR /20-30F ~ EAFRTIEHIR 2
N AEEEEKEEBOETZR
AR - Frat Rk ARE

ZUTH B R KRR RS R E
TR EFERBRFELE &K
SEFE  WERHTE(EBRITER
SEANBE)F125 — [REHTE
ZH (KB EREERRE)F
1255 ) ©
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SERVICE CONCESSION  ARRANGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

In accordance with IFRIC 12, the Group accounts for the
revenue and costs relating to construction services in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(p).
The consideration received or receivables in exchange for the
construction services is recognised as a financial asset for
an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset from or at the direction of the Grantor for the
construction services and/or an intangible asset for a right or a
license to charge users of the water treatment service.

The Group has recognised intangible assets (note 17) and
service concession receivables (note 22) related to the service
concession arrangement representing the right the Group
received to charge a fee for water treatment or sale of reclaimed
water and the guaranteed minimum payment during the
operating period of the water treatment plants respectively.

Services concession construction revenue recorded during the
year amounted to RMBA45,158,000 (2013: RMB188,586,000),
which represents the revenue recognised during the construction
stage of the service concession period. The Group has
recognised profit of RMB3,969,000 (2013: RMB19,747,000) for
the construction of water treatment plants.

PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

At 31 December 2014, the directors of the Company consider
its parent and ultimate holding company of the Group to be
Guodian, which is a state-owned enterprise established in the
PRC. Guodian does not produce financial statements available
for public use.

45

46

(BRIEDHHB - UARKIIR)
AR %545 FT RE R BE (A])

Rz (R S R R E) £125%
BE - A& B R E M EE2(p)F BR At /Y
S BREERERBABOKAR
AN - ZERSHE Wk EUCH(E
Th B BT IR IR M JT B FE R UEER
T H S B E A T R R A
RERAR—BELREE M/ LM
IKEEIE AR 2 AP WA E R R R 3K
AAERS—HENEE -

ARRBHFERE AEEE®R
BB E (MFE17) KBRS 5 31 #E 1R
A (BT EE22) - 2 Bl RS A5 B YR
IKEEEERHHE T RKOER - AR
7K BE TR BB i HA M O (R B A SRR

AEERBETEZERABAR
#45,158,0007T (20134F : AR ¥
188,586,0007T) * B /& 1€ AR 75 45 7 1
HMMmBERBRTERNKA - A%
BCHEREEEEKEERS RS
AR #3,0969,0007C (2013F : AR
19,747,0007T) °
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47 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

47

CEMEEREEHZE2014
F12A31B EFEERM
BRI NEARRE
AREENEE

HIEVBEREEHMASH BRg:
AIREgCHM T HEE .J&%EETB’J
AR - B H KR EE £2014F12831H
HFERES  BRESLETERE
PR - W EBFEM T AL AR L E
5

Effective for

accounting

periods beginning

on or after

BUAT SR

ZERBEZ

SRHREXN

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle 1 July 2014
(BIBR 57 5 3R 2 2E R ) 49 4F JZ 203 (2010220124 ) B HY) 20147 A1H
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle 1 July 2014
(BY B2 Y 755 38 2 2E RI) ) 1 F JZ 228 (201122013 Z A HH) 20145718

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of acceptable
Methods of depreciation and amortisation
(BBt LRI FE165 - 58

BBIRNE AT — [ HT E FUE i AT 2 X 77 )% 09 537 ]

Amendments to IAS 27, Equ/ty method in separate financial statements

(BB G ERDE2TRETT— [ EBY HFHA P 9204

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts from customers

(BRI s RN E165— B E P 2 ey & R ELHRKA S

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BRI HmEEN)FES: — (2@ T A/

1 January 2016
20161 H1H

1 January 2016
201651 H1H

1 January 2017
20171 81H

1 January 2018
201851 H1H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these is expected to be in the period of initial
application.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”,
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation from the Company's first financial year
commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the company’s
financial year which began on 1 January 2015) in accordance
with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes
in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far
it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements.

AREE B A EERFEE LAERT 5
AIMEA R RBR ERRKAYEE
HIMELRE -

BEoN - IRIBFTR BB (R BEGD (F
622%F ) F3581%K + #Z &I K FEOEB R
BRBHIMNEEREARAANE @EE
2014F3A3H 2 & MR B EE (B
AR AIR2015F1 B1 B 1AM B BAF
E) &R o AL IEA T E D RHEHIH
BEHENIRAERE BHNA G
WMERCEHEE - BRAKERAEZ
FERKAKEAN BXTBEReggsE
EHMBREPEEZTHRRIEE -



OUTLOOK
R

1. Optimizing the Asset Structure

The Group plans to adjust its asset structure and withdraw from industries and projects in which
the Group does not have competitive advantage. On one hand, the Group seeks to dispose of
unprofitable projects and businesses and concentrates on enhancing its core businesses. On
the other hand, the Group intends to strengthen the development of new energy projects, such
as wind and solar power stations, and the preparation works of operational projects for coal-fired
power stations and enlarge the scale of its general contracting for green power stations and EMC
businesses.

2. Strengthening Technology Development

The Group intends to accelerate the industrial application of new technologies to improve
its capability of utilizing the technological innovation to meet the demands of the Group’s
development. The Group intends to put together its high-quality resources and enhance its
technological potential to achieve the breakthrough in its core businesses. Meanwhile, the
Group expects to offer incentives for scientific and technological innovations, and motivates the
technical personnel of the Group by connecting the remunerations of the technical personnel to
the profits of science and technology projects.

3. Enhancing Service Innovations

The Group expects to establish a supportive system for service innovations. Regarding clients’
demands as the guidelines, the Group intends to integrate advanced technologies from every
area of its business, innovate its business model and improve the ability to adapt to the ever-
changing market. The Group intends to assist Beijing Guodian Sida Technology Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of United Power, to enhance the WTG repair and maintenance service business, in
order to transform its business from manufacturing to integrated system design and provision
of integrated solutions. The Group also intends to accelerate the upgrading of services in
information service companies, creating new business models and providing value-added
services.

4. Expanding Market

The Group divides the market into the market within the Guodian Group, the power market
outside of the Guodian Group, the non-electric power market outside of the Guodain Group and
the overseas market. The Group will analyze the capacity and business rules of each market,
focusing on efficiency and profitability, make diversified marketing strategies, seize every market
change, integrate its market resources and enhance its market competitiveness comprehensively.

5. Strengthening centralized management and control

The Group intends to further increase its efficiency by improving its centralized management.
The Group will focus on the financial indicators, emphasize on meeting targets and strengthen
its management in 2015. The Group expects to further improve the internal control system by
means of, among others, strengthening centralized purchasing of goods, enhancing budget
management, optimizing designs and production and improving financial management.
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